Phoenix Journal # 212



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table Of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
UNDER THE VOLCANOS 500 MILLION PEOPLE LIVE ON	
THE EDGE OF POTENTIAL DISASTER	1
CHAPTER 2	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/6/97	
PROFESSIONAL POLITICIAN: DEFINITION	
MORE ON JURY DUTY	6
MISPLACED PRIORITIES	
PRESIDENT CLINTON: THE BEST PRESIDENT THE AMERICAN	
JEWISH COMMUNITY HAS EVER KNOWN	7
ARE JEWS LOYAL AMERICANS?	7
TOO-MANY-JEWS POLICY TRIGGERS PROTEST	8
BIG BOSS IS WATCHING YOU	9
LAW OFFICERS RECOMMEND LEGALISATION OF SEX ABUSE	9
GIVING BABIES WATER MAY BE DANGEROUS	11
SEWAGE WATER TO DRINK?	12
'HARMLESS' MUTATION IS FOUND TO CAUSE	
COLORECTAL CANCER	
THE QUEEN MOVES TO STRENGTHEN THE COMMONWEALTH	
LUCENT JOINS DIGITAL TV EFFORT	
THE CONTROLLED MEDIA: SINCE 1917!!!	14
THE CONGRESSIONAL RECORD FEBRUARY 9, 1917	
PAGE 2947 & PAGE 2948:	
SALT AND PARASITES	15
"LORD, DID YOU SEND THIS DOG?"	
CHAPTER 3	
DARKEST SECRETS OF OUR TIME:	
A LETTER TO MY DARLING DAUGHTER JOSEPHONE, PART II	
CHAPTER 4	
OUR WORLD ECONOMY: FORMULA FOR DISASTER by Ray Bilger 9/5/97	
CHAPTER 5	
THE NEWS DESK, A SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 8/30/97	29
CODEX: FDA's ATTEMPT TO REGULATE	
ALL NATURAL HEALTH PRODUCTS, ETC.	
CHAPTER 6	
LITTLE CROW SPEAKS AT AUGUST GATHERING PART I 8/16/97	
CHAPTER 7	
ESU: TAKE RESPONSIBILITY NOW FOR CONNECTING WITHIN	
8/30/97 ESU "JESUS" SANANDA	
CHAPTER 8	44
MORE CLUES ABOUT MURDER OF PRINCESS DIANA	

DARK CONNECTIONS GO BACK A LONG WAY	44
THE ISRAELI IMPERATIVE	
DIANA'S WAR WITH THE WINDSORS E.I.R. 9/9/97	
ANTI-ESTABLISHMENT REVOLT IN BRITAIN	48
A TURNING POINT IN BRITAIN E.I.R. 9/11/97	49
NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 9/13/97	49
3 MORE "FOETOGS" QUIZZED	
FRENCH JOURNALISTS CONFIDE:	
"PRINCESS DIANA WAS ASSASSINATED"	50
QUESTIONS, QUESTIONS—	
WHY WAS PRINCESS DIANA MURDERED??	52
SOME VERY STRANGE HAPPENINGS!	54
CHAPTER 9	57
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/13/97	57
KNOW YOUR LAW: SHERIFF BOOTS FEDS FROM HIS COUNTY	57
THE LATEST LIQUID GOLD	58
JAPANESE COURT SAYS MINISTRY ILLEGALLY CENSORED	60
HISTORY BOOKS	60
FORD TOP EXEC WARNS OF UN MONITORING	
U.S. INDUSTRY: AUTO AND GAS	
PRICES WILL RISE BEYOND OUR MEANS!	61
RETURN OF THE PAWPAW	62
BLACKS SHOWN AS POOR	63
"THE BEST AND WORST OF EVERYTHING" BEST	
NEWS FOR MORTALS (YEAR [1996] ROUNDUP)	63
ILLEGAL IMMIGRATION	
RUSSIAN NUCLEAR WEAPONS MISSING, LEBED SAYS	
TYSON ANNOUNCES PURCHASE OF HUDSON	
NEW DOCTORS MISS A BEAT WITH TRIED-AND-TRUE STETHOSCOPE	
BAR-B-QUE? OOPS!!	
MASS MURDER INCORPORATED?	66
"TAVISTOCK'S MARTIN BRYANT"	
THE BATTLE FOR THE MIND	
REPORTING BACK TO TAVISTOCK AND THE TAVISTOCK AGENDA?	
A RETREAT FROM REALITY?	
IS TAVISTOCK OVER-CONFIDENT?	68
SLIPPING AND SLIDING AWAY	
BOY, 3, DIES OF FLU VIRUS IN UNPRECEDENTED CASE	
WARNED BY AN ANGEL?	
CHAPTER 10	
LITTLE CROW SPEAKS AT AUGUST GATHERING PART II IN A SERIES	
CHAPTER 11	
A LETTER TO MY DARLING DAUGHTER JOSEPHINE PART III	
BIBLIOGRAPHIC LISTING	
CHAPTER 12	81

GERMAIN: IS IT TRANSMUTATION OR TRIBULATION FOR YOU?	81
CHAPTER 13	
NATIVE AMERICAN GAMING: CALIFORNIA'S TRIBES THRIVING	86
STATE SEEKS CONTROL VIA COMPACT by Rick Martin 9/22/97	86
INDIAN GAMING REGULATORY ACT (IGRA)	87
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE POLICY ON INDIAN	
SOVEREIGNTY AND GOVERNMENT-TO-	
GOVERNMENT RELATIONS WITH INDIAN TRIBES	
I. INTRODUCTION	91
THE EXECUTIVE MEMORANDUM ON	
GOVERNMENT-TO-GOVERNMENT RELATIONS	
BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND INDIAN TRIBES	
FEDERAL INDIAN SELF-DETERMINATION POLICY	92
II. PRINCIPLES OF INDIAN SOVEREIGNTY	
AND THE TRUST RESPONSIBILITY	92
III. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE RECOGNITION	
OF INDIAN SOVEREIGNTY AND THE FEDERAL TRUST	
RESPONSIBILITY	
A. THE SOVEREIGNTY OF INDIAN TRIBES	92
B. GOVERNMENT-TO-GOVERNMENT	
RELATIONSHIPS WITH INDIAN TRIBES	
C. SELF-DETERMINATION AND SELF-GOVERNANCE	
D. TRUST RESPONSIBILITY	
E. PROTECTION OF CIVIL RIGHTS	
F. PROTECTION OF TRIBAL RELIGION AND CULTURE	94
IV. DIRECTIVE TO ALL COMPONENTS	
OF THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE	
CLOSING THOUGHTS	
LEGALIZED GAMBLING:	
BRITAIN'S DOPE, INC. SUBVERTS THE U.S. PART I by John Hoefle	96
A MONEY-LAUNDERING DIVISION OF THE EMPIRE	
THE BRITISH EMPIRE TODAY	
POLITICAL COVER AND FINANCIAL OWNERSHIP	
POPULAR CULTURE	
CHAPTER 14	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/20/97	
BAHT BAILOUT BILKS YOU	
THAILAND'S PRIME MINISTER BOWS TO REFORM PRESSURE	
EUROPEAN INSIDER ISSUES ALERT	102
FROM PRESIDENT CLINTON TO THENAVY TWA	
FLIGHT 800 RECOVERY TEAM:	, a -
THINK TWICE BEFORE SPEAKING OUT	
TWA FLIGHT 800: TARGET PRACTICE GONE WRONG	
HOUSE: STATION TROOPS ON THE MEXICAN BORDER	
MORE ITEMS ABOUT DIANA AND DODI'S MURDERS	105

PRINCESS DIANA: CRUSHED BETWEEN	
THE EAST AND THE WEST	105
CYBER-SPACE IS THE NEW BATTLEGROUND	107
OFFICIALS WANT POWER TO DECODE MESSAGES	108
SCIENTISTS CREATE HIV-FIGHTING VIRUS	109
CABIN OWNERS FACE FEE HIKES	110
ANOTHER SIGN OF THE TIMES	110
ORTHODOX RABBIS SUING OVER HOLOCAUST MUSEUM	
TV IS GOOD	11
HIDDEN CAFFEINE	
HIDDEN MESSAGE	
CHAPTER 15	114
LITTLE CROW SPEAKS AT AUGUST GATHERING	
PART III IN A SERIES	114

CHAPTER 1

UNDER THE VOLCANOS 500 MILLION PEOPLE LIVE ON THE EDGE OF POTENTIAL DISASTER

Geophysicist Commander Soltec has requested that the following superb article be shared with our CONTACT readers. Our copy comes by way of the 8/30/97 Montreal Gazette, written by Sandra Blakeslee of the New York Times, with additional reporting by Uyen Vu of the Gazette.

That such an article as this should be appearing in major-circulation newspapers, is itself a clue to the possibilities, probabilities, and inevitabilities just around the corner in the geophysical arena of activities. (Never mind the popular press attention to this subject starting shortly after we last reprinted Commander Soltec's tutorials on volcanos in the 5/20/97 and 7/15/97 issues of CONTACT.)

Like for the earthquake situation, you can take for granted that the TRUE state of volcanic activity worldwide is vastly understated in this article, especially as concerns underwater volcanos, and especially as concerns the vast array of underwater volcanos active around the circumference of the Pacific (tectonic) Plate's "Ring Of Fire". Much of the heightened El Nino activity being reported to the public as "a mystery" (and, as you can see from the media set-up, will be used as an excuse for many "natural disaster" New World Order shenanigans) is being driven by the "engine" of these very active underwater volcanos. There is awesome geothermal energy being released and "scientists" are rapidly coming to a point in this unfolding drama wherein the lying shall become too outrageous to maintain as a facade.

Recent measurements of Pacific Ocean temperatures show an alarming heating-up going on—so much so that surfers along the California coast don't need to wear wet suits these days, and tropical fish are being caught by very surprised fishermen as far north as Vancouver Island, British Columbia! So stay tuned and stay alert as Mother Earth swings into higher gear with her cleansing and rebalancing efforts.

Those of you with Internet access may wish to check-out the ocean temperature maps and other relevant data posted by superb humanitarian scientist Stan Deyo, whose web site can most easily be accessed thru the link from late-night radio talk-show host Art Bell's home page (www.artbell.com). Also stay tuned to Art's show as Stan is a frequent guest, interviewed from his home in Perth, Australia, when significant geophysical activity is underway.

The bigger question is how long Art will be allowed to stay on the air, given the increasingly more substantive content of his program material, and the increasingly more aggressive tactics being employed by the Elite controllers to keep the New World Order agenda on course thru keeping wethe-people in the dark. We can but support and encourage Art to keep up the good work. His fax # is: 702-727-8499, and his mailing address is: P.O. Box 4755, Pahrump, NV 89041. It's a tricky

thing to present **any** truth at all in the modern commerical radio business!

—Dr. Edwin M. Young, Editor-In-Chief

NEW YORK—Planet Earth is planning some spectacular volcanic fireworks and millions of people worldwide are going to have ringside seats.

The next show could start anytime, almost anywhere. It might be Mexico City, where a 17,000-foot volcano named Popocatepetl is spewing ash and poisonous gases toward 20 million homes; it conceivably could explode with the force of 10,000 atomic bombs.

Or it might be Vesuvius, the famed volcano that looms over Naples and surrounding Italian towns, home to 11 million people. A small volcano called Soufrière Hills is erupting now on the lush Caribbean island of Montserrat, and has already driven most of the island's people from their homes and farms.

The Soufrière volcano has been active for two years. The viscous lava bubbling up inside a horseshoe crater at the peak has built a gigantic lava dome, said John Stix, a Montreal-based geologist who visited Montserrat twice last year.

volcano 1

volcano 2

There are about 1,500 active volcanos in the world, not counting hundreds more under the oceans, and any of them could erupt at any time, said Tom Casadevall, western regional director of the U.S. Geological Survey in Menlo Park, Calif. Of the 1,500, 583 have exploded within the last 400 years, making them particularly dangerous. Each year, scientists observe from 50 to 60 volcanos in various stages of eruption, some gently extruding magma like red-hot toothpaste down hillsides, others heaving molten rock particles and noxious gases into the atmosphere.

Meanwhile, the number of people living on the sides of volcanos and in the valleys below has skyrocketed, said Stanley Williams, a vulcanologist at Arizona State University in Tempe. At least 500 million people live dangerously close to volcanos, he said. Many dwell in megacities in Asia and Latin America—Tokyo, Manila, Jakarta, Mexico City, Quito—or in cities of at least a million. In the United States, the people of Seattle and Tacoma live in the shadow of Mount Rainier, a 13,000-foot volcano whose mud flows have swept through locales where the cities are now located.

In Canada, there are several hundred volcanos, all in B.C. and the Yukon. They range from small cinder cones—about 300 feet high and 600 feet across—to imposing volcanos the size of Washington state's Mount St. Helen, which erupted spectacularly in 1980.

"The mountain range that Mount St. Helen is on, the Cascades, continues up to Canada, and it's on that range where our largest volcanos are," said Catherine Hickson, a Vancouver-based vulcanologist at the Geological Survey of Canada.

"They're all major volcanos; none of them is active, but they're not dormant either," she said. The last time Mount Meager erupted was 2,360 years ago.

People have been drawn to volcanos for centuries because the surrounding soils are rich and old volcanic mudflows make nice flat areas for settlement, Williams said. As population rises and land gets scarcer, the problem is getting worse.

Most of the time, the people who colonize danger areas don't know any better. And the people who do know better—scientists and civil-disaster officials—"are not always listened to," said Grant Heiken, a vulcanologist at the Los Alamos National Laboratory in New Mexico.

For example, scientists issued a warning when a high volcano, capped with ice, began rumbling in the mountains of Colombia in 1985. On Nov. 13, the icecap exploded above the town of Novado del Ruiz, melting snow fields that picked up debris and went roaring down the side of the volcano toward villages 50 to 60 kilometres away. The residents were warned that night that a large volcanic mudflow was on the way, Heiken said. "But it was raining. People said, 'Why worry, the volcano is far away.'

"They had only to walk 100 yards to a hill to be safe," he said. "That night 26,000 people died."

Scientists were horrified, said Chris Newhall, a vulcanologist at the Untied States Geological Survey at the University of Washington in Seattle. This episode and other natural disasters prompted the United Nations to declare the 1990s the International Decade of Natural Hazard Reduction, he said. "The notion was, 'Look, the world population is growing, the hazards are not getting any less.' People are moving into marginal lands that are more prone to disasters—volcanos, floods, earthquakes and hurricanes. The basic idea was to encourage countries to take a hard look at the hazards that their populations were facing and to undertake projects to try and reduce risks," he said. But the UN did not have money for the program, Newhall said. The International Decade of Hazard Reduction has existed in name only.

So the scientists began taking action on their own. Under the auspices of the International Association of Vulcanology and Chemistry of the Earth's Interior, the vulcanologists got together and "scratched our heads for ideas," said Newhall. "We came up with three."

·First, they made a video that depicts what volcanos can do to people and property, with such horrifying accuracy that it is not recommended for children under 15. It is being shown to mayors and other public officials in charge of getting people to leave when volcanos threaten to explode.

·Second, the scientist picked 15 volcanos around the world to study intensely. These so-called "decade volcanos" are near large population centres and could erupt any time. Workshops have been held at most of them, bringing together scientists and disaster-relief officials from the local regions.

·Third, there has been an effort to better predict when volcanos will erupt using new scientific instruments

and insights.

Although real progress has been made, vulcanologists face a couple of intractable problems, Williams said. One is the tendency for people to deny danger even when it is obvious. Also, once a threat is passed, they tend to dismiss it. "They forget that grandma once told a story about how her grandmother was killed by a volcano," he said. And second is the sheer perversity of volcanos. They might show all signs and symptoms of erupting and then quiet down, leading the public to accuse scientists of "crying wolf".

Williams, from Arizona, nearly lost his life in the Galeras volcano in Columbia while surveying it for the decade project a few years ago.

Volcanos arise from the forces of plate tectonics, and usually occur where great slabs of the Earth's crust are shoved deep into the interior and melted. This molten rock is buoyant, Williams said, and makes its way back to the surface, where it finds a weak spot and explodes.

Most volcanos live for tens of thousands of years and can remain dormant for centuries between eruptions. The varying amounts of ash, lava and other particles they emit are measured in cubic kilometres, cubes a quarter of a mile on each side. The 1980 Mount St. Helen's eruption, which devastated the countryside, was a small event by volcanic standards, producing only one cubic kilometre, Williams said.

By contrast, a volcano in Yellowstone, Wyo., has over the last 2 million years spewed out 3,800 cubic kilometres of ash and pumice. If Yellowstone produced another huge eruption, it could shut down the country, he said. Airplanes could not fly, trucks could not deliver food and farmers could not grow crops.

The 15 decade volcanos are being studied in detail, Newhall said, "to arrive at a synopsis of what was and was not understood about how each volcano works. Also, what questions need to be addressed to make future forecasts more accurate in terms of the size and timing of eruptions."

First, geologists look all around each volcano, mapping ash deposits and mud flows, to determine the nature of each past eruption, how far it went and, with carbon dating, how long ago it happened, said Richard Fisher, a professor emeritus of geology at the University of California at Santa Barbara. Then they map out hazard zones. If a volcano produced serious damage in one place, it can do so again, he said.

Next, the scientists study the low-frequency earthquakes that these volcanos tend to produce. Such earthquakes make a special noise that is related to growing magma domes, the ominous bulges formed by molten rock making its way to the surface. With almost every volcano, people in the area begin feeling quakes, hearing noises and smelling gases for days, weeks or months before an eruption, Williams said. They often sense it is coming.

Using a variety of instruments, the scientists are measuring the size and growth of magma domes at decade volcanos and the gases they emit. Steam and carbon dioxide indicate high pressures are building up. Sulphur dioxide emissions "tell you that the magma is in communication with the atmosphere," Fisher said. It is a definite danger sign.

A few things send vulcanologists running for the hills, Newhall said. If a volcano starts to produce low

harmonic tremors, a steady hum of seismic waves, for tens of minutes or hours, it's time to run. It means magma is rising up the conduit and building gas pressure. Recent studies on decade volcanos also point to another forewarning: sulphur-dioxide levels sometimes drop right before the big blast.

The trouble is, other volcanos do not give these warning signs before they explode. "You do the best you can," Newhall said. "You look at spatial and temporal changes and you plot them for weeks, months and then you make your best shot at interpreting what is going on."

The major cause of death in volcanos is not hot lava or rivers of mud, but rather glowing clouds of superhot gas and ash particles that silently sweep down the volcano's flank and across the countryside at 100km/h, vapourizing everything in their path. These pyroclastic flows can knock down stone walls 3 metres thick and have killed thousands of people in less than two minutes, he said.

CHAPTER 2

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/6/97

PROFESSIONAL POLITICIAN: DEFINITION

From the INTERNET, 7/97: [quoting]

"A professional politician is a professionally dishonorable man. In order to get anywhere near high office he has to make so many compromises and submit to so many humiliations that he becomes indistinguishable from a streetwalker." —Author not known. [End quoting]

Short and to the point.

MORE ON JURY DUTY

From *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 9/1/97: [quoting]

Jury duty marionettes embrace the modern obligation, but free citizens do not. The reasons are obvious.

Juries no longer judge the accused. That function has been usurped by judges who write such restrictive jury instructions that marionettes can be easily guided to the desired verdict, while dissenting free citizens are removed either during jury selection or during deliberations.

Let us restore the jury system so that juries are once again expected to judge the law as well as the facts in a case. William O. Feisman (letter to the editor) [End quoting]

MISPLACED PRIORITIES

From THE DAILY NEWS (letter from a reader), Los Angeles, 9/1/97: [quoting]

I recently read an article about the Police Department expanding traffic enforcement. It quoted a professor as saying the public—68 percent—wanted to stop dangerous drivers. I find this survey flawed.

Most traffic accidents are just that—accidents. However, I doubt that a burglar accidentally robs you. Does a gangbanger accidentally kill his intended victim?

The police make no revenue for catching a burglar, or many other things that truly hurt the citizens. They do, however, get a lot of money for the city and state from speeding tickets and such. Do you think perhaps a profit motive is part of this picture? If the police will prevent me from getting robbed or murdered. I'll take my chances with speeders. —Craig Hawley [End quoting]

But that type of thinking won't result in terrorizing the good citizens and support the criminals for the Elite's

purposes of making you feel powerless.

PRESIDENT CLINTON: THE BEST PRESIDENT THE AMERICAN JEWISH COMMUNITY HAS EVER KNOWN

From TRUTH AT LAST, Issue No. 399, by Arthur L. Shechter: [quoting]

Bill Clinton's presidency is beginning to recognize its potential for greatness. Smart and empathetic, Clinton has been the best president for the American Jewish community in our history.

Though we as a community are frequently viewed by others as being monolithic and <u>only interested in one issue—Israel</u>, we know that these perceptions are incorrect.

Though Israel's security is at the top of the agenda of most American Jews, it <u>is certainly not the entire agenda</u>. Nonetheless, President Bill Clinton has been the most supportive U.S. president in Israel's history. I have had the privilege of being with President Clinton on *Air Force One* and at dinner with him on the Saturday before the signing of the first Peace Accords on the south lawn of the White House and of having the opportunity to talk to him personally.

Clinton has supported these goals at great political cost, <u>using much capital to get the foreign-aid bills</u> <u>passed guaranteeing Israel's positions in an environment that is politically hostile</u>.

Bill Clinton has brought more Jews, women and minorities into government than any other president in our history. Consider the number of Jews currently in the Cabinet. Consider the number of Jewish appointments made to the United States Supreme Court and to other benches since Bill Clinton became president. Compare and contrast that with the prior 12-year period. Look at the White House staff and its high percentage of Jews. Consider those whom the president considers to be his best friends around the country, and you will find that an extremely high percentage are of the Jewish faith.

Bill Clinton and his administration have stood firmly to protect the sacred relationship in the public-private partnership. <u>Jewish institutions receive 40 percent of their funding from federal and state sources</u>. In Houston, the figure is approximately \$4 million annually. [End quoting]

This ought to wake us up—if nothing else has—to the fact that the Khazarian Zionists' allegiance is to Israel and they will steal anything they can get from our government to support their views—including the takeover of the government by bribery or any other means necessary.

Furthermore, *CONTACT* readers know that Bill (who has Rockefeller blood) and Hillary have blood ties to this band of parasites—so why wouldn't they help their own when they are of them and were put in office by them?

ARE JEWS LOYAL AMERICANS?

From TRUTH AT LAST, Issue No. 399: [quoting]

Gerald L.K. Smith said: "The Jews constitute a Fifth Column in America. Their loyalty is to Israel and not America. All disloyal Jews should be deported—not to Palestine which belongs to the Arabs—but back to Southern Russia, to the Khazar area from which they originated." Smith gave wide circulation to the Benjamin Franklin statement pleading with the Founding Fathers to ban Jewish immigration. Franklin said: "I warn you, gentlemen, if you do not exclude the Jews for all time, your children will curse you in your graves." [End quoting]

We are sure paying the price for not being more attentive to this problem

TOO-MANY-JEWS POLICY TRIGGERS PROTEST

Irate Gilman writes Clinton on anonymous statement

From TRUTH AT LAST, Issue No. 399: [quoting]

The chairman of the house International Relations Committee, Benjamin A. Gilman, wrote to President Clinton yesterday to object to a report that senior foreign affairs positions are not being filled because <u>there</u> are too many Jews in the State Department.

Mr. Gilman wrote after *The Washington Times*, citing anonymous sources, said that some appointments have not been filled partly because "there are too many 'White Jewish males' in senior State Department positions".

The sources were speaking in the context of the Clinton administration's <u>preoccupation with seeking</u> "diversity" in government so that no single sex or ethnic group is overly represented to the exclusion of others.

Nevertheless, Mr. Gilman said in his letter, "For such a statement to appear, even anonymously, in <u>this day and age</u>, is <u>outrageous</u>."

"Religious discrimination in personnel decision-making is <u>totally inappropriate</u> and <u>against the spirit of all anti-discrimination</u> laws," the New York Republican said.

"I hope you will personally repudiate this statement and change any personnel policies which discriminate on the basis of religion."

<u>Several senior State Department officials involved in Middle East policy are Jewish men.</u> The two top officials in the <u>National Security Council are also Jewish.</u>

Mr. Gilman wrote the letter just weeks after Secretary of State <u>Madeleine K. Albright disclosed</u> she had learned that, while she was brought up Catholic and then became Episcopalian, her <u>Czechoslovak parents</u> were originally Jewish.

Mr. Gilman told Mr. Clinton, "We will be watching your administration's personnel decisions closely on

this matter." [End quoting]

He complains, after all Clinton has already done for the Khazarian Zionists. However, the *Protocols of Zion* would have it no other way than "Jewish" supremacy.

BIG BOSS IS WATCHING YOU

From *NEWSWEEK*, 7/7/97: [quoting]

Solitaire addicts and compulsive Web surfers, beware. You may not be alone. Corporations with Big Brother tendencies can now monitor their employees' computer activity with com.Policy, a new package of surveillance software from Silverstone. The program keeps a comprehensive log of all programs launched and sends your boss snapshots of anything that's on your computer screen as often as every five minutes. "This isn't about spying," says Silverstone's James Cofano, who denies his product's Orwellian characteristics. "It's about increasing productivity and helping companies develop and deploy a computer-use policy." That may sound good to employers, but to their employees it may just sound like newspeak. [End quoting]

What more can we expect from employers? Do we expect them to pay for us to play games or do personal things while we take their money? The goof-offs make it hard for the honest, hardworking employees to achieve collective productivity.

LAW OFFICERS RECOMMEND LEGALISATION OF SEX ABUSE

Excerpted from *THE STRATEGY* (Australian newspaper), July 1997: [quoting]

At a time when there is mounting concern over the incidence of sex abuse of children and the disabled in institutional care, there should be total opposition to proposals by legal advisers to the State and Federal Attorneys-General, to liberalise the law on sexual relations involving children and the intellectually impaired, as well as legalisation of incest and abortion.

Discussion papers published in August and December last year by senior law officers propose radical changes to Australia's criminal code, effectively legalising incest, abortion, and other forms of deviant behaviour.

The proposals were made by the Model Criminal-Code Officers Committee, which is answerable to the Standing Committee of Attorneys-General.

What is most disturbing about the proposals is that they have been subject to little if any public comment. Yet after being released for public comment, the Committee will table its final proposals at a meeting of the Standing Committee of Attorneys-General, which will then vote for their adoption.

Given the way-out nature of the proposed changes, serious doubt must exist as to whether the Committee will seriously listen to criticism.

Clearly, the Officers' Committee has endorsed a libertarian and utilitarian view of the law, and ignored the law's educative function.

The following propositions of the Committee are contrary to the traditional basis of the law dealing with sexual offenses, as well as to the deeply held view of many ordinary Australians:

- * that a child of 10 is capable of consenting to a sexual act,
- * that children aged 10 or above should be allowed to freely take part in sexual activity, together, provided the other parties are not more than two years older, and that this type of sexual contact does not warrant intervention by the criminal law.
- * that there should be no sexual offences, other than those involving lack of consent, against those aged 16 years or over. This is based on the assumption that the sole purpose of the criminal law on sexual offences is to protect persons against unwanted sexual activity.

However, the community has always had an interest in controlling destructive, anti-social sexual behaviour such as incest or homosexual acts involving young men (e.g. under 18 in NSW and under 21 in Western Australia).

- * that incest should not be a criminal offense, provided the age of both parties is at least 16 years, meaning, that father-daughter incest would no longer be a criminal offence.
- * that there should be no specific offences for homosexual acts because the law should not discriminate against a particular sexual preference.
- * that laws which make it an offence to engage in sexual acts with a person who is mentally incapable be repealed. This, of course, would open the doors to the type of sexual abuse which has been recently reported by patients in institutional care.

Section 35.4 recommends that a carer can engage in sexual acts with a person with a mental impairment provided only that the person consented to the act "and the giving of that consent was not unduly influenced by the fact that the person was responsible for the care of the person with the mental impairment". A carer is defined as a person providing "medical, nursing, therapeutic or educative services to the person in connection with his or her mental impairment".

This proposal abandons the mentally impaired to rampant sexual exploitation. One particularly odious aspect is that the onus of proof is effectively transformed to the victim; all that the perpetrator has to claim is that there was "consent".

These proposals are highly dangerous, as all recent experience dictates that existing provisions to protect the vulnerable should be strengthened. The fact that such bizarre recommendations could come from senior law officers of the States and Federal Government highlights the pathetic level of advice which is being given by public servants to Governments.

No wonder there is such widespread disillusionment with the political process and politicians.

The only way in which a shred of credibility can be restored to government is if they "pull the plug" on the law officers' committee, and publicly discard its dangerous findings which bring the legal and political systems into disrepute. [End quoting]

If they get this passed—in a very short time expect it to come up for vote here.

Can there be a better way to finish off the destruction of the family relationships and the destruction of our children?

GIVING BABIES WATER MAY BE DANGEROUS

Infants Are 'Intoxicated' When Sodium's Diluted

From UNKNOWN (*AP*), 8/18/97: [quoting]

Many mothers give babies water in addition to breast milk or infant formula even though it is unnecessary and possibly dangerous, federal researchers say.

If an infant ingests too much water, the baby can suffer "oral water intoxication", which occurs when the necessary sodium in the blood becomes so diluted that the body can't function properly.

The result can be an altered mental state, abnormally low body temperature, bloating and seizures. Babies less than a month old are especially susceptible because they cannot filter water out of their systems as fast as older infants.

A 1993 survey of more than 1,600 mothers nationwide revealed that one-fourth gave water to their newborns at least three times a week, said researchers led by Dr. Paula D. Scariati of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

The researchers were writing in August's *Archives of Pediatrics and Adolescent Medicine*, published by the American Medical Association.

The American Academy of Pediatrics has said that except in hot weather, human milk or formula provides nursing infants with all the water they need to replace what they lose through normal bodily functions.

The federal researchers found that rates of giving babies water were higher among women who used infant formula instead of breast feeding, among women with less than a high-school education and among mothers with less than \$22,500 in family income.

The report contained no information on whether any of the babies given water became ill. [End quoting]

Anything in abnormal amounts is harmful.

SEWAGE WATER TO DRINK?

From *THE MODESTO BEE*, 8/19/97: [quoting]

Plans are in the works to put water from the local sewage treatment plant into the drinking water supply that goes to consumers.

Throughout California, water districts are looking for ways to pipe water from sewage treatment plants into reservoirs in a state that is constantly thirsty.

Sewage water dumped into the ocean could meet a third to a half of the state's urban water needs, said Paul Gagliardo of San Diego's Metropolitan Wastewater Department. San Diego will spend about \$600 an acre-foot to produce drinking water from waste water. That is about 30 percent higher than the cost of buying it from the Metropolitan Water District, officials said. Then, water agencies will try to develop ways to entice people past the "yuck factor" of drinking resalvaged water. [End quoting]

Maybe the scientists can convince most people they will make the water as good as fresh, pure drinking water, but they don't clean up the water they are giving us now—so why should we trust what they say?

Maybe they are doing this to make more money off the project (\$600 an acre-foot) or to sell more bottled water at **huge profits** when millions more rush to buy it.

'HARMLESS' MUTATION IS FOUND TO CAUSE COLORECTAL CANCER

Excerpted from *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 8/26/97: [quoting]

A genetic mutation previously thought to be harmless has been found to lead to one type of colorectal cancer in Jews, a discovery that could shed new light on the disease's development, researchers announced Monday.

The mutation was found in 6 percent of the 766 Jews studied, prompting the researchers to recommend genetic testing for Ashkenazi Jews who have a history of familial colorectal cancer.

That type of cancer accounts for 15 percent to 50 percent of all colorectal cancers, said Dr. Bert Vogelstein, lead researcher of the Johns Hopkins University team.

"Really, the importance of this observation for the public at large is this is a whole new mechanism for people being predisposed to cancer," said Dr. Sanford Markowitz, who was not involved in the research. He is a professor of cancer genetics at Case Western Reserve University in Cleveland.

Another outside cancer expert rejected the researchers' recommendation for expensive medical tests.

The gene controls cell growth. A more severely mutated form has been previously identified with a more aggressive form of colorectal cancer.

Researcher Steve Laken said people refer to the gene "as the Trojan Horse because it's not damaged, but it can mutate very quickly."

Markowitz agreed.

"Most of the cancer genes that have been reported over the last several years have been genes where the people who got the cancer were born with a damaged version of the gene," he said. "What's new about the Hopkins finding is that the gene itself that these individuals are born with functions normally, but it's a less stable form."

The findings are reported in the September issue of *Nature Genetics*. [End quoting]

THE QUEEN MOVES TO STRENGTHEN THE COMMONWEALTH

Excerpted from *EIR* (*Executive Intelligence Review*), 8/14/97: [quoting]

We have been reporting for some time, that the new form of the British Empire, is a reinvigorated and upgraded Commonwealth structure. This dynamic is now being made manifest, by the announcement that Queen Elizabeth II will be, for the first time ever, addressing the opening session of the biannual Commonwealth Heads of Government meeting, which is taking place in Edinburgh, in October of this year.

In the past, the Queen has always attended the Heads of Government gathering, in a ceremonial capacity, but she has never spoken formally to the government leaders' meeting. However, now as in the past, the Queen will have a private session with the Prime Ministers from all countries that recognize her as sovereign. These personal meetings are not at all "formalities". For 44 years, the Queen has been personally acquainted with all the leaders of Commonwealth member states, as well as most other state leaders Also, for 44 years the Queen has had access to all important secret diplomatic dispatches of the Foreign Office and the secret reports of British Intelligence. This accumulated political knowledge puts her in a unique position in international affairs.

Leaks from British Foreign Office-linked circles, indicate that the Queen's high-profile appearance at the Edinburgh summit has been motivated, by a desire to further strengthen the role of the Commonwealth in international politics. This policy is being strongly encouraged by the Tony Blair government, which has a much more aggressive pro-Commonwealth orientation, than the previous John Major regime. [End quoting]

Isn't this interesting after reading what Commander Hatonn has written in the Front Page story of last week's *CONTACT* about the Monarchy.

Is the Queen cleaning up the mess around the throne in an effort to prevent the throne from falling? If so, I wouldn't bet on the chances of Prince Charles and Camella staying around long. After all, she has to get the sympathy of the people regarding Diana's murder—oops, death—and now I'm sure she can come up

with another sympathy-gathering way of disposing of her other chief embarrassments.

LUCENT JOINS DIGITAL TV EFFORT

From *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 8/13/97: [quoting]

Lucent Technologies Inc. said Tuesday that it will join Compaq Computer Corp., Intel Corp. and Microsoft Corp. to speed the convergence of personal computers and television sets, using digital technology. Lucent said that the four companies hope to develop affordably priced digital television products and services by the fall of 1998, allowing broadcasters to send video, audio and data transmissions to home televisions and personal computers. The company said it is developing a digital television receiver design that could be used with conventional broadcast, cable and eventually satellite receivers. [End quoting]

The Elite want all homes tied to a central computer someway and all families don't want a separate computer and wouldn't use it. Most people, however, will gladly accept a TV tied with an easy-to-use keyboard. **Shades of Orwell's 1984.**

THE CONTROLLED MEDIA: SINCE 1917!!!

From the INTERNET, SAFAN Internet Newsletter #632, 8/21/97: [quoting]

[Comment: There it is, in plain English! The following information gives some hint as to the power of the media, how public opinion can be easily molded, and gives some background why the mainstream media does not publicize a lot of information, or allow certain voices to be heard. It was retyped from a copy from the microfilm dept. of the San Diego Library downtown.]

THE CONGRESSIONAL RECORD FEBRUARY 9, 1917 PAGE 2947 & PAGE 2948:

Mr. Callaway: Mr. Chairman, under unanimous consent, I insert in the record at this point a statement showing the newspaper combination, which explains their activity in this war matter, just discussed by the gentleman from Pennsylvania.

Mr. Moore: "In March 1915, the J.P. Morgan interests, the steel, shipbuilding, powder interests, and their subsidiary organizations, got together 12 men high up in the newspaper world and employed them to select the most influential newspapers in the United States and sufficient number of them to control generally the policy of the daily press of the United States.

"These 12 men worked the problem out by selecting 170 newspapers, and then began, by an elimination process, to retain only those necessary for the purpose of controlling the general policy of the daily press throughout the country. They found it was only necessary to purchase the control of 25 of the greatest newspapers.

"The 25 papers were agreed upon; emissaries were sent to purchase the policy, national and international,

of these papers; an agreement was reached; the policy of the papers was bought, to be paid for by the month; an editor was furnished for each paper to properly supervise and edit information regarding the questions of preparedness, militarism, financial policies, and other things of national and international nature considered vital to the interest of the purchasers.

"This contract is in existence at the present time, and it accounts for the news columns of the daily press of the country being filled with all sorts of preparedness argument and misrepresentations as to the present condition of the United States Army and Navy and the possibility and probability of the United States being attacked by foreign foes.

"This policy also included the suppression of everything in opposition to the wishes of the interests served. The effectiveness of this scheme has been conclusively demonstrated by the character of stuff carried in the daily press throughout the country since March 1915. They have resorted to anything necessary to commercialize public sentiment and sandbag the national congress into making extravagant and wasteful appropriations for the Army and Navy under the false pretense that it was necessary. Their stock argument is that it is "patriotism". They are playing on every prejudice and passion of the American people."

[And it continues on in the Congressional Record.] [End quoting]

Indeed, there is "nothing new under the Sun". It's the same old game, played over and over again. It never fails to put humanity back into slavery. **History keeps repeating and we won't learn the easy way.**

SALT AND PARASITES

From THE WASHINGTON TIMES, National Weekly, 8/24/97: [quoting]

What's the silliest regulation in Washington?

Not long ago the General Accounting Office promised anonymity to all private companies in exchange for a few horror stories—descriptions of the most outrageous federal rules and regulations firms struggle to comply with.

"And what they said was extraordinary," says *Technopolitics* which will report a few of the findings next week.

The most bizarre story of all, however, involves a fish farm that needed to transport live fish in truck trailers. To keep the fish cool, the company added ice to the containers, along with some salt to kill off parasites.

"Sounds like a reasonable approach to keeping fish in hot weather," notes *Technopolitics*.

But not to the Food and Drug Administration, which cried that ice and salt were never approved as "drugs" for fish. So the fish farm was in violation of federal rules against using unapproved drugs. [End quoting]

"LORD, DID YOU SEND THIS DOG?"

Mail Carriers Often Need To Be Protected From Dogs. Not This One!

From ANGELS ON EARTH, May/June 1996, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

My husband, George, and I, with our four children, lived in government housing in 1957 while he was enrolled in seminary in New Orleans, La. Money was tight that Christmas, with George working only part-time, so I asked God to show me a way to add to our income. When an ad appeared in the newspaper asking for temporary mail carriers to work for 10 days. 2,000 people applied. Two hundred were selected—and I was one of them!

"Desire Street, Lord?" I asked when I got my assignment. Desire was only two blocks from our end of the project, but I always avoided it. I once went to shop in the big market there, but had to turn back because the street and sidewalk were blocked by big water- and debris-filled holes. There were also many small, dark bars along the way, and gangs of youths who stood around looking angry and bored. How would I survive the 10 days?

While saying my morning prayers on Day One, God spoke to me: "I am the Lord, the God of all flesh; is anything too hard for me?

Oh, no, Lord! With you, all things are possible. I kissed the kids good-bye and confidently walked out the door.

But as I stepped off the curb to cross the street, my reassurance dissolved.

Just then, I saw him. A dog. Big and mud-yellow. A beautiful animal. I had never seen him in our neighborhood before. He was sitting on the opposite corner, watching me.

"Hi, Boy!" I called. He got up and stood at my side. I stroked his head for a minute, then said, "I've got a job to do." Boy fell into stride beside me. I expected him to go bounding off at any second. But he walked with me the whole two blocks to Desire.

I held my breath and rounded the corner. Boy turned also, staying close. The dog went every step of the way along the route, even into the dismal bars.

After delivering the mail, Boy and I walked back to the corner opposite my street. There he sat down. I patted his head and crossed to the other side. He did not follow me. "Lord," I wondered aloud, "Did you send this dog?"

The second day Boy was there again, waiting on his corner. Each day, same spot, same procedure, never leaving my side, but never going further than the corner at the end of my workday. "He must be an angel

dog," I said to the family.

After making our rounds on Day 10, back at the corner, I hugged Boy's hard, thick neck and praised him. "Whoever you are, Boy," I said, "I love you." As usual he sat and watched me walk into our house.

The next morning I couldn't resist going out to look at Boy's spot. There was no sign of him.

His work too was done. —by Ali M. Gibson

CHAPTER 3

DARKEST SECRETS OF OUR TIME:

<u>A LETTER TO MY DARLING</u> DAUGHTER JOSEPHINE: PART II

Editor's note: Part I of this excellent historical narrative was presented in last week's CONTACT. We here continue with Part II.

One nice little point which is not to be overlooked is the astounding, well-authenticated fact that across the Mexican border is a standing mercenary army of near two million North Koreans, Iranian Shiites, Mexican and other equally ruthless elements, equipped with heavy Russian armour, tanks and troop-carriers under Russian command. While it is believed there exists an agreement for the partition of the world between a Communist Russia and a Zionist USA, it is a moot point as to who might jump the gun to seize the throne as top dog and master of the world. A Satanic conspiracy, historically at least three thousand years in the making, is a predictable game of treachery, on all sides, to the bitter end. History is apparently in the process of repeating itself on an ever greater and grander scale, as to who shall survive—if we fail to learn and face the facts of these horrendous political truths, and expose the equally horrific lies—if this country fails to remove the crawling mass of atrocious criminals in every sector of control.

In looking more closely at our own backyard, what is one to think of the President of the United States and many of his associates, belonging, and owing allegiance, to the secret Order of the "Skull and Bones" Society of Yale, with all its obvious Satanic and blood-ritual implications. Is it God in whom we trust, or is it Satan? George Bush, in his earlier days as president of Zapata Oil Company, undertook to organize for the Rockefeller cartel the transmission and flow of the South American drug traffic into the United States. He accomplished this by using his offshore oil-drilling platforms out in the Gulf of Mexico from which unmarked helicopters would fly the contraband secretly into the Homestead Air Force Base in Florida. His son Jeb is said to have died in the reception of the deadly traffic, as a result of addiction. Son Neil, having defrauded the people of two hundred million in the Savings and Loan scandal, was recently charged with major drug trafficking—until a Middle Eastern war made the matter conveniently irrelevant. The drug war could never be won, since it was from the beginning, a completely government-controlled monopoly. It is worth noting that the vast fortune of the Roosevelt family came from control of the opium trade in the golden triangle of the Far East. And the basic reason for the Vietnamese War was to protect America's drug interests in that area, involving as it does, many of the key members of the past and presently-existing government. George Bush is said to have three-hundred-and-fifty-million-dollars worth of hotel property in Panama, and fought an unauthorized war to take out the one man, Noriega, who knew all of Bush's darkest secrets—at the expense of the lives of four thousand Panamanians, whose city was reduced to a partial shambles. As if this were not enough, the oil-rich island State of Bahrain in the Persian Gulf off the coast of Saudi Arabia, has its oil rights predominantly owned by the Bush family, and Bahrain is to be the conveniently-located headquarters of the military command in the Gulf area. The first order of business in the CIA is for its master mind to cover up the tracks of a criminal record, and a presidential declaration of war in a far off corner of the world can be a very lucrative way of putting a lid on Pandora's box of nasty tricks.

The great threat to America, and to the lives of its people, lies in the appalling concentration of power in the hands of a President, to irreversibly betray his own country. The existing Presidential Executive Orders can be invoked overnight, on almost any pretext, to plunge this country into on absolute Communist Dictatorship, with no redress—except the citizens resort to the use of arms, and a resultant civil war of the government against its own people. That is why the incredible deception in the present thrust for gun control, is the only real obstacle left between our freedom and this promise of slavery for all, and literal extermination for the majority.

The "Global 2000 Plan" of the World Revolutionary Movement, to liquidate two-thirds of the human race, amounts to the murder of near four billion living beings. If our *Constitution* is allowed to fall to these Satanic conspirators, who can expect not to be counted as one of their victims. A draconian monetary devaluation and call-in of our existing currency, imminently in the works to occur, would rob the people of everything they possess in the exchange of one new note for every ten or one-hundred-dollar note held in possession or account [sound familiar: Russia]. The intent is to destroy our cash society with its privacy and freedom, with the introduction of a totally computerised system based on the use of the plastic card as the sole means of doing business, and on the number or mark of the "beast" assigned to each individual. The conspirators then have it in their power to decide who shall buy or sell, and by that means, who shall live or die. The Banker Zionists are afraid of one thing: that the mass populace might wake up and move upon them in knowledge of the truth, and vociferously claim the protection of the Constitution: that in every respect, it be the law of the land.

In December of 1990, the USA printed, free of cost, a new currency for the citizens of Russia and provided the expertise for its sudden imposition without warning. All fifty and one-hundred-ruble notes (above a very small margin) were declared illegal and worthless, and thus with a devalued currency, the whole nation was robbed blind [a few words are illegible]...is known to have resulted as the Soviet Union [being] moved onto a total war footing to become the most formidable military power on Earth today. There has been no Russian disarmament—while the people starve. We have been deliberately deceived by our own government and media into believing the greatest hoax and lie of all time. The apparatus is being restructured more firmly than ever, at the very moment we [are led to] believe it is falling apart. We have been deceived in magnificent deception, as in everything else.

The Global 2000 Plan for the removal of some four billion souls considered expendable by the International Khazar Zionists and Bankers, has already begun in earnest. AIDS was a purely man-made disease sanctioned by the World Health Organization. It was planned and developed at Fort Detrick in Maryland, USA, for the purpose of waging biological warfare against the people of this planet. It is an unnatural combination of bovine and sheep virus made virulent and deadly when crossed into the human system. It was simultaneously [a few words are illegible]...the world, placed into hepatitis vaccine, and targeted upon special groups. The disease is mutating rapidly, and one-hundred-million Africans (alone) are known to be carriers of this scourge. Other plagues based upon diphtheria and cholera are in the works, while at the University at Colorado Springs, research into virus strains more fearsome than any yet conceived—modern horrors intentionally being inflicted upon an unsuspecting world.

Not in all of history have quite so many lies been projected as in the scandalous escapade of the obscene war of genocide perpetrated in the Persian Gulf. Just thirty years ago, the Arab oil-producing countries were tricked into signing a note with the international Bankers, putting up their oil fields as collateral in exchange for the management and development of the oil refineries. When the price of oil was doubled by

OPEC, in which the United States is the chief but unknown partner, it was made a condition that all Araboil profits be invested in the US Banking system. These huge profits were put into holding companies, whose directors were told to loan it out to Third World countries, and get it lost. With the thirty-year period ending in 1990, the Arab countries were told they were bankrupt, and their note was called on the collateral.

The American military machine was ordered to occupy Saudi Arabia and assume all assets of the Arab world, on the pretext of rescuing Kuwait, after having encouraged Saddam to reclaim a territory formerly belonging to Iraq until the British seized it by force in quite recent times. A permanent army of occupation was needed by the World Zionists to forcibly hold down the Arab oil countries, one and all. Kuwait, with its notorious slave-trading Emirate, was a shabby excuse for an act of our own naked aggression. The loquacious lies of imaginary moral justification have never been equalled, for barefaced betrayal of Saddam, who for ten years had been close friend and recipient of aid from the United States. Iraq was betrayed ignominiously overnight on the orders of the Israeli Zionists whose major purpose is to destabilize the whole Arab world as they had previously done in the devastation of Lebanon, for the eventual seizure for themselves of the oil-rich Gulf in its entirety—before the Soviets get there first.

The so-called coalition within the framework of the United Nations was really put together by nothing more than criminal coercion and ill-concealed bribery, with not a shred of truth or justice, that did not have to be secretly censored from world opinion by a treacherously controlled worldwide media and press. For instance, the crime attributed to Saddam, of the Kurds gassed in their mountain villages was, in fact, perpetrated by the Israelis who later took inordinate care to fly in and film the horrors, portrayed on television for worldwide distribution.

A year or two ago, in the Cameroons of West Africa, a remote African village was said to have been overwhelmed by a mysterious cloud of poison gas from an adjacent lake, from which most of the inhabitants died a terrible death. Again, this was an Israeli experiment, supported and rewarded by the United States, in the testing of the effects of a neutron bomb which had been placed in the lake itself, and remotely detonated. An Israeli delegation of scientists and politicians flew in within a matter of hours to observe the results of their handiwork, on the pretext of humanitarian concern. An obviously discernible pattern of immensely clever deception repeats itself over and over again, in all of these important though seemingly isolated events. The Persian Gulf War is no exception. It is simply replete with the most sickening lies ever told.

It should be recalled that Iraq never so much as joined battle, nor offered defence with the use of any of her Russian-controlled superweapons, against the total aggression of one-hundred-thousand air-strikes aimed at the destruction of her cities and the women and children of a civilian population. Estimates of the casualties, sustained in a matter of a few weeks, certainly equaled the losses suffered in our own four long years of the American Civil War. Six hundred thousand or more dead, implies that twice that number are maimed or wounded. The continuing death toll of infants and young children as well as civilians, from starvation, wounds and disease, cannot fail to bring the count of mortality to at least a million deaths.

The American public does not seem to know that after the "cease-fire" and an attempted surrender, the United States army buried alive twelve thousand Iraqi soldiers in their trenches, using tanks deployed with earthmoving equipment, and that we decimated one-hundred-and-fifty-thousand soldiers and civilians

fleeing from Kuwait and Basra, in what has been described by our pilots as an aerial "turkey-shoot". The shells and bombs rained upon Iraq were uranium-tipped nuclear weapons, and have left rubble and ruins so intensely radioactive that a further half-million of that land's inhabitants are expected to die in the next few years. It was not enough to bomb the hospitals, water-works, electric plants and civilian bomb-shelters.

What does this say for the moral principles of all who supported this tragic infamy, if this is not genocide and the most frightening level of heartless cruelty? What does it say of our government who do these dread acts with cold calculation, while going to unprecedented lengths to conceal their wanton criminality from the people of his country and the world? And what does it say of the defiance of every law of God's Creation, if not to admit we have blindly allowed the Satanic Force of evil to rule over us, and to perpetuate absolute evil everywhere.

The Israli Zionists, as a matter of fact, had desperately sought to launch, on December the 3rd of 1990, a preemptive nuclear attack upon Russia from behind the confusion and screen of the American military forces in the Saudi desert, and had to be bought off with a total of a twenty-billion-dollar bribe, to refrain from starting the Third Nuclear World War. Virtually every subsequent Shuttle and major rocket launching is an attempt to get a satellite into space orbit and keep it there long enough to monitor a "first-strike" on the most critical of the Soviet targets, and it is these satellites which the Russians have consistently removed or destroyed.

Indeed, for that matter, our Shuttle disaster was no accident. It was targeted from space with laser weaponry, simply and only because, in violation of our agreements, the fateful craft carried an awesome nuclear payload into space, concealed behind the facade of a school teacher and the brave members of its civilian crew. Remember the scramble and search for the bits and pieces, or rather, the sea hunt for retrieval of the nuclear warhead? Could this tragedy not have something in common with an earlier Korean civilian airliner forced down upon a frozen lake while on a spying mission over one of Russia's most sensitive military areas? And what of Kal 007, another Korean airliner packed with civilian passengers, that somehow managed, with all the marvels of navigational technology, to "wander off course" and with pinpoint accuracy to fly over one of the Soviet's most secret space centers. And then, after being chased off, making a ninety-degree turn over a second similar installation, before reputedly being shot down into the sea. The ludicrous absence of any identifiable wreckage, and an unexplained twelve-minute continued flight record after the lurid media account of its having been blown to pieces, strongly suggests it too was forced down upon Soviet territory and impounded in impenetrable silence, and was the subject of another media story of anything but the truth.

The Gulf War may very well be considered to be the opening skirmish in the greater war planned by the Zionist World Revolutionaries, and it was brought summarily to a screeching halt on direct orders from Soviet Russia, given to Bush, to terminate warlike activities at once, or else. Bush and his advisors knew better then to disobey, and a surprised General Schwarzkopf who boasted of being able to "annihilate" Iraq, was stopped short in his own tracks, brought home and put out to grass. Bush and Gorbachev had an agreement, among other things, not to initiate nuclear warfare before 1992. The Israeli Zionists who cannot wait for that day, and have been the pushers of the world's buttons, have had to be pacified literally with mountains of gold, for after all, they have intimate knowledge of every skeleton in Bush's closet—and there are many of them.

It had been an Israeli intention to have the US military force in the Gulf exposed to enormous casualties and returned home in heaven knows how many hundred thousand body-bags. This action was to incite hatred of the American people for the Arab world, so as to remove any future opposition to Israeli intransigence in the planned seizure of the Arabian Peninsula. Saddam, it is known, became wise to this intent and, in order not to compromise his compatriots, chose to neither join nor give battle, and in consequence, the innocent people of Iraq were savaged with merciless Satanic fury.

The weaponry that could have been used included a diabolical invention which ignites the atmosphere in instantaneous combustion of its oxygen, capable of incinerating an entire army to a crisp. Another awe-some weapon common to the major powers ignites, through laser-beam technology, the seeded radioactive atmospheric belt to produce a brilliancy of sustained light of such terrible intensity as to permanently blind for life all persons unprotected to its exposure. The very fact that radioactive intensity has increased over the United States to alarming and dangerous levels, due to continuous nuclear testing in Nevada of as many as forty lesser test explosions every month and no less than seven major detonations in 1991 alone, of magnitude "five" on the Richter scale, leads to the conjecture that these detrimental effects are deliberate and intentional. After all, those capable of the ferocity of a "Gulf War" would have no compunction in actually targeting this country, if they could have us believe we were being attacked by hostile extraterrestrials from outer space when, in fact, they themselves would be the criminal instigators as always. The mighty Hosts of truth, love and light could then be falsely blamed for the total economic collapse of America and the world, engineered by the very forces of darkness and evil to implement their Satanic New World Order.

The same result could also be achieved by artificially triggering the San Andreas Fault-line to produce a cataclysmic disaster involving the entire West Coast of California, and attributing the impending economic collapse to the unpredictability of nature. In any case it is always wise to know what the Devil is playing at, and to have at all times, in car and home, and within reach, a pair of "Jackson" model WS-85 welding goggles (costing less than fifteen dollars) fitted with a fixed number 5- or 8-intensity dark glass, and an additional number 10- or 12-intensity dark glass slipped into the hinged screen which can be pulled down when brilliancy increases to total magnitude. This would get you home, for else you would be blind, to draw house curtains tight and live in the darkest hole until the light of ten-thousand Suns recedes. A quickchange response electronic welding helmet, reacting at 1/500th of a second to changes of light up to 13intensity, by "Jackson" model HSL-100-EQC, costs about three-hundred-and-thirty dollars, as state-ofthe-art protection against these malevolent beings, and as a means of rescuing others. This is simply a weapon of ultimate mass terror, and it could be used in the desperate attempt to make people distrust and repudiate the Shining Host of the Christ, who come in great benevolence and peace. There are no limits as to what this conspiratorial Elite will do to wrest control of this planet, and to prevent the progression of its evolutionary life-wave. Like a good scout, it is well indeed to be prepared. What do you think of a shadowed government that prescribes such crimes of unspeakable horror upon any people, but this time upon you? You must know your enemy, the wolverines dressed up like little, reassuring "Red Riding Hoods".

Now for the Catholic Church, which must be considered one of the most powerful of political organizations. From the beginning, as with all organized religions, there have been those who have manipulated, programmed and moulded the minds of its multifarious flock, probably a great deal more in serving their own earthly interests than in promoting spiritual enlightenment. The capture of the Church, and all Churches,

is a great prize to the Luciferian takeover of the world. As soon as Luciani, the recent "thirty-three day" Pope, was recognized as the first and only man of indomitable integrity who would clean up the Papal Church body radically, he was murdered by poisoning. His successor, Pope Paul John the second, carries the Satanic cross in procession—wherein the arms of the cross are grotesquely bent downwards. Thirty thousand Jesuits have infiltrated the Church to promote "secular-humanism" and the theological Marxism of "Liberation Theology" as it is called, and they have been successful in destabilizing the troubled continent of South America.

The financial dealings of the Vatican Bank have been brought into the light of day to expose the subtle ties and connections with the Mafia and the criminal underworld, to equal any comparable scandal anywhere, involving murder and close alliance with the ultra-covert P1 Lodge of the Masonic Order in Italy. Nostradamus indicates, whether it be proved to be true or not, that the Pope who is the present incumbent, and his short-lived successor, will both have dramatic terminations to their papacy, and then be followed by a French Pope who will be the active and secret accomplice of the "antichrist" in the final demise of the Church as a political body.

The accelerating movement towards chaotic world revolution and upheaval, led secretly by hypocritically insane and immoral leaders in an explosion of evil, is the expression of bitter hatred between two rival factions, both of whom plan to enslave and rule the world. The Khazar-Jewish Zionists, incorporating the International Bankers of the Illuminati, control Israel, Britain, America, and Australia, with a hold over China, from their headquarters in London, Tel-Aviv and New York. These Zionists are working on bacteriological and chemical weapons of mass destruction, and are dependent on the power of monetary control, political corruption, and treachery. The Communist Jewish-Khazar juggernaut of Soviet Russia is in virtual control with an emerging Germany of all of Europe, the Far East and possibly Japan. Russia possesses the greatest military force the world has ever seen, has absolute control of space, and a strategy of grand deception feigning weakness in a massive peace offensive to conceal her real intent which, for her own survival, is to have the world in totality. China is presently being built up as a super power with American technology to challenge Russia in any future conflict, or falling-out, in the agreed division of the world.

The past record shows the Bush family to have been involved in the development not only of Communist Soviet Russia from 1917 onwards, but also of Nazi Germany, and now secretly of China. While the tacit agreement is for the Soviets to have the European hegemony, and Zionist USA and Israel gobble up all of North, Central, and South America, and hold on to the Middle East if they can, both sides maneuver to back-stab the other and take the whole works, while at the same time, collaborating in mutual accord to set the world stage for a single World Order which, naturally, they both intend to rule so, we have towards that end, the United States building the largest truck-and-tank factory in the world, at the Kama River Plant in Russia, and which today is being computer-updated and modernized to take goodly care of any European nation that might break for freedom. We also built the highway from Russia into Afghanistan to facilitate its invasion and overthrow, and another highway into Burma, to allow the lucrative traffic in the opium trade to be quadrupled.

Exxon, for that matter, during the last war, used its tankers flying the Panamanian flag to covertly refuel the German Atlantic submarine fleet in a rendezvous off the Canary Islands. These treacherous acts are, in reality, the norm in a world which is very different from what most good people accustomed to a Christian

ethic have been led to believe. The truth of these matters, and they are legion, needs to be known, if freedom is ever to be recovered, and to ameliorate the disastrous consequences if any part of that freedom should be lost.

When it comes to beneficence, there is only One that truly gives and provides all, throughout amazing realms of cosmic diversity. Socialism, however, leads directly into the tyranny of Communism, since it is based on the same principle of taking everything.

[To be continued.]

CHAPTER 4

OUR WORLD ECONOMY: FORMULA FOR DISASTER

by Ray Bilger 9/5/97

The September 2, 1997 issue of *CONTACT* ran an article on page 8 from the *Executive Alert Service*, which is an offering of *Executive Intelligence Review*, P.O. Box 17390, Washington, D.C. 20041. That article stated in part that "The factors contributing to escalating instability across the globe are in place for a cataclysmic rupture, most likely this October (1997) latest." The article goes on to make many excellent points, but there appears to be even more to the story that has not yet been told.

The article also discussed Steven Weber's thesis on the "New Economy" which appeared in the July-August 1997 edition of *Foreign Affairs*, the publication of the New York-based Council on Foreign Relations (C.F.R.), which is the U.S.A. branch of the British-based Royal Institute of International Affairs (R.I.I.A.).

Although *Foreign Affairs* clearly states up front that "The articles in *Foreign Affairs* do not represent any consensus of beliefs... We do not accept responsibility for the views expressed in any article, signed or unsigned, that appears in these pages...", those who closely follow world events should be aware that *Foreign Affairs* magazine usually gives us a pretty clear indication of what we can expect to encounter shortly down the road. Steven Weber's article certainly seems to fit within that context, but he uses a large dose of doublespeak mixed with misinformation to get his story across.

Mr. Weber starts out by poo-pooing Alan Greenspan's comment (before the Senate Banking Committee in February of 1997) that "History counsels caution" about "visions of such 'new eras' that, in the end, have proven to be a mirage." While Greenspan's remarks may very soon prove themselves to be true, Weber contends (basically by distorting facts) that "a growing body of evidence suggests that the world may indeed be witnessing" the evolution of this "New Economy". Let us examine some possible reasons why Mr. Weber might be intentionally misinforming us, and then glimpse some expected ramifications of current conditions.

Weber next lays out, in a few short sentences, some background information which grossly misstates historical facts regarding the causes of World War I, The Great Depression, the end of the gold standard in 1933, and World War II. His oversimplifications do, however, seem to portray events in exactly the manner which our World Controllers, here represented by the C.F.R., would like us to believe things happened.

Mr. Weber then states that "Thirty years later, the oil shock and ensuing stagflation of the 1970s [remember waiting in those long lines for gasoline?] forced energy importers to compete intensely for export markets..." Really? According to Col. Fletcher Prouty (Ret.), who was in a real position to know exactly what happened in the 1970s, there was no shortage of oil. Prouty states that there was plenty of oil, but the big super-tankers remained just offshore in the Middle East until the price of gasoline rose to where they wanted it, then they moved in for the kill, loaded up, and the big oil companies reaped huge profits (which, by the way, they continue to enjoy to this day).

And just where did Prouty get that information? From a man he met in England who owns a fleet of those super-tankers. There was and is no competition as Weber speaks of it. It was and is simply a case of absolute control of resources for the purpose of controlling the people.

Mr. Weber continues to oversimplify the reality of how business cycles work in a feeble attempt to paint things as those who control the world would like us to believe they exist. This does not change the reality of things, but it is a sad irony that there appear to be many folks who believe Mr. Weber's inaccurate assessments.

Now his article starts to get very interesting, if one can read between the lines. Mr. Weber states that "No one is precisely sure why business cycles occur. Modern business-cycle theory is essentially a series of stories about cyclical responses to external shocks. The real questions are where shocks come from and what turns a shock into a business cycle." Is this true? Well, we certainly have been told a series of stories!

Those aware of how the masses are controlled by the Tavistock Method of applying psychological shocks and/or stressful events should know that those shocks come in a thousand different forms administered in a thousand different ways, and that what Mr. Weber is talking about here comprises but one of those ways, albeit an important one, because of the fact that whoever controls the economy, i.e. the money, controls the masses!

He goes on: "Shocks, however, can also come from the supply side. An embargo, a war, or even a fluctuation in weather could dramatically change the price of important inputs." No kidding! Mr. Weber has part of the story correct, but a half-truth can also be construed as a half-lie. He ignores the fact that our weather is now (for the most part) controlled in order to shock and, thus, control the people. Wars and embargos are shocks too, also totally controlled for the same reason.

It might be more accurate to say, for example, that heating oil prices may be raised, then the cold is pumped in on us (like the "Siberian Express") by those who control the weather, and the heating oil producers then reap incredible profits for themselves.

Mr. Weber finally starts to get to the heart of the matter: "Activity in standard financial instruments traded on exchanges (currency futures, stock market options, interest rate futures) doubled between 1992 and 1994. These new financial products spread and diversify risk." Great! Now we're spreading and diversifying our financial problems. This activity includes trading in derivatives contracts, which caused the bankruptcy of Orange County, California in 1995. Just another shock to help numb the people even further.

Mr. Weber notes that foreign exchange trading has grown most quickly: "No one knows exactly how large that market is, but daily turnover exceeded \$1 trillion per day sometime back in 1993." Read that again. That's \$1 trillion traded worldwide every day. Mind boggling, isn't it? After reading Mr. Weber's article, we might begin to believe that no one really knows why any of this is happening.

Does it appear to anyone else that our world economy is way out on a limb and supported only by hot air? It's like a house of cards built all the way to the sky, and the winds of change are starting to blow!

Now Mr. Weber himself goes out on a limb: "The doomsday argument, advanced by writers like William Grieder [sic], that complex markets might act in synergy and come crashing down together is simply not supported by compelling theoretical logic or empirical evidence." (Mr. Weber even misspelled Greider's name.) Is this doublespeak? One gets the feeling that Mr. Weber may have his head in the sand. Hasn't he ever heard of the Crash of 1929? That was child's play compared to what we're in for, unless we can somehow take back the reins of government to The People! It seems more likely that Mr. Weber's comment is cleverly designed to make us believe everything is really okay.

William Greider is the author of *Secrets of the Temple*, a highly acclaimed national best-seller which traces the inner workings of the Federal Reserve. Even more powerful and compelling is his book *Who Will Tell the People* (1992, Simon & Schuster), which reveals the realities of power in Washington today. Mr. Greider has been a reporter for more than thirty-five years, part of that time as Assistant Managing Editor of the *Washington Post*, though it is doubtful they would want him back now, considering his outspokenness in exposing the high-level corruption that passes for business-as-usual in that city. Mr. Greider knows whereof he speaks.

Whether or not Mr. Weber is intentionally trying to misinform the reader is not known. It is possible that he could be that naive about the rude awakening planned for the masses of the world. But the C.F.R. is certainly aware of the impending diabolical cataclysmic devastation soon to be lowered on us!

Those who understand the Federal Reserve know that it is a totally illegal and unconstitutional operation. It is a private corporation owned by international bankers. Our *Constitution*, at *Article I*, Section 8, Clause 5, states that only the Congress shall have the power to coin money and regulate the value thereof. Now foreigners are doing that for us, and that's treason! Our Congress abdicated its authority in 1913 when it passed the Federal Reserve Act.

Since 1913, inflation and depression have been scientifically controlled. When the stock market dropped 247 points on Friday, August 15, 1997, it was being intentionally manipulated. That was the largest single drop in the Dow since the 508-point loss on October 19, 1987.

When the stock market jumped 257 points on Tuesday, September 2, 1997, it was, again, intentionally being manipulated. This was the largest single point gain by the Dow and eclipsed the previous record gain of 186 points set on October 21, 1987, yet another day of total manipulation. Is there something they are trying to remind us about—linked with October, ten years ago?

Nothing "just happens" today, especially in the vast and complex financial markets and the world economy. Everything, however, is carefully planned, orchestrated and executed to look like it just happened that way. But the whole thing is rigged. It's fixed, and we common folks are the intended losers.

On Tuesday, August 19, 1997, the Federal Reserve's Federal Open Market Committee met and decided to leave short-term interest rates unchanged. Those rates will probably remain unchanged even after the bottom drops out and we're left with nothing. They will pretend they didn't see it coming, or that there was nothing they could do about it anyway. There's something they could do about it, all right: They could get the hell out of the United States of America and let the Treasury Department issue interest-free money, as John F. Kennedy tried to get done, and we would instantly have no more national debt!

The recent wild swings of the stock market are simply more shocks designed to condition us for even bigger swings. When psychological shocks are correctly applied, they are slowly increased in regular increments. Perhaps next week it will be 500 points up and down. Then 1,000 points. Just so that it looks like it is not being manipulated. The Elite One World Controllers must certainly be laughing at us. How much will we put up with before we give up? Or before we simply say STOP?

The international bankers who designed and operate the Federal Reserve are sure smart. Their Federal Reserve Notes are worthless, backed by nothing. They already own us (because we let them) lock, stock and barrel, and after the big collapse we'll have less than nothing!

Will October 1997 be the month when the World Controllers collapse the world economy? The stage is now set for the house of cards to fall. The whole thing is a formula for disaster.

Now that their plan has been exposed, will they change it? Perhaps. But it will not be one isolated event anyway. A collapse will most likely be predicated upon a number of events which, when taken together, will look like a row of dominos going down. It only takes one event to trigger the chain reaction and there are many possible triggers ready.

If we do not immediately act to stop this madness, at least be prepared to ride out the storm. The masses are awakening by leaps and bounds to the truth of what has been going on for far too long. If the One World Controllers do not soon act, then we may. And that may mean they will lose their chance to act!

Stick around. The rest of this year is sure to be very interesting. And then we have 1998. And then 1999...

To all the Elite One World Controllers who may be reading this: Hope you're on the winning team. You do remember who wins this game, don't you?

CHAPTER 5

THE NEWS DESK, A SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 8/30/97

CODEX: FDA'S ATTEMPT TO REGULATE ALL NATURAL HEALTH PRODUCTS, ETC.

CALL FOR URGENT ACTION

From the INTERNET, 8/97: [quoting]

We are facing a huge new threat to our health freedoms. This one makes the FDA's attempts to regulate us into submission look like a church picnic. It's called CODEX, short for Codex Alimentarius, the United Nation's WHO (World Health Organization) Commission on Regulation of Health Services and Products. The German delegation to the commission has put forward a proposal which requires the following:

- 1. No dietary supplement can be sold for prophylactic (therapeutic or preventive) use.
- 2. No dietary supplement sold as a food can exceed potency (dosage) levels set by the commission.
- 3. Codex regulations for dietary supplements would become BINDING ON ALL SIGNATORIES TO THE GATT (General Agreement on Trade and Tariff) TREATY, and the U.S. is one of them. There is no escape clause that allows a nation to set its own standards.
- 4. All new dietary supplements would automatically be BANNED unless they go through the Codex approval process, which would be very expensive and only slightly less comprehensive than the current FDA approval process (typically 10 years and \$250 million dollars).

Germany, the Scandinavian countries, and now Canada have rolled over and submitted to Codex. In Germany, you cannot buy supplements except in a drug store and at prices 3-20 times what they cost here in the U.S. In Canada, possession of DHEA without a prescription is punishable by the same penalties as the possession of crack cocaine.

The weapon of choice is creeping regulation, redefinition of supplements as OTC (over the counter) products, which will require licensing fees so exorbitant that a small health food store may need over a million dollars just to pay for the right to sell its products. This will put most stores out of business. Businesses will have to be well-capitalized enough to survive this regulatory onslaught.

CODEX is being pushed through by the largest pharmaceutical companies in the world, who are looking to mop up after the bloodbath and take over the supplement industry. You will only be able to buy patented, regulated, extremely costly products, and not in sufficient quantity to do you much good. Many, many herbs and supplements now available will disappear, to be found only on the black market while companies such as PharmaPrint Inc. of Irvine, CA move ahead with their efforts to patent phytomolecules

of favorite herbal products such as saw palmetto, echinacea, and many others. These would become pharmaceuticals, available only by prescription. And, no surprise, PharmaPrint is backed by the World Health Organization, of which the Codex Commission is a part. PharmaPrint is currently licensing its technologies to other pharmaceutical companies to sell its products.

Now, here's the scary part. Large pharmaceuticals have been planning this for years, and while we thought we were "winning one for the Gipper" by passing DSHEA, embedded in that act were clauses that could spell doom for the industry, primarily labeling and regulatory clauses. Large pharmaceuticals are currently buying up American and Canadian health food companies (e.g. Nature's Way), positioning themselves to move in as early as September next year, when the Codex Commission meets for a final vote on the German proposal. Large pharmaceuticals are licking their chops at the prospect of taking over the multibillion dollar supplement industry and for the next century.

Don't let them do it. This is an 11th-hour stand, but we can turn them back. Contact your legislators now and tell them they <u>must defeat Codex</u>. The FDA's webpage already states its intention to "harmonize" with CODEX, but with legislative help and public outcry, we can defeat these bureaucrats. Your elected representatives voted for the GATT treaty but they neglected to read the fine print that allows the pharmaceutical companies this much power over you. If you work in the health food industry, your job or your business is on the line. If you work in health care, you will have to make some choices about who you stand with—health freedom or smothering regulation and submission to the dictates of a foreign and domestic consortium of big businesses that seek to control you.

John Hammell, founder of International Advocates for Health Freedom (IAHF) can be reached at (800)333-2553, fax (954) 929-0507. He and others prevented the German delegation from vaulting from step 2 to step 6 in the 8-step approval process in June. By September next year, though, without huge resistance from the world community, this proposal could become binding on the US Government and you personally. John is organizing this resistance as we speak, and others like those on this e-mail queue must help too. John needs financial support very badly, as he is doing this virtually alone and unfunded. Call him and ask how you can help. We are in dire need of your assistance, whatever it is you can do or give at this time.

You MUST call your legislators and educate them. There is no time to lose. At the moment, call Dr. Kenneth Fisher, Director of the Commission on Dietary Supplement Labeling and tell him you demand that he extend the period for public comment on the 77-page draft proposal through October.

Call him at (202) 401-5811, fax (202) 205-0463, e-mail <cdsl@birchdavis.com>. <u>Do it now!</u> This commission is holding final hearings WITHOUT PUBLIC COMMENT on Thurday of this week, August 14. The implications of this draft proposal are mind-boggling, because they recommend ways for all supplements to be redefined as OTC products, thus blurring the distinction between drugs and foods and subjecting all products so defined to licensing fees that will put just about everybody out of business so the pharmaceutical companies can move in! This could destroy a huge industry, putting tens of thousands of people out of work and coopting your freedoms. Contact me and I'll fax you a form letter you can send to Dr. Fisher protesting his bureaucratic indiscretions.

Don't be in denial. This is really happening. This is the greatest threat to health freedom the world has ever known. Who will you stand with? What will you stand for? How much do you care about your children's

world twenty years from now?

If you need literature, call me at (541) 488-2711, e-mail me at <susumago@mind.net> or fax me a note at (541) 488-8685. Then, take that literature and make copies. Hand it out to everyone. FORWARD THIS MESSAGE TO EVERYBODY YOU CAN THINK OF. CALL JOHN HAMMELL AND CHAT TO GET THE CLEAREST PICTURE OF WHAT IS HAPPENING. SEND JOHN HAMMEL DONATIONS TO HIRE ASSISTANTS.

Contact your newspaper, talk shows, television producers, magazines, congresspeople, get e-mail mailing lists and send this message on. Talk to health practitioners and get them to speak up. The worst thing you can do is to be silent while this is happening.

Health, Hope, Joy & Healing: May you Prosper, even as your Soul Prospers

Jennifer [End quoting]

CHAPTER 6

LITTLE CROW SPEAKS AT AUGUST GATHERING PART I 8/16/97

Editor's note: The following is a transcription of Little Crow addressing those gathered for several days in Tehachapi during this year's Mountain Festival. Little Crow's words offer insight and often humorous respite in these difficult times. We are most pleased to be able to share his wisdom with you, our readers, our relations.

Little Crow: Where did all of you people come from? My gosh, I'm sorry I'm late, but we left Costa Mesa just a little bit before 12:00. We hit the freeway, so I thought we made pretty good time in getting here, and I appreciate the invitation and invite to come, and the only thing I have to ask is: What am I supposed to talk about? What would you like me to talk about?

E.J. Ekker: Well, this is August.

Little Crow: Yes, sir.

E.J. Ekker: And it is a strong time mirroring a change, and you know more about that than anybody, and we would like to hear what you have to say about it.

Little Crow: Well, whatever it is you think I know, I'll be glad to share.

Audience: (Laughter.)

Little Crow: Where we use the word change, I'm always kind of—I used to think about change as being marked by specific events, August 16th, 17th, you know, the Harmonic Convergence ten years ago, etc. But as I have gotten older and have experienced other things since first meeting E.J. and Doris, and then, subsequently, the Commander, it's become quite evident to me that change occurs in every breath that I am given. And so, it also became abundantly clear that change was a cyclical thing and it would occur whether I want to have it happen or not; whether I wanted to recognize it or not, it would occur.

And I began to look at history and I began to look at other things around me, as if I was filled with disbelief. And I needed to somehow give myself assurances that this is really what it was, even after my elders had taught me patiently to look at things as they are and remember that these things have happened before, that it just simply isn't something that's happened for the first time and that change is a constant. It occurs every time I breathe. So I began to try to apply that principle, more so, maybe, in the last four years or so.

But, at the time, ten years ago when the Harmonic Convergence was the rage, so to speak, and everybody was running around stacking crystals and bee-bees, and everything else (*audience laughter*) you know, getting ready for the alignment. And going to poor Sedona and just inundating that place with all kinds of power. I'm going to try not to swear today, because it ruins my image. (*Audience laughter*.) It's been said to ruin my image, so I don't really want to do that. (*Prolonged audience laughter*.) I'm going to be

very nice and try not to use any words. But people were really inundating the vortex, the really special vortexes, and going all over and just getting under foot and in the way and the poor, indigenous people around there were just shaking their heads: "Oh, my God, I'm glad this won't happen every year."

But, as it's been every year, people still celebrate this event in such as Tehachapi. Here we are, you know, here we are. And the things were to begin to happen at that time, and the things that have happened since then, we use that as a mark, as a calendar mark, as a linear mark, so to speak, because everything follows in a linear perspective. So that was a time when all of the processing began to happen, and to us, and enlightenment, and all the other things, the Aquarian Age.

And so, we need to have, it seems like as human beings, these kinds of catastrophic or really moving events before we believe anything is going to take place. When I look at the oral culture where I come from, and as an interpreter of that, I find that these kinds of events happen every breath. One minute somebody is knocking on the door, the next instant somebody is talking on the phone, the next minute I'm driving to the store and I'm enraged by the fellow drivers; it's just that everything is going along and happening every second, every moment, and I'm the only one who chooses to make it an anniversary or something significant by my need, by my need as a human being.

And I've been hopeful that for the last twenty years, my needs have been consistent with the needs of my community—with the needs of my community. And so, we have come together here and we have done a ritual, and that ritual is travel here. And the ceremony is sitting here listening and sharing and partaking—that's a ceremony. The ritual perspective was to get here, in this time of the ten years of the alignment and the conversion. We have been participating in a community ritual.

Now, not all of us have recognized the significance of participating in it, because for most of us, we come from cultures where taking and borrowing and buying and adapting and transformating and all of that, just as a natural way of life. It's just something that we do. We just take it and use it because it sounds practical and it seems like it works, and we don't ask anybody who it belonged to or what was it about. We just take it and do it, and so that's what we find ourselves also marked with, sometimes, is that, by participating in a community, we sometimes fail to realize what we have really done.

I remember when E.J. and Doris first moved up here, there was an influx of people on a gradual basis all coming up here to Tehachapi. And, I sat back and I watched, and I'm going, "Oh, formulation of community. A community is being formed." And I'm not sure if people recognize the issue of community and formation of community. And that by doing that—by doing that—moving into the community realm and participating in the sharing of those significant others in the community, and everybody became a significant other. And by participating in the sharing of the compassion and wisdom and whatever else was shared that you took on a responsibility, and I recognize that as I'm talking about change—that, by recognizing the aspect of change, I also now become accountable for change, for the things that I do and say and feel and believe. And that by being part of this community I also have taken on a responsibility and an accountability by participating in the ritual and the ceremonies of this community here in Tehachapi, and that anything that I have done over the past ten years that may strengthen me as an individual in whatever my predatory self-interest might be, whatever my needs might be. And we all have predatory self-interest; there is not one of us here who is void of predatory self-interest—that whatever I have done to strengthen myself must be for the community because it is my responsibility.

And so, I kind of come and share that with you today, that if you are thinking about being part of this community, whether you live in West Virginia or Virginia, South Carolina, Hawaii, or wherever you live, Canada, that if you are investing in being part of this community, you must also invest in its responsibilities and its commitment. Because that's what you did on your own, you made the choice. You may not have known that was part of it, but it was part of it because without community you have nothing; you have no base, you have no structure, you have no foundation, you have nothing to do for—then you are only doing for yourself, which is the ultimate of predatory self-interest, which is greed, consumerism, materialism, etc., etc. And you're not doing for the service of anyone but yourself. You're not doing for the service of the community, which in part serves all people within the community.

Everyone within the community receives the application of service from the community itself and from those who direct the community, those who are looked to as leaders within the community. And so, in hope that you would foment on that change that has occurred for you, whether you were aware of it or not, as I have—and look for it to do what I can, when I can. And here lies my faith and prayer for this community on a daily basis, by offering my prayers for those that I know here, those that I do not know, those that I've met, and those that I will never meet, by simply praying for *all of my relations*.

You've been through some trying episodes here. A lot of things have happened, and they have been marked on the calendar and in the books and in the logs and on the tape. They have been chronicled and, therefore, become part of the history or archives of this particular place here, this community. And where it goes from there is dependent upon all of you who participate, and that you might recognize that within you lies the force, within you lies the power to do what is necessary to be done. That strength, that recognition of power, that acceptance of responsibility is only yours. It can't be given to you by Commander. It can't be given to you by E.J. or Doris or anybody else. It can only be given to you by an acceptance.

I'm going to take a long breath here. (While the tape is changed.)

I'm getting permission to breathe. (*Laughter in the audience while Little Crow is given permission to breath by one present.*) Thank you. Thank you so much. Get that guy's number will you?

And can only give in to ourselves by our acceptance of it. And so, when I look around, I came through the door and went, "Wow, look at this. What a process."

Coming up here I was wondering what it was that I could really share with you that for me and my need would have substance because you fulfill my need, your being here and my being able to come and be with you. That fulfills my need, my predatory self interest. It gives me my purpose, the fulfillment of my purpose is to share with you a few simple things, a few simple words, concepts and ideas, which I believe are paramount to anything.

If you talk about the community of Heaven if you are a devoted Christian and believe in Heaven and the works of Heaven, that's your right and your place. If you believe in the supreme realization of enlightenment, that you will reach that principle of enlightenment and that's your place, that's your supreme right. If you believe in the sacredness of your being as you sit as you are and as you are created that is your right and collectively I honor and respect that. I respect all the ways in which people have because all of the

ways are right. It is what we do with the rightness of our ways, of our perceptions, that is important here on the process on this planet and in the place we have to vector here on Earth.

It's what you do here in Tehachapi, it's what you do in your community, it's what you do here in your work and your job here if you have a job here, and your connectedness wherever you might be from, but your connectedness to this place and the ideas and the words. Whether you are in total agreement or not is not important. It's the fact that you are still connected, related, whether you choose to be or not. Then, when you really choose to be, then you become involved, you become physically involved, mentally involved, emotionally involved, spiritually involved, because it becomes that type of a process. You have a working community. A working community. Anything that you do aside from or apart from and detached from doesn't really work unless you use the benefit of that to sustain and help sustain your community.

We have passed the time, the time has changed when the individual and ruggedness of the individual and for the individual's sake, I, I, I, I, me, me, me has gone. It can no longer be that because the only way we can survive and will survive is through the harmonious balance of community and the realization that we must all find a way in which to live together and put aside our grievances, speak openly and honestly. Put aside the grievances and the pettiness and the anger, as you heard on my tape on the 12th, I had no more room for anger: it had been burned out of me. I had no more room for hatred or animosity or judgment; it was that I didn't have time for that anymore.

All that I did have time for was to seek and to speak with as many as I could or can or will about the issues, the issue of compassion, to find and to see within your self the sacredness of which you look for, to see the glory of the Sun rise within your smile and your eyes, and within your inner self to feel the power of the ocean pull and pull within you and the pull of the moons and the planets, knowing that when you cough or sneeze or when you breathe you move a star, you move a planet, you move through the galaxy.

More recently brought to me in the experiences in December, during that time of the sixth death that I went through, was the moving through space, the moving through what I call the multiple multiple universes and galaxies, moving through sound, moving through spirit and moving through energy. It wasn't just an empty place with nothing because this space here where my hand is and what I grab is alive. It is alive and it breathes and it moves and it is right here in the center; we can't see it, but that's faith. And I know it is alive because it sustains me. You are part of that. That is a change for me.

Because there was a time when I did not perceive that. There was a time when I didn't see my relationship with you because your relationship with me was purely social, political and ethnic. You had the power and I was purely a pawn in the game of the ethnicity and the socialization and the economic game. I was trained to do just so much that would give me a minimal amount of purchasing power and yet kept me bound and in chains, so to speak, economically, politically and socially. Not caring to vote because no matter who in the Hell I voted for (excuse me, who in the heck I voted for), it would not have made a doggone bit of difference because those people really didn't give a hoot about my well being or the well being historically or socially of anything which I represented by physical symbolic representation. And I shared with you the hatred I went through of being this color, how hard I prayed to be White. I didn't know that all I had to do was to join a particular church, and if I prayed long enough, I would turn White.

But I put that aside and sought to pursue being satisfied and happy with myself, and when those old men

came into my life and they said to me, "You are a sacred being and you have validity as you are, and until you accept yourself for who and what you are, you will just be another fool running around the circle, looking, trying to catch your tail." So, I decided to make the change, a change again. When I became sober and clean, it was a change. When I stopped abusing my family, it was a change. When I stopped abusing other people psychologically, physically, mentally, emotionally, it was a change. And that change occurs with each breath, with each breath I see things differently. And the problem I had a breath ago isn't the same; it is changed, it is no longer as critical, it is no longer as pressing as it was, because it has changed itself, it's changed. Because the energy that makes the problem changes also as it breathes and gives life and feeds off of all the other things.

I realize it is all about community, the community of humanity, the community of this place, the community of the gathering down in Garden Grove. We have that community, and I am sharing more with them the same thing I am sharing with you today. By partaking in that community, you have made an unseen or unknown commitment, you have acquired unseen or unknown responsibilities. It is for you to figure them out, to eventually come into acceptance of them, to align them, to get them in a row, to somehow see them for what they are. Not all of them are great and wonderful.

I would like to digress for a moment and say that whoever has the responsibility of cleaning the restroom, Union 76 has nothing on you. It is a wonderful place to go into, the restroom out there. I just visited it. It is wonderful, it is immaculate, it is clean. I don't know if you get that or not? Union 76 prides themselves on having clean restrooms, and this isn't a Union station, and I want to thank you.

Moving back: Part of the community, part of what you are—somebody has that responsibility. Somebody has the responsibility of setting up here. Somebody has the responsibility of sitting there, and there and here. And it is all part of your community. If you cannot see it as your community and as your responsibility and as your commitment, maybe you are missing a grand experience. It may be time to reevaluate it for yourself. What does it hold for us in the future? What about five years down the road, Little Crow? I don't know. I am moving on the next breath. I am just waiting on the next breath. What am I going to say? What are your actions going to be? What are your reactions going to be? How are we going to interact? How am I going to communicate to you? The simplicity of it. It doesn't take a catastrophic event for things to happen.

It never fails to amaze me. When they report earthquakes, they say things like, "This is not related to, this is in no way related to the one in 1953," or whatever. I shake my head because it is such an ignorant statement. Because everything is related. You, me and the earthquakes and the storm and the wind and everything else, and the heat, it is all related. I think part of the community down there is that I have been sharing more and more the connection with nature, the connection with the environment, the connection with responsibility that comes from being connected to nature. Not in just lip service, not in just a onceamonth or once-every-six-months check to Greenpeace or to the environment or to don't dump the cans or don't put plastic in the sea, and sending those little checks out. It is more than that. It is putting that practical concept to work in your own life, how you can better do something.

Our sticker says, "Everything is sacred—you make a difference." Indeed, that is the issue. Do you believe you really make a difference or do you feel that you don't? And is the kind of difference you want to make, is it something you are in consensus with here, because community has to have consensus also. Either we

agree to it and do it, or we don't. But we agree to it and half do and half don't and you have one half pulling against the other and the train is moving in two different directions and it won't work. So we talk about that. Also, being the unwitting counterpart to success. How does something succeed? It only succeeds if all of us are pulling in the same direction. If we are not pulling in the same direction, we are counter to each other. We are an opposite, and opposed fields, and there isn't any time for that anymore.

You and I are in the Red and Blue days. That's when the Sun will turn Blue and the Moon will turn Red. It will happen. What is that mark? That is some of that old Indian stuff. That marks the times of change that were talked about. Because there wasn't a way to articulate it, we had to have a physical visual symbol. Oh, the Sun will turn blue and the Moon will turn red; Red and Blue days. Then we designed a blanket for it. We have a blanket at our gathering which is red and blue, symbolic, in that every time somebody sees that red and blue blanket, they are cognizant of the red and blue days. And they go, "Ah, we are in the red and blue days." We have to be aware, we have to be willing, and we have to work together, and those times are here. We have seen the fall of great nations.

Last year we talked about the prophecies that were being made, all the people who are making the prophecies. Prophecies are based upon history. History is secular. That is not too difficult to understand. If you want to know what happened one hundred years ago or what is going to happen one hundred years later, go back and look at what happened one hundred years ago. You will find in history that the same thing happened, it occurred, it is secular, it is inescapable, it is a reality. That is all. The only thing that has happened and occurred is change. Different kinds of buildings fall down, different kinds of dams break, different kinds of crops are flooded, different kinds of vegetation burns and different kinds of people die. But basically it is the same. Day in and day out. Wouldn't it be very boring if nothing ever changed, if we could keep it like it used to be, the good old days and how it was? I don't know how it was because how it was was never how people thought it was. It never was that way.

You don't find anybody who can tell you how it was, really, well I hear about it or it was like this, but that doesn't make it like it was. Well, somebody says, "You aren't very traditional." And I say, "I am as traditional as the next breath."

I am talking to you in a traditional manner. I am an orator so I am doing and participating in oratory. But it is not traditional, because it ended with the last breath and begins with the next breath. So it changes, everything changes, there is nothing traditionally in place.

Religiosity changes, and needs to change because the people who were listening and reading *John 13*—it's the next breath—so *John 13* doesn't mean the same thing so you got to read something else. It is just that simple. So that is why we have had the modifications in the *Bible*, fourteen of them or so. And we continue to change it as the needs of the people change. You dictate what the *Bible* does, you dictate how it is changed and how it is rewritten. By either your acceptance of what is or what was. And if you refute it and say no that's not right it doesn't apply, the words are archaic and antiquated. Let's get it up to date, let's bring it up to date, let's simplify the *Bible*. Let's simplify religion. Let's simplify our faith. Then merely accept the world for what it presents you and get on with your life in the best possible way.

And don't expect somebody to do it for you, don't expect somebody to do your work for you. Community takes an all-out effort by everyone. Everyone must participate or it doesn't work. We are a global

community. We have those who are in abeyance to peace and balance and harmony. That's kind of historical. There is always going to be somebody who is not going to be happy with the way things are. It doesn't stop me from praying for those who would be disruptive and kill and destroy.

I was a little worried about my age. I read about a recluse, a reclusive old man—and he was 57, I'm going," Wow!" A reclusive old man at 57 died the other day from a heart attack. He was a pack rat, and all the stuff he had on him—and only his feet were sticking out. And that is the way they found him: with his feet sticking out. You see, (I almost said another word). So they were digging through all the stuff and they found one-hundred-twenty-five guns in his house, fifty thousand rounds of ammunition. Some of the guns, never unwrapped, had rusted in briefcases and I thought, what a shame. It was sad; I didn't know him because I could have gotten some of those before anybody got there. Anywhere from handguns, shotguns, assault rifles. Here it is a man, 57-years old, in Newport Beach, CA. The very affluent Newport Beach, CA. A 57 year old recluse who people were afraid of. But some people said he was a good person because he helped the neighborhood. His community.

Audience: He kept the guns out of the neighborhood.

Little Crow: He bought them up as they came in. (laughter) If you needed to get a gun for something you came to him, "Hey, John can I have a gun?" "Yeah, sure, take your pick. They are paid for, take any one you want. Check it in, check it out."

But the idea of his passing, and the thing that they focused on was not his life but his guns and the trash. So he left a visual record, and that's what we do. Each of us in our lifetime will leave three-hundred-forty-eight-thousand pounds of trash. Tons of trash, each of us. That is a lot of trash. Lot of trash! Where do we put it all; who cares? Doggone, shoot it off into space. What the future holds for us is what you hold for us, what each of us contributes and holds.

[*To be continued.*]

CHAPTER 7

ESU: TAKE RESPONSIBILITY NOW FOR CONNECTING WITHIN

8/30/97 ESU "JESUS" SANANDA

Good afternoon, little one. It is I, Esu Sananda. I come in the Light of Holy God of Lighted Creation. I come as the Golden-White Ray, in Oneness with our Father. Be at peace and allow for our energies to synchronize.

There are many at this time who are seeking to know what is their purpose for being or what their "life purpose" is in this experience. Many are asking, yet many do not want to accept the personal responsibility for the receiving of the answers, and thus await another to tell them.

It is not the responsibility of this scribe, nor any other, to answer such questions for anyone. You EACH must learn to go within and make your OWN connections—and learn to trust your own Guidance.

Hear me well: This endeavor is fundamental to your forward progress in the physical at this time!

Your planet, and all experiencing upon her, are in the midst of transformation. You each had a great desire to be a part of this transformation cycle—for as many reasons as there are individual souled beings incarnate. There shall continue to be ever-increasing opportunities made available to you each as this planetary experience unfolds. It is up to YOU to do that which you will do, from moment to moment, with these opportunities and possibilities which present themselves in your current life experience.

If you wait for another to tell you what it is that you are to be doing or when to be doing a thing, then you shall either be waiting a long time or you will be listening to someone or something other than the Lighted Hosts of God. This is not to say that we of God's Hosts will not offer instructions from time to time. It IS to say that the instructions or guidance will come from WITHIN you. Supporting "clues" may come from many outside directions—from the offhand comment of a friend you bump into at the supermarket, to the fortune-cookie paper-scrap that flutters into your hand seemingly from "nowhere"—but such will be made to enter your experience IN SUPPORT OF an INNER communication, not in place of same.

You each would be wise to spend at least a few minutes each day holding the desire within your heart to connect with your Guides. Some think of these Guides as their Guardian Angels. They will assist you in many ways as well as help you to cultivate your direct connection to God.

Learn to perceive the impulses sent your way. You each have, within you, a direct, two-way communication connection with Creator Source. Learn to recognize and use this God-given

right!

Many are simply afraid of the responsibility associated with following nudges that "somehow" come from their OWN mind or thoughts. Perhaps this is one of the reasons you have come into the physical at this time—so that you can expand your awarenesses and thus learn to consciously connect in the physical to the Infinite Potential of Creation.

You are all explorers who have desire to explore your own inner potential in a highly focused and condensed manner. The physical environment that you have chosen facilitates this desire.

You each enjoy the challenge of solving conflicts (contradictory energy flows) within, for each solution brings you greater awareness of who you are and how to use more fully and more responsibly the Infinite Resources of Creation.

None of you want another to tell you how to live your life. However, many of you would gladly allow an inspired message to dictate to you what you should do or when you should do a thing—UNLESS, of course, that inspired message comes from YOUR OWN hand, for then you would be inclined to simply dismiss it as invalid or somehow delusional.

I shall tell you now that unless and until you learn to connect FOR YOURSELF, WITHIN, you will never be satisfied with what you are doing, or where you are doing it, or with whom you are doing whatever it is that you are doing. The strength (and thus satisfaction) of your convictions—whether they are in response to seemingly trivial matters like clothing choices, or serious ones like adopting a child—stem from your level of certainty, and that certainty derives from the strength of your connection within to Source.

Discern for yourself that which YOU hold as Truth. And, in like manner, learn to discern for yourself the signals of your own Inner Guidance. Despite the constant bombardments to the contrary, especially from so-called "religious" leaders, you need NO guru, avatar, or anything other than YOUR OWN inner connection to Source. How much more simple could it be?!

You are each magnificent, individual, experiencing fragments of Infinite, Light-energy Source! Within each fragment lies the potential of infinite energy flow and creation. You are each exploring, from your own unique point of view, the infinite potential of YOUR being. So why would you allow another to tell you how to do that which can only be uniquely done by you?

You EACH have a contribution to make that comes from your uniqueness as an individual. No other can tap the Universal Source in quite the same way as can you, as a unique individual and uniquely gifted fragment of Creator.

Learn to recognize, accept, and appreciate your own uniqueness of being. Learn to connect for yourself. Learn to listen with the heart and discern with the mind.

These words are chosen specifically for their general meaning so that you each will have need to go within and discern all the possible implications FOR SELF! The general statements hold far

more meaning than the words alone can convey. Allow for the thoughts to be invoked within, and in doing so, you will realize the subtle nature of receiving YOUR answers in the form of YOUR thoughts and YOUR ideas!

This is not a new message, but as you each grow along the spiritual path, we see that often there is not review of past lessons or insights. You would each be wise to review that which has been offered prior on this same subject.

As you each grow, there becomes greater and greater ability to see and appreciate the multidimensional levels of these offerings. Consider them as tools. It is up to you to recognize the various uses of each, and that each of you will apply and use these tools in your own unique way.

If another gets a different meaning from the same message, and shares their interpretation with you, be respectful for, though it may be different from your own, it may be quite a valid perception.

Many of you are realizing a shift in perception at this time, and that your inner desires for understanding are welling up within. This is as it should be, for the emotional desire (the call) compels the answer. The answers are rarely what you think they should be, and that is why the confusion, for if you already had the answers or they were exactly what you "thought" they should be, then you would not have the questions in the first place. This is how true growth occurs.

Allow for the unfolding in the physical of YOUR answers. The more focused your desires, the quicker they will manifest for you. Monitor closely that which you spend time fixated upon. Many are addicted to their "vidiot" boxes, religiously focused upon brutal "sporting" events or sudsy soap operas or empty so-called-news programs, yet will only spend a few infrequent moments in a conscious effort to connect within to Higher Source.

Voice not your excuses, for in the same amount of time it would take to state your excuses, you could simply use the time to go within and connect.

As the planetary transition underway at this time becomes more and more real, and begins to more fully impact your day-to-day reality, you will be thankful that you have prepared and developed your own inner communication and intuition, for it will be very likely that reliable external avenues of communication, such as this newspaper, will be cut off.

Even now, there is no way that we of the Hosts of God can possibly address, in a short weekly newspaper, all the possible scenarios that you ones will be faced with in the upcoming years. Your specific personal concerns require going within for specific answers.

These are truly magnificent times in which to be experiencing. The potential for inner growth is nearly overwhelming. Get centered within and call upon the Lighted Brotherhood for assistance, protection, and guidance—and it will be!

Connect within and begin to sense the excitement and newness associated with each of your life's challenges. Look forward to those greater challenges that will garner you the insights and wisdom that you are desiring. No one else will do it for you—NOR SHOULD THEY!

No matter what you may think is your lack of growth and mastery this day, you can turn around your life and create a better way for yourself. Your past and present hardships are exactly perfect FOR YOU in order to bring about your current level of awareness and desire for change. Be thankful for your challenges thus far, and be thankful when you have managed to pull your-self through same by going within and tapping the great Inner Strength always there, simply awaiting your call.

Allow those who might ridicule you to go their own way and find their own truth. You cannot save another. And, beyond offering a helping hand, you can do no more, else you short-circuit their growth and you make them dependent upon you, and they will only serve to pull you down and distract and slow your own growth.

It is not wise to hold the hands of those who make excuses for not having enough resources or ability or creativity to pull themselves out of whatever situation they claim to be trapped within. When ones are more concerned with whether or not they have alcohol or cigarettes than Gaiandriana, AquaGaia or the various colloids, then leave them to their own health concerns, for their actions and addictions are their lessons to overcome. The products will be of little value as long as such poisons are being continually pumped into the body.

There is not one Lighted entity of God alive on your planet who could not have their lives overflowing with abundance at this time. Rather, it is due to past fears, beliefs, and habits of thought that ones disconnect from The Abundance and thus lack results. There is no exception!

Learn to connect and stay connected, and turn your life around, and stop making excuses for your choices and decisions. And, STOP waiting for another to do it for you! If you are relying upon another, then look closely at what is the exchange in the relationship. Is there re-giving or is there just taking? Are you in the position of the parasite living off another's ability to connect, instead of simply connecting yourself?

God's Law of Giving and Regiving SHALL NOT BE MOCKED! Yet, there are many on your world right now who have become so enmeshed in the material (and are thus vibrating at such a lower frequency) that their actions are much too centered around taking, taking, and more taking—as if there could possibly be born a world in balance from such thoughtless and irresponsible behavior!

In the upcoming times there will be very little tolerance for this sort of behavior. You ones will be entering into a time when ones will be able to "tune-in" to energy vibrations and monitor more fully that which people emanate to the world in the form of thought and emotion. As this happens, ones will find it quite difficult to maintain any form of façade around any Lightworker of God in the physical. Manipulations and excuses will no longer work and ones will HAVE to face their responsibility for their own condition. No one reading this is helpless, nor without ability to

go within and connect for self. What have you to lose?!

This message is offered with great love and hope that you each will go within and learn to connect consciously with the Higher Energies. There are no acceptable excuses for not being able to do so! I am Esu "Jesus" Immanuel Sananda. I have come to see through my responsibilities as a Wayshower and Teacher. This is a time of closure for what I set in motion 2000 years past. It is also a time of great awakening and rebirth. I welcome you each to participate—and for those of you who are not up to the task, I ask you to stand aside, else you just impede the natural flow.

In Light and Service to Creator and Creation, I am your Elder Brother along the path. Salu!

CHAPTER 8

MORE CLUES ABOUT MURDER OF PRINCESS DIANA DARK CONNECTIONS GO BACK A LONG WAY

While the legacy of accomplishments of this beautiful person, Princess Diana, is exceeded only by the worldwide admiration for her, many remain suspicious of the official explanation of her "accidental" death. And rightly they should, if ones are either students of history or of the modern world scene!

For the past two weeks CONTACT has carried news about Diana's death (read: murder, assassination, rub-out, etc.). Our information has been "just a bit" at odds with the official news media propaganda on the matter—but what else is new?!

In our Front Page story immediately after the tragedy, titled **Desperate Move By Monarchy's House Of Windsor To Preserve The "Grand Plan"**, Commander Hatonn hinted at the deep and complex roots of disdain which were responsible for strangling the budding alliance of Diana, Princess of Wales, and Dodi al Fayed. This would have been much more than simply a romantic "merger".

In last week's CONTACT, further clues surrounding this complicated and historically-deeply-tangled story were presented via information supplied by the National Vietnam P.O.W. Strike Force. We titled that outlay, More Clues: Another Perspective On Princess Di Tragedy. The most important information in that article was what linked this tragic murder to the longstanding Arab-"Israeli" animosities. Unfortunately, the actual vast historical depth of the skirmish was not addressed.

This week we continue with more revelations. The first item, from Eustace Mullins, makes the Arab-"Israeli" conflict connection clearer—at least the DIRECT connection, if not the less visible, ancestral link. And then Executive Intelligence Review and a collection of other news and Internet postings round out our presentation.

Especially as one efforts to understand the truly vast historical underpinnings of this event, it would be most wise to go back and review Dr. John Coleman's superb reference volume called, Conspirators' Hierarchy: The Story Of The Committee Of 300. I say this because the tangled web of intrigue, into which Diana's and Dodi's murders fit like central puzzle pieces, goes back a lot farther than any of our recent authors have so far explained. To be specific, one must recall the ancient "Black Nobility" of Khazarian Zionist extraction and the House of Windsor's roots therein, traced back to the Venetian Black Guelphs branch of that dark brotherhood.

Or as John Coleman puts it: "The Committee of 300 is THE ultimate secret society made up of an untouchable ruling class, which includes the Queen of England, the Queen of the Netherlands, the Queen of Denmark, and the royal families of Europe. These aristocrats decided, at the death of Queen Victoria, the matriarch of the Venetian Black Guelphs, that, in order to gain world-wide

control, it would be necessary for its aristocratic members to 'go into business' with the non-aristocratic, but extremely powerful, leaders of corporate business on a global scale, and so the doors to ultimate power were opened to what the Queen of England likes to refer to as 'the commoners'.

"From my days in the intelligence business I know that heads of foreign governments refer to this all-powerful body as 'The Magicians'. Stalin coined his own phrase to describe them: 'The Dark Forces', and President Eisenhower, who was never able to get beyond the 'hofjuden' (court Jew) grade, referred to it in a colossal understatement as 'the military-industrial complex'. Stalin kept the USSR heavily armed with conventional and nuclear forces because he did not trust what he called 'the family'. His ingrained mistrust and fear of the Committee of 300 proved to be well-founded."

Next, remember that Diana was now in a very good position to "tell all" about some of the inner, secret goings-on of the aristocratic society that eventually scorned her. And just what might be some of the dirty secrets that Windsor and the Queen Mother—bless her purple hat—would just as well not have spread across the London daily papers to further excite a public that has hardly been praising the recent royal "cold shoulder" manners toward Diana?

Again, let us consult John Coleman:

"...Remember, **Dope=Big Business** and Big Business is done by the oligarchical families of Europe and the United States Eastern Liberal Establishment. The drug business is not a Mafia operation, nor one run by the Colombian cocaine cartels. The noble families of Britain and America's top people are not going to advertise their role in the shop windows; they always have a layer of front men to do the dirty work....

"Since this is not a book about the drug trade, I cannot, of necessity, cover the subject in an indepth manner. But its importance to the Committee of 300 must be emphasized. America is run, not by 60 families, but by 300 families, and England is run by 100 families and, as we shall see, these families are intertwined through marriages, companies, banks, not to mention ties to the Black Nobility, Freemasonry, the Order of St. John of Jerusalem, and so on. These are the people who, through their surrogates, find ways to protect huge shipments of heroin from Hong Kong, Turkey, Iran, and Pakistan, and ensure they reach the market places in the U.S. and Western Europe with the minimum cost of doing business."

Yes, indeed, it would be very inconvenient to the New World Order's plans (to keep the public dumb and sedated under their elaborate schemes of mind control) for Diana's knowledge of the House of Windsor to fall into the hands of, of all people, the Arab nation—worst enemy of all to the Khazarians!

So do keep this volatile historical slant in mind as you read the latest information we share with you, from several sources, on the assassination of Princess Diana. Or as one worldly-wise friend of mine recently said, "Well, though Diana may not have been a saint like Mother Teresa was, she sure as hell was a saint compared to the royal family!" Amen.

by Eustace Mullins 9/12/97 (From Middle Eastern sources)

For a few terrible moments, it seemed that the fate of Israel hung in the balance. Word had just been flashed from Paris to Tel Aviv that Dodi Fayed had presented Princess Diana with a \$200,000 diamond engagement ring. The announcement of their formal engagement was imminent. Why was this of such portent to the State of Israel? Her son, William, was now the heir apparent to the throne. His father, Prince Charles, was despised by the British public. Conversely, they adored Princess Diana. William would be King, with an Arab stepfather. Only a Zionist could understand that, for the first time in a century, they would not have a friend at court.

For almost a hundred years, the Rothschilds had made sure to maintain their standing in the palace at Windsor. Queen Victoria had been dominated by the Rothschild agent, Prime Minister D'Israeli, his name, of course, meaning, of Israel. Her son, King Edward VII, had always been surrounded by Rothschilds and other Jewish bankers, who lavished millions of dollars on him to satisfy his gargantuan appetite for food, entertainment, and beautiful mistresses, while the Rothschilds continued their plans for the colonization of Palestine. This tradition continued unabated throughout the twentieth century. Now, suddenly, it seemed that the unthinkable was about to happen. The Zionists would not have a friend at court. William's reign would be dominated, not by Zionists, but by an Arab and his wife, neither of whom had any reason to feel kindly towards the State of Israel. The Zionists leaders, sensing the inevitable, had been laying plans for the elimination of Princess Diana. Israeli Intelligence, the dread Mossad agency, had already devised several plans, including a car bomb, an assassin with a pistol, poison, and other tried-and-true methods of political assassination.

When Tel Aviv was informed that an engagement announcement was imminent, immediate action was required. However, final approval for the "action" had to come from Zionist leader Netyanahu. He could not be reached. The Mossad officer in charge knew his duty; he grunted the words, "Go ahead." Because the existing plans for Princess Diana's murder could not be employed on such short notice, the agents on duty in Paris were told, use any method; it must be done NOW! Fayed had a number of regular chauffeurs; one of them, Henri Paul, was off duty, and had been spotted drinking in the hotel. A Mossad agent hurried to Fayed's car, and informed the driver that he had been relieved for the night. Another agent went into the bar, signalled a bartender to give Henri Paul a potion, and then informed Paul that he had been called back to duty. Knowing the whims of his employer, Paul made no protest. No doubt he felt strange as he made his way out to the car. The paparazzi were waiting; the scenario for an automobile accident was ready.

Dodi Fayed and the Princess paid no attention to the fact that the driver had been changed. They knew Paul was a reliable driver. Billionaires do not bother themselves with schedules of their servants, or who is to drive and who is off duty. Well-paid minions take care of all such details. Paul got behind the wheel, and they roared away, with the paparazzi in full pursuit. The laughing Fayed, who enjoyed his media celebrity since he had begun dating Diana, yelled at him, "Give it to 'em, Henri." Henri obligingly floor-boarded the big, armor-plated Mercedes. While they were in the tunnel, the driver suddenly felt the full strength of the potion, and slumped forward. As he blacked out, his foot pressed all the way on the accelerator. The mighty engine surged forward until it encountered an immovable object; the car was crushed. Fayed died almost immediately; Diana struggled for breath as the life drained out of her.

THE ISRAELI IMPERATIVE

Any Israeli would see this assassination as both logical and perhaps even moral. You either wanted the State of Israel to survive, or you did not. Fayed's father, Mohammed Al Fayed, the billionaire owner of the historic Harrod's Department Store in London and many other businesses, would not agree, but, in the shock of losing his son and heir, it is doubtful that he would see any political implications in what seemed to be an unfortunate accident. In history, there are not that many accidents. In any case, Zionists had perceived a threat, and had acted promptly to eliminate it. The assassination of Princess Diana did not mean that the security of Israel was now assured. It only meant that one danger had been taken care of. The State of Israel continues to be the loose cannon on the world stage, its very aimlessness a threat not only to such hapless victims as Princess Diana, but to nations as well.

The mass outpouring of grief at the death of Princess Diana, not only in England but throughout the world, indicates that there is a popular intuition at work, a silent recognition that she had been murdered by sinister forces. How else can we explain such depth of feeling for one who, personable and charismatic though she was, could hardly be thought to have touched the pulse of the entire world? This grief acknowledges the fact that she has been martyred by the forces of evil. Now that she has been taken from us, we must face the question; should we wait passively for the next victim of the Zionist terrorists to be murdered before our eyes, or should we begin to take steps to protect not only them, but ourselves as well, from the crazed Zionist murders?

* * *

Editor's note: The following articles are from the September 9, 1997 and September 11, 1997 issues of Executive Alert Service, which is an offering of Executive Intelligence Review, P.O. Box 17390, Washington, D.C. 20041.

DIANA'S WAR WITH THE WINDSORS E.I.R. 9/9/97

It is remarkable that, only days before her death, Princess Diana gave an interview to the French daily *Le Monde*, published full-page on Aug. 27, in which she outlined her wars with the "higher-ups" in the Establishment. The interview indicated that she was groping toward a worldview antagonistic to the contemptuous, arrogant view of the higher echelons of the British oligarchy. She told interviewer Annick Cojean: "From the day that I became a member of this [Windsor] family, no more, in any way, was I able to act naturally....I feel myself close to the people, whoever they are. I feel that I am at the same level, on the same wavelength. It is for that reason, that I upset certain circles. Because I am much closer to the people below, than to the people higher up, and these latter individuals do not forgive me. Because I have a real relation of proximity with the most humble....Nobody can dictate my behavior to me. I work by instinct. That is my best adviser."

This was a continuation of a public war that had reached its earlier apogee in the second half of November 1995. On Nov. 20, Diana gave a televised interview to BBC-Panorama, in which she basically declared war on the royal family, and put into question its ability to embody the monarchy. The interview attracted the largest audience of any documentary program in British television history. According to reliable sources,

only parts of the original, full interview were aired by BBC; reportedly, some two hours more, of extremely damaging material, was left out.

ANTI-ESTABLISHMENT REVOLT IN BRITAIN

A number of observers in the United Kingdom are openly speaking about an "English version" of a "popular revolt", when describing the profound shift in mood in the country. Some are going so far as to suggest that what is presently happening in the UK has parallels to the dramatic developments in eastern and central Europe in the summer and autumn of 1989. The events in Britain may be a harbinger that the western world will soon be going through the upheavals that the former Communist sector has seen in the past decade.

The immediate catalyst for this mood in Britain is the disgust at the way the House of Windsor reacted to the death of Diana. While literally millions of Britons were mourning and streaming to London to pay their last respects to the Princess, the royal clan—Queen Elizabeth II, Prince Philip, Prince Charles, etc.—remained closeted at their summer estate in Balmoral, Scotland. When, six days after Diana's death, the queen finally made a rather indifferent condolence statement on national TV, it was too little, too late. British insiders stress that she was forced to act because of the national mood, and because British Prime Minister Tony Blair went to her, and insisted that she do it. One knowledgeable British source said that Blair went to the Queen, and told her to "pull herself together, or else the whole pack of cards might come down." This source said that Blair is playing two games at once, both attempting to "ride" the mood of popular anger, and trying to limit the damage done to the monarchy. The same source's view is that whatever the Queen does will not be enough, as the past days' developments "doom the House of windsor".

Typical of the kinds of commentaries that were being published in Britain last week, was that of the London *Independent's* Polly Toynbee, who wrote Sept. 5: "The Royal Family are clearly at a loss to read the meaning of all this. They are behaving as if a revolution is taking place outside the gates of Buckingham Palace. And they may be right." What is happening in Britain goes beyond the emotional issue of Diana's death, as such. As veteran commentator Richard Gott, former editor of the London *Guardian*, expressed a view that is circulating widely in Britain, the "masses of human beings" gathering to mourn Diana "are united by their rejection of the Establishment. They are hostile against Buckingham Palace, they dislike the political parties, they reject the media."

In comments made to this publication Sept. 8, Harold Brooks-Baker, publishing director of the prominent *Burke's Peerage*, stated that "what has happened in Britain over the past days is a turning point. What occurred at Westminster Abbey this past Saturday was not a funeral, but a quiet, bloodless revolution, similar to what happened in many countries in 1848." Brooks-Baker also found it to be "a good comparison", to liken the monarchy's reaction to events in Britain, now, to the actions of the East German Communist Politburo, at the time of the fall of the Berlin Wall, in 1989, although he insisted that the situation in Britain is "less desperate". He blamed the "Old Boys' network in Buckingham Palace," centered around the Queen's personal secretary Sir Robert Fellows, for the various mishaps that have occurred. *Burke's Peerage* documents all noble and royal families in Britain.

Further complicating matters in the UK is [the fact] that a big challenge to Britain's constitutional structure

will be taking shape in the coming days, with the Sept. 11 votes in Scotland and Wales, for "devolution" of significant powers, from the London center, to these regions.

<u>A TURNING POINT IN BRITAIN</u> *E.I.R.* 9/11/97

This is a turning point in Britain. What you saw at Westminster Abbey this weekend was not a funeral, but a quiet, bloodless revolution, similar to what happened in 1848." So commented Mr. Brooks-Baker, in on-the-record comments to *EIR Alert Service* Sept. 8. The publication, for which he is director, is very prominent in the UK, as it documents all noble and royal families.

Brooks-Baker said he found it to be a "good comparison" to liken the monarchy's reaction to what has been happening in Britain to the way the East German Communist Politburo reacted to the fall of the Berlin Wall, as both cases are characterized by a complete misreading of the popular mood, even if, in his view, the situation in Britain is somewhat "less desperate" than it was in East Germany, in 1989.

Asked what he thought about Lyndon LaRouche's evaluation on the "Pearl Harbor Effect" quality of events in Britain these past days, Brooks-Baker responded that "this has been building up, slowly, for some time, and with Diana's death, it was brought to a head; the funeral accelerated the situation. Several things have happened, in recent years, that must be looked at very carefully, in retrospect, for example, stripping Diana of the 'Her Royal Highness' title. That was orchestrated by the Queen's personal private secretary, Sir Robert Fellowes. Even though Fellowes is married to the sister of Diana, the man is living in a time warp! He's in the 18th century. He's part of an old boys' network, in the Palace, who are very effective as an old boys' network, but who don't have very constructive dealings with the millions of people in this country."

Brooks-Baker warned that the monarchy had better change its behavior fast, as least in the direction of "their royal cousins on the continent", or "this throne will disappear". A confirmed and committed monarchist himself, he warned that, as early as one year from now, there could be a vote in Britain, on the country becoming a republic, and, if current trends continue, the monarchy would lose such a referendum.

NEWS DESK SPECIAL REPORT by Dr. Al Overholt 9/13/97

3 MORE "FOETOGS" OUIZZED

Excerpts from *Philadelphia Daily News*, 9/5/97: [quoting]

Three photographers sought in the investigation of the car crash that killed Princess Diana turned themselves in yesterday. Another photographer who was at the scene insisted the paparazzi did the right thing—summoning help for the victims.

But photographer Laszlo Veres acknowledged not all were intent on helping.

"There were one or two who opened the door of the car, quickly took some frames, and disappeared," he

said.

The Fayed family contends the photographers' pursuit caused the accident. But photographer Jacques Langevin, one of those first detained, said colleagues told him the Mercedes sedan "zigzagged dangerously and its driver didn't seem to be in control of it" as it roared through the Place de la Concorde toward the highway along the Seine.

What the investigators want to determine, according to sources close to the investigation, is how closely—and possibly how dangerously—the photographers were pursuing Diana's fleeing Mercedes.

The sources said police are particularly interested in how one phtotgrapher's car came to be parked in front of the wrecked Mercedes. From the outset, investigators have asked questions about a car in front of the Mercedes that might have played a role in the accident.

A man who says he drove just ahead of the car in which Britain's Princess Diana was killed told *Reuters* yesterday he saw a motorcycle swerve directly in front of the Mercedes, making it lose control.

"In my rear-view mirror, I saw the car in the middle of the tunnel with the motorcycle on its left, pulling ahead and then swerving to the right directly in front of the car," François Levi said in the Normandy port of Rouen.

"As the motorcycle swerved and before the car lost control, **there was a flash of light** but then I was out of the tunnel and heard, but did not see the impact," he said.

A magistrate will make the final decision on whether to charge the seven paparazzi and send them to trial. Police are still searching for other photographers believed to have fled the scene. [End quoting]

FRENCH JOURNALISTS CONFIDE: "PRINCESS DIANA WAS ASSASSINATED"

From the INTERNET, by Sherman Skolnick, 9/10/97: [quoting]

In the last few days I have interviewed, extensively, well-informed United Kingdom (UK), French, and other journalists. (And I promised never to use their names because of the nature of what was discussed.) They told me that many of the distinguished journalists in the United Kingdom are aware, from their own reliable sources in key places in the government and elsewhere, that British Intelligence had assassinated Princess Diana.

They went over details of the specifics of how they, as journalists, from their sources (separate from me), know about the technical information on how the assassination was carried out.

But first of all, we have to discuss why the real story is not being told, in print, or on the radio, or on television, in the UK.

Not many know that in the UK they have the Official Secrets Act. By that Act, the London government has the power, throughout the UK, to order that certain subjects are absolutely forbidden to be discussed.

Currently, the forbidden subject is any discussion of possible foul play in the death of Princess Diana and her intended husband Dodi Fayed.

Further than that, any discussion is forbidden about how the Official Secrets Act exactly works. When there is a subject that an editor, publisher, or station manager believes would be covered by the Official Secrets Act, they must immediately inform the London government. And if the London government issues what they call a "D Notice", then these media outlets throughout the UK are not only forbidden to go forward with any story that they're working on; but also, the D Notice serves as a potential seizure: it authorizes the UK, through their various operatives, to immediately seize and close down any printing plant that is in the process of printing such a story, any radio station, or any radio- or TV-transmitter. They are immediately seized by the London government, closed down, and the publisher, the editor, and the key personnel (including the writer of the story) are immediately put under arrest.

And the worst part of it is, the rest of the media is not even allowed to mention that these people have been arrested and their publishing and transmitting facilities seized. In other words, it is forbidden to discuss the D Notice and also forbidden to discuss the technical operation of the Official Secrets Act. So, there is censorship regarding the instruments of censorship.

The journalists I spoke with generally agree with what I found out from other sources about how Diana was assassinated.

Apparently another car, a supposed "decoy car" which was to protect her, in fact carried agents of British Intelligence. It came up behind the Mercedes which Diana and the others were in and hit it in some way. And there was already an arrangement through others that a chemical slick was put on the roadway within the tunnel. Ahead of the slick, a heavy construction truck, on signal, backed into the tunnel and dropped or placed an obstruction of a very heavy nature in the roadway. So any which way it turned around, the Diana car could not have gotten away.

Thereafter, British Intelligence planted disinformation (and continues to do so) throughout the world. (For example, "The car came from a junkyard; it was formerly stolen; it's a defective car," "The driver was drunk," "The speedometer was stuck at 120; the car was going over 100 mph.") There's been a flood of these fake stories promoted worldwide by British Intelligence, in which the CIA has seen to it that the American press replicates these stories.

Leading journalists in the UK agree with stories by me and others that Diana was assassinated. And the simple reason for the murder is, British Intelligence is pledged to protect the monarchy. The monarchy was not going to have a new step-father for the heir to the throne—Prince William—they weren't going to have a Moslem.

Further than that, it comes out that Diana had already been given an engagement ring by Dodi Fayed. What has <u>not</u> come out is that she was 3-months pregnant.

So when you put that together, British Intelligence, under their rules, was "justified" in wiping these people out for the purposes of the monarchy, protection of the realm, and "national security". [End quoting]

If we think **our** censorship laws are bad, this and worse is what we've got to look forward to unless we put a stop to the Elite controllers. **We can do it!**

QUESTIONS, QUESTIONS— WHY WAS PRINCESS DIANA MURDERED??

Excerpts from many sources on the INTERNET, 9/7/97: [quoting]

More and more, Paris is becoming a center of political assassinations.

ITEM: In July 1996, Amschel Rothschild was murdered, just as he was about to become the new head of the Rothschild worldwide banking empire, tied to the Vatican. Most of the American press were silent: Some said it was a heart attack, others, a suicide. He was found with a bathroom cord tied around his neck, connected to a towel rack. In checking it out, however, the Paris police discovered the rack came right off the wall! Hence, it was murder, not suicide.

Rothschilds and Rockefellers have engaged each other in bloody financial wars for many decades.

Rothschild was murdered on the anniversary of the murder of John D. Rockefeller III, 1978. Recently, we repeated the exclusive details.

ITEM: February 1997: A long-time, major financial supporter of Albert Gore, Jr., was murdered in Paris: Pamela Harriman, U.S. Ambassador to France, widow of Averell Harriman of the major banking and railroad fortune. With her help, Gore had joined with top U.S. military leaders, who had fled to France, to arrest their Commander-in-Chief, Bill Clinton, for treason. [emphasis mine]

ITEM: Various Western intelligence agencies arranged to assassinate Princess Diana, in Paris.

She was killed on a sacred section called Pont d'alma—from that is derived the word "Pontiff", that is, "Pope." The ancient section is where most every royal family in Europe comes from. According to legend, a person killed there goes straight to Heaven, as a representative of Jesus.

According to unreleased witness reports, a vehicle tapped or hit the rear of Diana's Mercedes, one of the heavily-built models, reportedly made bomb- and bullet-resistant.

A slick had already been spread ahead of her car, which then hit an intentional, heavy obstruction planted in the tunnel roadway.

The second car had intelligence agents from the super-secret Committee of Twenty-Six, headquartered in Bristol, England, made up of covert operatives of the United States and the United Kingdom, skilled in murder disguised as an auto accident.

Informed of this in advance, French Intelligence took a "hands off" posture and delayed the arrival of the Paris police to the murder scene. The local authorities in Paris reportedly have "smoking gun" video evidence made by "Paparazzi" on motorbikes (that is, celebrity-chasing photographers), reportedly show-

ing the political assassination details.

<u>Diana and her intended Arab husband were set to shift billions of dollars from the West, to banks in Germany and Austria.</u> [*emphasis mine*] The princess was crushed between the East and the West: between the Pope and the failing, degenerate British monarchy, the House of Windsor. Newsfakers here and overseas continue to call it a so-called "auto accident".

Why did no UK papers have anyone on the Di/Dodi trail in Paris? Had they been warned off?

Who were the American tourists who were first on the scene? Do they have any connection with US security?

Why had she dispensed with her British security cover whilst in Paris—had she been pressured by anyone to do this?

Why were the BBC and CNN so quick to blame the freelance press photographers who were apparently chasing the car that she was in?

What makes a trained car driver (obviously skilled in security) drive maybe beyond his limitations and crash in a tunnel that isn't really that precarious? Could a secret service agent posing as a reporter have flashed a glimpse of a gun at the car whilst overtaking or pulling level [How about a laser weapon from in front—as according to Commander Hatonn?]. The driver considered the best action was to get the hell out of there, thus the sudden burst of speed. Once in the tunnel, any manner of sophisticated sabotage could be employed to take the car off the road. Meanwhile this mystery man drops back and disappears, allowing the others to swarm around, covering his identity.

Asking who benefits from this situation is helpful, as you did. Charles is the BIG beneficiary, and secondarily, the whole royal family.

There had been talk (supposedly by Diana) of skipping Charles in the succession, and having their son inherit the throne after Elizabeth. I suspect we will hear no more about that now. Also there had been a lot of talk about Elizabeth being the last monarch, that after she died, Charles would be an embarrassment on the throne, etc.

French emergency services are very sophisticated in the way they handle badly injured accident victims. They often operate on accident victims on the side of the road using especially designed portable operating theaters. Why didn't they employ this technique on this occasion?

The Queen was reported to be furious at Di's forthcoming engagement to her rich Egyptian boyfriend, since his father's revelations of his illegal financial involvements with Tory MPs contributed to the recent Tory defeat. I wonder if the Queen was involved. Source of reports: Examiner Newsservices as reported on pages one and four of the *San Francisco Examiner* for August 31. Attribution is to "the royal family", but we know whom they meant.

Why was there only one ambulance to treat four injured people??? One ambulance alone is not equipped to treat four injured people. The media reported first that "Diana was walking and talking," after the

accident. What was that about??? Was she? A woman who "walks/talks" would be in much better shape and not have a massive heart attack a while later.

Why did it take "2 hours" to get her out of the car [according to another story]?

I am increasingly believing that she was murdered. Yes, Princess Grace went the same way. And JFK. This is how "royalty", politicians and governments rid themselves of the ones who don't fit in.

Her affair with Al Fayed was certainly very much hated by the royal clan. He was an Egyptian, a Muslim, etc. They hate him. They had denied him the British Citizenship.

Diana's Legacy on Monarchy Uncertain, by Robert Woodward. The strongest statement from Woodward was the leading sentence, "She was the jewel in the crown of Britain's royal family but critics branded her its most dangerous loose cannon."

Internationalist security specialist Rex Osgood released comments to the effect that Diana's death was a windfall for British royalists and that Prince Charles might once again be in the running to become Britain's next king.

Over the last few months I thought that she was getting ready for 'the cop'; after all, how unhappy The Royals must have been when she took the Princes to see that pro-IRA film recently (oops, sorry). Also, when she took the boys on a luxury cruise holiday on her Arab lover's boat in full view of the world (her "look at us").

Her alliance with a billionaire Egyptian with royal aspirations was just too much: "MY GOD, WHAT IF THE QUEEN MUM WERE A MOSLEM???"

And I also agree when you say she was not liked by any of the establishment because of her views. In this world you have to be UNDER CONTROL but Diana cut herself free of the Royals, did not work for the Government, did not need to work for her money and was not politically aligned. In short, she was considered a loose cannon; dangerous and out of control, and she had far too much influence on the Princes and the world in general. But when she left the royal family she no longer had the protection that they are surrounded by, in fact she 'shunned it' because they were using it to keep tabs on her, but they were seen to do all the right things by offering. Unfortunately this left her exposed and vulnerable.

This will never be publicly linked to the Royals but I'm sure this was a planned murder. It just stares you in the face, it so obviously leaves the way clear for the Royals to take center stage again.

WHOEVER CONTROLS PRINCESS DIANA CONTROLS THE WORLD—"Sheds new light on the death of Princess Di! It was no accident, and the paparrazi weren't her killers!"

SOME VERY STRANGE HAPPENINGS!

The death of Princess Diana is subject to many strange facts. Conveniently, the death takes place in a tunnel away from public view. Conveniently, there are no real witnesses and all film is confiscated. Conveniently, we blame the death on the media hounds, whom no one much likes anyway.

Has anyone seen any damage to the structural pillar the car supposedly hit? The car suffers tremendous damage but does not hit another vehicle in a busy tunnel? Even more conveniently, everyone in the car critically injured as the roof is uniformly collapsed flat. Diana's boyfriend Dodi Fayed is **buried before the body is even cold**. Any policeman knows that a drunk driver drives slower not faster. This whole thing stinks!

Princess Diana's new-found independent financial power through her rich boyfriend became a political hazard. Diana was becoming more and more political in her visits to promote peace efforts in Bosnia, etc. This became a threat to The New World Order objective of a destabilized Soviet Union. The royal family is a key member of the New World Order and anything affecting the royal family is no accident but, rather, meticulously planned.

Operations such as this one were carried out by British Intelligence. The goal for the death of Diana is three fold; to rally public support for the royal family, squash the rebellious efforts of Diana to promote peace, and set an example for any other members of Royalty who wander astray. A simple assassination was out of the question—Diana would have gone into history as a peacemaker and a martyr.

THE BODY GUARD LIVES, OR DOES HE? This issue is still open for speculation.

Why was her death not reported for four hours?

There were two hospitals that were closer than the one the Princess was taken to. What was the reason behind why she was taken to a hospital so much farther away?

What, if anything, does Princess Diana's mysterious death have in common with the mysterious death of Princess Grace? Is there a curse on the royal family...on ALL the royal families?

What REALLY happened to Princess Diana and her love interest, Dodi Fayed??? Was it REALLY by the paparazzi (the photographers who pursue celebrities)??? Would the Palace have REALLY stood for the mother of the future King (and future head of the Church of England) to have married a Muslim??? What about the shocking resemblance between young Prince Harry and Diana's former admitted lover, James Hewitt? Did Diana carry a deep secret to her grave—a secret that could have devastated the House of Windsor had it been exposed? Has this tragedy paved the way for England's sympathies to go with Charles and Camilla?

Bodyguard Trevor Rees-Jones was a former member of the crack Parachute Regiment, one of the toughest in the British army. He also had completed two stints in Northern Ireland and served in the Royal Military Police; just the kind of background that would have seen him come into contact with members of the secret service. Theorists cite the fact Rees-Jones survived the crash as evidence that he was in on the plot to snuff out the Diana threat.

Dodi Fayed was buried last night in a private ceremony, one day after the fatal accident. Why so much hurry? The faster the Al Fayed family settle the ceremony, the lesser the chance other people will find out the truth!

Why only one bodyguard following Princess Diana? It is not logical for the rich and famous celebrities to bring just one bodyguard when they go out. What happens when the only one bodyguard needs to go to toilet? What happens when Princess Diana needs to go to the restroom? Who will protect her? This question definitely opens up many interesting leads for many other people to investigate.

Has anybody checked the tunnel? What kind of damage has the accident caused on the wall of the tunnel?

Diana's last chauffeur was not a professional driver (and drunk?). This is all rubbish! Just imagine, a billionaire and a princess, going out for dinner and using a security officer as chauffeur? Please ask yourself: these rich people will only use the best driver they can employ under the Sun; don't ever believe this kind of lousy excuse. Also, has anyone, apart from the royal family and high ranking officials, seen the dead bodies? Any pictures shot on the bodies? NO! [End quoting]

If the Elite weren't covering up why wouldn't they have wanted to show the pictures immediately to prove there is no coverup? Why wouldn't they want to give good photos of the scene of the accident instead of bullying the press to not use photos? In airline, railroad and car accidents they normally publish scenes of the accident and think nothing of it—something smells rotten here. They shame [or threaten] the tabloids into not using photos.

Why do they keep changing their stories every few hours?

I heard the first reports coming over TV and they said that Diana was walking around and she had a broken arm, but she was talking to people.

Why did the Queen have to be <u>pressured</u> before she would appear and speak to the public in this kind of a circumstance? If <u>you were a guilty party</u> wouldn't you want to hide your face??

"Where there is so much smoke there's got to be a big, big fire." [End quoting]

Certainly, CONTACT readers can see through this farce.

CHAPTER 9

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/13/97

KNOW YOUR LAW: SHERIFF BOOTS FEDS FROM HIS COUNTY

THIS SHERIFF IS A HERO WE WILL APPRECIATE LATER

From the INTERNET, 9/10/97: [quoting]

Sheriff Dave Mattis of Big Horn County, Wyoming, said this week that as a result of Case #96-CV099-J, U.S. District Court, District of Wyoming, he now has a written policy that forbids federal officials from entering his county and exercising authority over county residents unless he is notified first of their intentions.

After explaining their mission, Mattis said he grants them permission to proceed if he is convinced they are operating within the legal parameters and authority limitations set forth in the *U.S. Constitution*.

The sheriff grants permission on a case-by-case basis only. When asked what, if any, repercussions he had gotten from the Feds, he quickly and confidently replied, "None whatsoever". He explained by saying, "They know they do not have jurisdiction in my county unless I grant it to them".

Mattis clarified his position by saying the federal court had ruled the state of Wyoming is a sovereign state and the state Constitution plainly states that a county sheriff is the top law enforcement official in the county.

Additionally, Sheriff Mattis contends that the *U.S. Constitution*, Article 1, Section 8, clearly defines the geographic territories where the federal government has jurisdiction. *Amendment X*, he said, states that "the powers not delegated to the United States by the *Constitution*, nor prohibited by it to the States, are reserved to the States respectively, or to the people."

Therefore, Mattis thoroughly believes the Feds have very limited powers in any state unless the local high-sheriff allows them to exercise power beyond that which the *Constitution* provides.

"Put another way," Mattis said, "if the sheriff doesn't want the Feds in his county, he has the constitutional power and right to keep them out or ask them to leave."

Accompanied with other legal interpretations Mattis stands on the definition of the word "sovereign", which is defined by *Webster's* as "paramount, supreme. Having supreme rank or power. Independent: a sovereign State".

Mattis said he grew weary of the Feds coming into his county and running rough-shod over county resi-

dents: i.e., illegally searching, seizing property, confiscating bank accounts, restricting the free use of private lands and other abuses, without a valid warrant and without first following due process of law as guaranteed by the *Constitution* to every citizen.

As long as Mattis remains sheriff he says he will continue to see to it that the citizens of his county get their day in court.

Mattis went on to say that, to his knowledge, even the IRS has not attempted to seize any citizen's real property, bank account or any other privately-owned possessions since he ran the Feds out of his county.

Sheriff Mattis emphasized that he is not a radical man. He said he is only dedicated to protecting the constitutional rights of the citizens of his county.

He added that ordinary citizens are not the only ones bound by and expected to obey laws. Elected officials and government employees at all levels of government are also bound by and should be expected to obey certain laws.

As long as Sheriff Mattis is the high-sheriff of Big Horn County, he seems determined to make sure private citizens and government officials alike act within the law and their designated powers.

Sheriff Mattis came across as a soft-spoken, polite man whose only interest is protecting the citizens he was elected to serve. That being the case, he might be the sheriff for as long as he wants to be.

Sheriff Mattis is hopeful that other sheriffs will assume the same stance. [End quoting]

WOW!! This is the kind of story we've been waiting for—for far too long. Wouldn't it be nice if he got a flood of mail, complimenting and giving him support for his <u>true heroism?</u> (Please don't clog up his phone and fax lines and thus prevent him from accomplishing his work.)

Also, wouldn't it be nice if this example were brought to the attention of the thousands of other local sheriffs?

Let's take back control of our counties and states peacefully. It can be done.

THE LATEST LIQUID GOLD

From WORLD PRESS REVIEW, 9/97: [quoting]

A jungle setting on the coast of Borneo may seem an improbable site for a high-technology experiment that could revolutionize the world's oil industry. But tucked away in a corner of Bintulu, a deep-water port on the South China Sea, is the world's first commercial plant designed to turn natural gas into virtually pollution-free diesel fuel, jet fuel, and naphtha, a valuable chemical component.

"It's not inconceivable that such a plant can be an alternative to a conventional refinery," says Jack Jacometti of Royal Dutch/Shell, which operates the \$750-million gas-to-liquid fuel facility. The plant at Bintulu reflects growing belief in what has long been the oil industry's holy grail: that huge reserves of worthless

remote natural gas—reservoirs too far from a market or too small to justify development—can be turned into an easily transportable, high-energy liquid. Successful exploitation of the technology would potentially allow oil companies to earn billions of dollars from sleeping assets.

Bintulu, in Malaysia's Sarawak state, is a far cry from the conventional crude-oil refineries that supply the world. Although natural gas is relatively low in energy potential, it is the cleanest hydrocarbon resource. The 12,000 barrels a day of crystal-clear fuel it produces contrast sharply with traditional black diesel. Even the waste products are white, with the waxy consistency of face cream or petroleum jelly. Other byproducts are water, which some Shell engineers claim is clean enough to drink safely, and a soot-like residue that can be used as a soil conditioner.

But gas-to-liquid fuel projects, which until now have not been seen as commercially viable, also pose potential problems for oil companies. Engineers believe further reductions in gas-to-liquid costs are inevitable. Conventional refineries could be made obsolete if governments took early action to insist on clean gas-based fuels. "The companies are scared to push [the technology] because governments might simply say this is the new fuel standard," says Terry Le Roux, an industry consultant.

These fears have not stopped a flurry of activity among some of the world's biggest oil companies to position themselves in the gas-to-liquid fuels market. Exxon, the biggest U.S. oil company, is in talks to build a large natural gas plant in the Persian Gulf state of Qatar. Exxon is also considering a plant in Alaska to be built in conjunction with British Petroleum. Statoil, Norway's state petroleum company, recently agreed with Sasol of South Africa to study whether its version of the process could be adapted to offshore oil and gas platforms and production vessels. Most other big oil companies are also investigating the technology.

The key to commercial viability of gas-to-liquid fuel plants is the technology's modern innovations—especially the cobalt-based catalyst over which the gas is passed at high pressure and temperature. Shell engineers at Bintulu say the plant, which has been operating since 1993, is now working about 97 percent of the time. "In the last three years, we've learned more than in the 15 previous years of research," says Saw Choo Boon, managing director of Bintulu.

The pace at which new plants proliferate will depend more on economics than technology. "With \$20 oil prices [the 1996 per-barrel average], you have a fighting chance to realize such a project," says Jacometti. But some industry analysts believe such plants could be viable with oil prices as low as \$15 a barrel if combined with a power station or desalinization facility.

Sasol estimates the total cost of a facility at between \$25,000 and \$30,000 per daily barrel of production, or about \$300 million for a 10,000-barrel-a-day plant. That is roughly twice the cost of a conventional refinery, but feedstock costs of a conventional refinery are between \$16 and \$18 a barrel; remote gas plants would have to bear only the cost of extraction.

Some expect the technology to proliferate quickly. A report by consultant Wood Mackenzie estimates that half the world's proven gas reserves are located in remote areas that cannot economically justify the construction of pipelines. They would, however, provide a substantial base for a gas-to-liquid fuel industry.

Although industrialized countries will probably prize most highly the quality of the fuels produced from the gas-to-liquid process, the technology may also allow developing or former communist countries to leap-frog investment in expensive conventional energy infrastructure projects.

An indication of the high quality of the fuel is that diesel at the Bintulu plant easily meets the world's toughest standards. Levels of sulfur and aromatics—elements that are at the center of fierce debates in Europe and the U.S.—are so low as to be beyond detection. The diesel derived from natural gas would give drivers much higher mileage than conventional diesel.

The big question is whether such a high-quality fuel would command equally high prices. In order to avoid undermining existing markets, some companies prefer to see the new fuel as a blending agent to be mixed with poorer quality, crude oil-derived fuels.

However the fuel is introduced, the international oil industry finds itself in an unusual position: For once, it is well ahead of the environmental debate. [End quoting]

It's about time for us to quit the hydrocarbon addiction entirely and go to zeropoint—free energy—devices, which the Elite have been stashing away for decades.

JAPANESE COURT SAYS MINISTRY ILLEGALLY CENSORED HISTORY BOOKS

From THE DAILY NEWS, 8/30/97: [quoting]

In a landmark victory for Japanese who have been trying to educate young people about their country's wartime atrocities, the Supreme Court ruled on Friday for the first time that the government had broken the law by censoring textbooks to remove references to the slaughter of civilians.

The ruling was a remarkable triumph for an 83-year-old education professor, Saburo Ienaga, a frail and bespectacled man who has led a 32-year court battle to force the government to allow schools to use textbooks that give children a glimpse of the brutalities committed by Japanese forces in China, Korea, and elsewhere during World War II.

Ienaga's other lawsuits had ended in defeat, but on Friday the Supreme Court sided with him and declared that the Education Ministry had gone too far in its censorship. The court ordered the ministry to curb its censorship in the future as much as possible and not to impose its own ideas on the scholarship of those who write the books.

The court ruling goes to the heart of an issue that continues to ignite soul-searching and debate in Japan and fierce acrimony between Japan and other Asian countries. The ruling was therefore not just about the past but also about the present, because a major reason for the tensions and antagonisms swirling through Asia is resentment at Japanese brutality in World War II and the perception that Japan has never confronted what it did.

China, South Korea and North Korea, in particular, are deeply suspicious of Japan and sometimes worry that Japan's reluctance to teach children about the past suggests that it may become aggressive again.

To be sure, Ienaga's victory was only a partial one. The court, as expected, declared that the Education Ministry's system of censoring textbooks is itself legal; it simply found that the ministry had abused the system by deleting references to well-documented atrocities.

"Unfortunately, we did not receive the all-out victory that we had hoped for," Ienaga said at a news conference. "But the ruling revealed that textbook screening can be illegal."

The ruling, which granted Ienaga token damages of \$3,400, is likely to be important primarily for its moral force, emboldening scholars who write textbooks, and making Education Ministry censors more hesitant to demand changes. Already, the censors have given up enormous ground, allowing far more straightforward treatment in the books than was imaginable a dozen years ago.

One of Ienaga's battles, for instance, was over the word "aggression" in school textbooks. The ministry ordered him in the 1980s not to characterize Japan's invasion of China as aggression, saying the term had "negative ethical connotations". It suggested that he use the expression "military advance".

Under pressure from China and South Korea, the government later backed down, and textbooks now contain passing references to Japanese "aggression".

One of the points of contention in Friday's ruling was a brief mention in Ienaga's high school history textbook of the Japanese army's unit 731, which conducted experiments in germ warfare and tried to create plague outbreaks in China. [End quoting]

If we apply enough pressure, we can get rid of some of our censorship here, also.

FORD TOP EXEC WARNS OF UN MONITORING U.S. INDUSTRY: AUTO AND GAS PRICES WILL RISE BEYOND OUR MEANS!

From FREE AMERICAN NEWSMAGAZINE, 8/97: [quoting] Ross H. Roberts Vice President-General Manager Ford Division June 5,1997 to: All Ford Dealers

Subject: Letter to President Clinton on Global Warming (emphasis ours-Ed.)

You may be unaware of a major policy issue that will greatly affect the auto business—from the kinds of vehicles we can sell to the cost of driving to overall vehicle affordability.

The Clinton Administration has announced its support for *legally binding caps and cuts on energy use*

for developed countries that would be enforced by a UN agency. **Developing nations such as China, Korea, and Brazil will not be required to make a similar commitment.** These caps and cuts are expected to be finalized in December of this year in Kyoto.

The Administration sees this as a political "win" and a way to position the U.S. as an environmental leader. Because it is an international negotiation led by the U.S. State Department, *most Americans don't know what's going on or understand the implications*.

For the auto industry, the implications are clear. Such a treaty would *necessitate major gasoline price increases* and likely would lead to other measures, including higher CAFE and *restrictions on vehicle use.* Many countries in Europe already are implementing such measures in anticipation of the agreement. The exclusion of developing nations from any commitment will hurt U.S. competitiveness *and result in an outflow of jobs to those nations*, and the UN would be in charge of monitoring compliance. Alex Trotman believes this the most important governmental issue the industry is facing.

The President is scheduled to give the keynote address at a UN meeting on this subject on June 23. We need to let the President know that we are watching, and we are concerned. We are asking for a few minutes of your time to personalize the attached pro-forma letter to the president with a copy to your U.S. Senators since the Senate will eventually have to ratify any treaty. Please fax a copy of your letter to Ford's Governmental Affairs Communications at 313-248-1550.

We would certainly appreciate your support on this critical industry issue.

Sincerely,

Ross Roberts [End quoting]

Certainly, all of us should write our senators about these sly tricks to cripple our economy further!!

RETURN OF THE PAWPAW

Where oh where is dear little Nellie? Way down yonder in the pawpaw patch.

From *Popular Science*, 8/97: [quoting]

The pawpaw memorialized by this ditty is a delicious and nutritious fruit. Related to the South American custard apple, it is the largest edible fruit native to the United States, 3 to 5 inches long and weighing as much as a pound. Pawpaws originally grew wild in Eastern woodlands, and Indian tribes helped spread them south and west.

Bruisable skins and big seeds make pawpaws a forbidden fruit.

So why can't you find pawpaws in the supermarket? The flavorful fruits are burdened with soft, thin skins and oversize seeds. This combination discourages large-scale processing and distribution. Thus, the paw-

paw has remained available only to rural Nellies and hobbyist gardeners.

All that may be changing, however, thanks to the efforts of pawpaw fanciers at Kentucky State University, the USDA's Agricultural Research Service's National Clonal Germplasm Repository in Corvallis, Oregon, are experimenting with tissue culture and cryogenic preservation to develop varieties that they say could be marketed commercially within the next decade.

"Public interest is staggering," says Desmond Layne of Kentucky State. "We had more than 2,000 inquiries last year alone." Information about how to grow pawpaws can be found at www.hort.purdue.edu/newcrop. [End quoting]

After the scientists play around with this fruit it probably won't be worth anything nutrionally or tastewise.

BLACKS SHOWN AS POOR

From *THE MODESTO BEE*, 8/19/97: [quoting]

The media uses pictures of Blacks more often than Whites to illustrate stories about poverty even though most of the nation's poor are White, a Yale University study found. National news magazines, including *Time*, *Newsweek* and *U.S. News and World Report*, pictured Blacks 62 percent of the time in stories on poverty, though statistics show only 29 percent of Americans below the poverty line are Black according to the study by Martin Gilens, an assistant professor of political science. [End quoting]

This is typical of how we are propagandized to be prejudiced according to the Elite's control needs.

"THE BEST AND WORST OF EVERYTHING" BEST NEWS FOR MORTALS (YEAR [1996] ROUNDUP)

From *PARADE MAGAZINE*, 12/29/96: [quoting]

British scientists say they're working on a "Soul-Catcher" memory chip, which would record human memories and thoughts, and expect it to be working within 30 years. "With these chips, we wouldn't have to rely on holiday snapshots and our memories. We could simply play our experiences back to each other," says Chris Winter, head of British Telecom's artificial life team. "By combining this information with a record of a person's genes, we could recreate a person physically, emotionally and spiritually," he said. "This is the end of death—immortality in the truest sense."

With some folks we know, we'll settle for "The Best of..." [End quoting]

They can create the "Frankensteins" such as Bush, Clinton and hundreds of others, without spirituality now. But, only God can create the spirituality within.

ILLEGAL IMMIGRATION

From *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, letter to editor, 9/97: [quoting]

The *Daily News* Aug. 31 story "Illegal immigration less than thought", was a real relief: Only a million illegal Mexican immigrants crossed our border in the past decade, according to a joint study we conducted with the Mexican government.

If you believe this is an unbiased report without political considerations, then you have probably been snorting or smoking something smuggled across the same border. If we are to believe the figures then I guess we don't have any problems associated with illegal immigrants. —Bill Hamburg [End quoting]

I'm glad there are some people who will write in to papers who publish this Elite propaganda and try to set the record straight.

RUSSIAN NUCLEAR WEAPONS MISSING, LEBED SAYS

From THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 9/5/97: [quoting]

Russia's military has lost track of 100 suitcase-size nuclear bombs, the nation's former national security chief has told American lawmakers, who expressed alarm to the Clinton administration.

But U.S. and Russian officials discount the claims by retired Gen. Alexander Lebed, the ousted one-time foe of President Boris N. Yeltsin.

"We don't have any evidence to support what (Lebed) said and responsible Russian officials have specifically denied it," a White House official said Thursday. "We have no credible information any nuclear weapon, suitcase or not, has even been available on the black market."

The official, speaking on condition of anonymity, confirmed, however, that the Russian military has such portable nuclear bombs.

Security experts describe these portable, suitcase devices as the "perfect terrorist weapon" in the wrong hands.

Lebed described the devices as Special Atomic Demolition Munitions that are designed for sabotage behind enemy lines—blowing up bridges or command centers for example. The 1-kiloton nuclear bombs, which weigh 60-100 pounds and can fit into a suitcase or backpack, can kill 50,000-100,000 people and devastate a portion of a city, according to Lebed.

In May, Lebed said a congressional delegation led by Rep. Curt Weldon, R-Pa., that as Yeltsin's top defense expert last year he discovered the Russian military couldn't account for 48 of 132 of suitcase bombs.

In going public, Lebed upped the total of missing suitcase bombs to 100 out of 250 in an interview with CBS' 60 Minutes.

"I don't know their location." Lebed told CBS in a program scheduled to air Sunday.

"I don't know whether they have been destroyed or whether they are stored or whether they've been sold or stolen. I don't know," Lebed said.

Lebed added that when he told Yeltsin, "I did not see any reaction" and the russian military didn't institute an inventory check.

Former Defense Minister Igor Rodionov told CBS, "He never had any information, a single report" that suitcase bombs were stolen. [End quoting]

Could one of the missing bombs be what was used in the New York Trade Center bombing?

TYSON ANNOUNCES PURCHASE OF HUDSON

From UNKNOWN, 8/97: [quoting]

Tyson Foods, the nation's largest poultry producer, is buying Hudson Foods for \$642 million just weeks after Hudson recalled a record 25 million pounds of hamburger in a contamination scare.

The deal, which was announced Thursday and is subject to regulatory approval, comes a week after Hudson said it expected its quarterly earnings to be down by at least 30 percent because of the E. coli scare, which cost Hudson its biggest customer, Burger King.

Hudson recalled the meat under government pressure after ground beef processed at its plant in Columbus, Neb., was found to be tainted with the deadly bacteria. [End quoting]

Is this another Mafia-type game where you cause severe financial loss to the business you want to take over and then buy it out at a few cents on the dollar? It looks mighty suspicious to me, especially when you consider that Tyson has ties all the way to Clinton. Do you really think the government won't give its approval?

NEW DOCTORS MISS A BEAT WITH TRIED-AND-TRUE STETHOSCOPE

From *THE DAILY NEWS*, Los Angeles, 9/?/97: [quoting]

If any one tool could be declared the symbol of the medical profession, it would surely be the stethoscope. But the ability to use that tool may be a dying art, according to a study of 453 recent medical graduates.

The new doctors, residents from 31 training programs in internal medicine or family practice, made the correct diagnosis only 20 percent of the time when asked to identify common heart abnormalities by listening to recordings of patients' heartbeats.

Residents who knew how to play a musical instrument scored a few points higher than those who did not, but the overall rate of correct diagnoses was still "disturbingly low", said the researchers, whose study is being published today in *The Journal of the American Medical Association*.

The scores should have been at least 70 percent to 80 percent correct, said Dr. Salvatore Mangione, an author of the paper. He and Dr. Linda Nieman, both from Allegheny University of the Health Sciences in Philadelphia, said they conducted their study to test an idea expressed by many medical educators that doctors are less skilled than they used to be at traditional tasks like examining patients and making diagnoses based on physical findings.

Mangione said he found the findings troubling. "This is an important skill," he said. "Everybody agrees that the bulk of our diagnosis, 80 percent of it, is based on the patient's history and the physical exam." A doctor who knows what to listen for can find out a great deal with a stethoscope, he said, especially about heart valve disorders.

Doctors who lack that ability may harm patients by failing to recognize important problems. Mangione said, or they may cause needless anxiety and expense by ordering tests to diagnose heart murmurs that they should have known, just from listening, to be harmless.

Mangione and Nieman said that their findings were especially worrisome in today's era of managed care, because generalists—including family practitioners and internists like those in the study—are taking care of more and more people. [End quoting]

This is a good indication of the dumbing-down of education all the way up into the professional realms where it is a direct link to your life or death!! **Our we ready to WAKE UP—YET??**

BAR-B-QUE? OOPS!!

From the INTERNET, 8/97: [quoting]

Sometimes being the editor of a health magazine seems like a curse—there are some things I'd rather not know! Like when I found out grilling is both a health and environmental hazard. In the past, I've looked forward to summertime backyard barbecues. To me, everything tastes better cooked over coals. But did you know grilled meat is a health risk? According to the National Cancer Institute, grilled meat contains potent carcinogens called heterocyclic aromatic amines that form when amino acids in meat and creatine, a chemical in muscle tissue, are heated together at temperatures exceeding 212°F. Smoked meat is also contaminated with polycylic aromatic hydrocarbons, another carcinogen created when fat from meat drops onto hot coals and sends smoke back up into the meat. In addition, cooking meat over charcoal emits airpolluting compounds including hydrocarbons, furans, steroids and pesticide residues.

Soyfoods, vegetables and fruit, which don't form carcinogens when grilled, are much safer choices for summer cookouts. [End quoting]

If you continue to listen to every bit of food advice you'll never eat again. The safest way to go is use **common sense** and don't go overboard in either direction in worrying about what is safe and what is not. **Balance is the key to a good life.**

MASS MURDER INCORPORATED? "TAVISTOCK'S MARTIN BRYANT" Excerpted from AN INVESTIGATION BY ALLEN DOUGLAS & MICHAEL SHARP, 5/16/97: [quoting]

THE BATTLE FOR THE MIND

Tavistock's methods were outlined by Dr. William Sargant in his 1950sq book, *The Battle for the Mind:* A physiology of conversion and brainwashing. A pioneer in the study of "shell shock", Sargant also emphasized the work of Soviet psychologist Pavlov in the 1920s and 1930s. In particular an incident in which a rising flood trapped some of Pavlov's dogs in their cages. The water rose to their heads, before receding. Pavlov found that the intense fear the dogs experienced had "wiped clean" the tricks they had been taught. Following this event he found they could be "reprogrammed". Further experiments by the SAS/SIS (Special Air Services/Secret Intelligence Services) during the 1950s, including in Malaya and Kenya, showed Tavistock that such stresses, with resultant "reprogramming" could be applied to entire societies.

REPORTING BACK TO TAVISTOCK

By the early 1960s, Emery, together with the chairman of Tavistok's governing council, Dr. Eric Trist, was giving lectures to select audiences at Tavistock on methods to **brainwash entire societies.**

In this new age of communications, they said, a series of short, universal shocks would destabilize a targeted population, plunging it into a form of "shell shock", a mass neurosis. If the **shocks were repeated** over a period of years, a more and more **infantile pattern of thinking** would develop. (At last, some understanding as to why the electorate keeps on voting for its executioners?)

AND THE TAVISTOCK AGENDA?

Emery elaborated these concepts in his 1976 article in Tavistock's magazine *Human Relations*, entitled, "The Next Thirty Years: Concepts, Methods, and Anticipations" and in his 1975 book *Futures We Are In*. In the latter he outlined three stages of a process: (1) People would "lose their moral judgment"; (2) next, "segmentation"—societal disintegration—would begin, in which the individual's focus moves from the regard for the nation-state to a preoccupation with the local community or family; and finally, (3) "disassociation" would set in, "a world in which fantasy and reality are indistinguishable", in which the individual becomes the mere 'societal unit'. Emery called this final result "Clockwork Orange" after the Anthony Burgess novel, in which habitual, random violence by gangs of youth is the order of the day, while adults retreat to their television sets and other forms of "virtual reality".

A RETREAT FROM REALITY?

For example: What level of public reaction involving parents of young children, occurred when the "discussion" paper "Sexual Offences Against The Person" prepared by the Model Criminal Code Officers Committee of the Standing Committee of Federal, State, and Territory Attorneys General proposed to lower the age of sexual consent to the age of ten, and to "allow" incest involving children above the age of 10? So far hardly a ripple; have these young parents also retreated before the onslaught?

IS TAVISTOCK OVER-CONFIDENT?

In 1960, Trist looked back at the last two decades of the assassinations of the Kennedys, Martin Luther King, the Vietnam War, the Oil shocks, the Iranian hostage crisis, etc, and announced that the process that Tavistock had predicted, had indeed begun, and would now accelerate. [End quoting]

Remember that Tavistock is part of the "Royal Secrets" that the Queen Mother would just as soon not have you know about. Keep that in mind with respect to this week's Front Page story.

SLIPPING AND SLIDING AWAY

From *POPULAR SCIENCE* magazine, October 1997: [quoting]

From power tools to cars, a variety of machines could last longer and run more effciently with the help of a new lubricant. It's made from molecules that act like tiny ball bearings.

To reduce friction, conventional high-performance lubricants contain such solid ingredients as tungsten disulfide, which has platelet-shaped molecules. Over time, however, the edges of the platelets can abrade machine parts.

Reshef Tenne of the Weizmann Institute of Science in Rehovot, Israel, leads a team that can make tungsten disulfide from buckyball-like spheres. "We cook metal oxides and sulfur to 800° C," he says. The compounds curl into spheres 1,000 angstroms in diameter. The spheres cut the friction level attained by conventional lubricants in half and reduce wear on parts to one-sixth of current levels, says Tenne.

Next, Tenne will work toward manufacturing the tiny spheres on a commercial scale. [End quoting] I wonder how long the Elite will make us wait to benefit from this new product?

BOY, 3, DIES OF FLU VIRUS IN UNPRECEDENTED CASE

From *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 8/21/97: [quoting]

HONG KONG—A 3-year-old boy died after contracting an influenza strain that had never before been seen in humans, Hong Kong officials said Wednesday. Laboratories in Hong Kong, the United States, Britain and the Netherlands identified a specimen collected from the boy's trachea as carrying a virus called influenza A of H4N1 strain, previously found mainly in birds. Officials said there is no effective vaccine. [End quoting]

Another one of the Elite's new releases?? They are going to get us one way or another if they possibly can.

WARNED BY AN ANGEL?

From ANGELS ON EARTH, May/June 1996, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

I started smoking when I was 35 and within a month was up to 60 cigarettes a day. I couldn't talk on the phone, eat or get out of bed without lighting up. My coughs and colds increased and led to flu and then pneumonia. In the emergency room a blond, blue-eyed doctor took my vital signs. He didn't need a stethoscope to hear the rasping in my chest. "Do you smoke?" he asked. "I've been thinking about trying to quit," I said. Knowing how untruthful my reply was I couldn't look him in the face, so I focused on his huge, square brass belt buckle, which seemed out of place with his white coat. "Lady, it's the death knell," he practically yelled, then strode out of the room. His words rang in my ears. I had to stop. I entered a program to quit and a week later went to report my progress to the belt-buckled doctor, but no one knew whom I was talking about. When I called admissions to track him down, I was told that no doctor on staff fit my description. But someone had gotten through to me. Thank goodness for that antismoking angel. [End quoting]

CHAPTER 10

AT AUGUST GATHERING PART II IN A SERIES

Editor's note: The following is a further transcription (Part I was in last week's CONTACT) of Little Crow addressing those gathered for several days in Tehachapi during this year's Mountain Festival (tapes available from The Word: 8/16/97 to 8/19/97, New Year Celebration meeting tapes). Little Crow's words offer insight and often humorous respite in these difficult times.

Some of us, our lives are—we are in different places in our lives—some of us pray we will be here next year. And maybe more will be here, and some won't. Whatever, I am hopeful that everyone will be here next year, at least in contact or whatever. But the idea changed for me as an indigenous person. I need to get past that as a human being. To be a human being in this time has probably been the greatest experience I could have ever asked for. That I could have ever asked for.

And to experience all of the things that I have experienced, I take complete and sole responsibility for it as being my script. I cannot blame a parent, or the military, or the government, or the FBI or the CIA—or, I can't blame anybody for the experience except myself and my participation in it. My participation in it. And my participation does not always mean necessarily physically involved in it, working for the federal government or serving the country. Doing this or doing that. To physically participate is simply to breathe. We all have contributed to the condition that we find ourselves in by the mere act of breathing. We are still here. We still love to breathe. We are still breathing. By breathing we are participating in the totality of everything that is. We are related and connected to it and we affect it and it affects us and we are responding to those conditions on a breath-by-breath basis. It is such a simple process. A simple process to look at and then eliminate all the dialogue and the wasted time contemplating the navel and the higher self, and simply get to work doing what is necessary to be done. If you want something changed, change it.

In talking about the great influx of New Age involvement with Indian rituals and ceremonies—I will just touch on that briefly. There was this mass exit from all of these different religions looking for this place somehow where they could really feel or put themselves together. And that has been something we have done always. If we don't like it, we move. We don't like the situation, we get a divorce. Or we leave, or we do something; we quit a job, or whatever. But we never stay long enough to fix it. Because if we are someplace that doesn't work for us it would behoove us to consider (one time) to stay there and fix it. To stay there and do something about it. If we feel it is filled with injustice and iniquity then we need to stay there and work with it. I say this to a lot of people who come looking for the magic formula, vision quest and sweat lodges and all those things and saying, "You have no idea what that involves, you have no idea the community and the connection of community that is invested in it for millions of years." Just to pay your \$100 or \$5,000 or \$700 or \$300 and do these things is not enough, because you will do these things and then go away. You will not stay here, you will not work here and you will not invest your time, your energy or your resources here. You only want to say you were able to do it and it's all been for selfish motivation. To give you power or some kind of recognition that this is what you have done. A Sun dance and a sweat,

and this and that and so on and so forth, and that's all—just (laughter) bah humbug! Because you have not taken it in to utilize it for the community. The community has not benefited from it whatsoever.

Anything you take from the community you must also be willing to give back to the community in whatever form that you can, ungrudgingly. Ungrudgingly, without reservations, so to speak, without animosity or without expectation. It takes a long time to get to that place, maybe; I don't know, I'm still working on it. We have been in operation 20 years down there [in Garden Grove] with something to share with people, the concept. It is ok to give to someone you don't know. It's ok to help someone you don't know, because believe me or not, it will come back to you.

It will come back to you in some way. In a positive way. Positive, negative, who cares? It is just a matter of perspective. Is it a positive now? Is that negative energy? Whoops! How much Indian are you 3/4, 2/ 4, 1/16th, 1/72nd. Well let's take 1/72nd of your blood and we will just talk to it. "Hello, Indian blood. How are you?" That is a created scenario. That is a—you can't do that. There isn't any way to do that, recreate genetics. We create the symbol, the phrase; take this phrase: "Spare the rod and spoil the child." Let's say I wrote that 2,000 years ago, minus 40. I sat around one night and got drunk, and I thought I had better write this down, (laughter) so we don't forget it. How did it go again? What did he say? "Spare the rod and spoil the child." I better write it down, as somebody sat there sipping Koolaid, you always have one, a Capricorn usually, sitting there sipping on their mint julep. Watching you go through all this work and then they will say something profound, "Yeah, but in 2,000 years they are going to find out that you don't have to spank the child because by 3 years old their whole socializing process has been structured." Then we will come out with something like "Don't hit the children anymore." So what about "Spare the rod and spoil the child"? Well we will throw that one out, we will just take that one out, we will cut it out; like you do, you know. Cut it out and take it out and when you get to that page you will see this big hole. What was that one? Then pretty soon, if we wait long enough, there are all these holes in the book. We have cut out certain things because it no longer applies because we knew when we wrote it it wouldn't hang on forever. It had to change, because people would change, ideas would change, concepts would change and it wouldn't be relevant any longer. Think of all the ink we wasted.

Amazing, the process, the change that is upon us. Where are we going? My grandchildren are going to live in space. My grandchildren will go back to where we come from. They will go out there and live and pioneer and do all the things that we did here; will go out and walk around. I see some pictures here, and stuff—will go out and walk around. The first guy who throws a gum wrapper on the ground is going to catch "holy heck", because they will be the first polluter, you know. We will go out there and we will explore and we will resettle, resettle where we have already come from. We live in the desert here in California; this is the desert; a lot of green, a lot of water, if we can find water out there. They are gone, those places are gone, because we will be there in a fast minute. We will be staking claims, it will be like the Oklahoma gold rush. Little Land Rovers—get to that place and stick a stake in the ground—we are floating around, got-to-get-here, got-to-get-there and that is the way we will live. We will inhabit the planets again. It will be a wonderful memory lesson, collective consciousness, because we will begin to have deja vu; doggone, I have been here before. Right! Now you remember. This is where we have been in our journey, and there are places we haven't gone yet so let's try to get beyond the idea that there is only one galaxy, one universe.

Let's get into multiple universes. Billions and billions of galaxies, and let's move from there. Let's figure it

as an adventure. That we don't have to pollute this one beyond livability and we can clean this one up for those who don't feel like traveling: us older folks. We can do the twilight of our years here. Setting up on the fat of the hill over here, looking out over the freeway, you know. All you young whipper-snappers can be doing whatever you want to, out there in the outerland. The hinterland, out there. Doing what is necessary to do. I will still be here, talking about playing everyday, connected to the stuff, and everything is related and everyone is sacred. I may not be as full of vitality, I may have to be sitting down all the time, but I will have some people coming to hear me. I will, but that's the way it has always been, isn't it? Haven't we always gone to some place to hear something that we already know. Anybody come here from a long ways? How far is a long ways?

Audience: Hawaii, Bear Valley, Texas, West Virginia, Washington, Canada and Ohio. Thank you very much. Couldn't get along without Ohio.

Little Crow: I have come up here from Orange County. Costa Mesa, Garden Grove—come a long way. What do you want? What do you want me to say? What do you want to hear? I want to open this right now to that issue if I can because I have told you everything that I need to tell you.

What the future holds for us is: that your projects, your plans here are going to come to fruition; my projects, my plans are going to come to fruition; we are all going to succeed. It's been done; it has happened already and we are just working through the process. That's all, you are just working through the process, it has already happened.

So, put the energy not in wondering how you are going to do it, but just put your mind to doing it and do what's necessary to get it done. That means everybody. Everybody here, like everybody down there, I say get off your backsides and turn on the switch and just get to do something. Give me a commitment for three years. Give me a commitment for one year. If I need something, I call you and I don't need excuses. I want you to do it, just do it and we will get to where we need to go. They just look at me, you know. Some have backed off but more have jumped up and said, "Yeah, put me down for three years." And then I can't find them. (laughter) Their phone has been cut off, "This number is no longer in service, if you feel you have dialed by mistake, try again, you chump." Try again, but anyway that's it; so. I can't tell you about that there is this great vastness and your future in it. Hell, you know what's—Doggone, I'm sorry—you know what's in your future; you know.

All you got to do is live with it; live it, live it out. If it becomes too much of a burden back off, pack your bags and jump off the train, that's what I suggested to those at my gathering. And saying, "The engine's begun to pick up steam; if you can't move with the engine, you can't support the engineer, the guy throwing the wood in there, then hop off now before it begins moving too fast and you hurt yourself. 'Cause I don't want you to hurt yourself. Thank you for your love and support to this point; adios, muchachos; hasta la vista, baby. Because I don't have time to try and deal with you when I am trying to guide the train or the car or whatever you want to call it. I don't have the time or the energy nor the wherewithall to waste time anymore fooling with your pettiness and the stuff that isn't important any longer to anyone but yourself. But that is the way to be. If it is important to you then go do something with it, but don't do it here. Do it someplace else. Do you know what I'm saying? Don't waste the time or the energy or the train by pulling in the other direction, and don't cause an accident. It is that simple.

We are growing. We are growing as a result of those kinds of things and becoming more direct and more

focused. That's the change that is going on within me. I have given myself three years to do this project, and it is done; already done. When I gave myself three years it was already done. The three years is just for convincing people that it's done. Okay; I am saying ok here it is, here is the building, here is the ground, there it is a sanctuary for humanity. Now I can go on and do what I need to do, what I want to do, something else now. I have something else I need to do.

[To be continued].

CHAPTER 11

A LETTER TO MY DARLING DAUGHTER JOSEPHINE PART III

Editor's note: Part II of this excellent historical narrative was presented in last week's CONTACT. We here continue with the third and final part in this series.

The Supreme State robs, steals and deprives even the right to life of its own most fanatical followed from the moment they have served their grim purpose. There are no rewards in the service of the Devil and never have been. The secret Order of the "Skull and Bones" crowd to which George Bush and his colleagues belong, and the totalitarian state of the New World Order, are the same thing. Both are deeply Satanic and in enmity of the Christ. Supreme dictatorship of the state denies any individual value or worth, and subjects its citizens to absolute servitude whereas, the *Constitution of the United States* mandates it to be the duty of the Government to serve the absolute sovereignty of the individual. To abandon the *Constitution* and *Bill of Rights*, as we are now in process of doing, is the fault and disgrace of none other then the people of this country.

The incredible deception behind the New World Order will become painfully clear if the people of America allow themselves to be disarmed, for then they will lose the constitutional guarantees of their freedoms and be robbed of everything they possess, to be executed thereafter in droves. There is only one way to save the freedom of this land. A powerful grass-root movement must sweep the country. It needs the charismatic leadership of a powerful organizer. All it really needs is to get fifty million patriot citizens to pledge their support in membership in open declaration: "That the Constitution and Bill of Rights, shall be the only ruling law of this land, and that all other laws contrary to it shall be invalid and of no account, and shall be removed forever from current statutes of enforcement." A certificate endorsing the pledge of allegiance to the existing and original God-given principle of this overriding law of justice and order, should count upon a small subscription and a significant badge, brooch, necklace or lapel jewel to signify individual commitment. In this way, countless millions could safely participate in expressing their will for a return to decency and honor, and be numbered a force to be reckoned with that could not be gainsaid, in the face of would-be oppressors. An action like this would reveal and embarrass the Satanic horde, individually and collectively, for precisely the traitors that they are. There are few who could not support such a movement, and many would wish to do so. How many unemployed, by this means, could be kept alive and busy, and how many politicians, damned lawyers and unlawful strangers, would be put on the spot?

It is also worthy of note that forced integration of the human race for the purpose of mongrelizing the world into the grey homogenous mediocrity of the easily controlled mass, is another Khazarian gambit, and a deadly one. Not only does Nature appear reluctant to subscribe to the indiscriminate mixing of cultural equations, but the Khazar overlords fear the qualities of individual genius and potential for leadership, that racial purity breeds, and which the enslavers cannot control. Some years ago, many thousands of different varieties of snails were randomly mixed and distributed throughout a nature reserve in the island of Hawaii, and a few years later, they had dutifully sorted themselves out into their own species without exception. They knew each other, knew better, and could not be fooled.

The ever-present fear in the hearts of the subversive manipulators that they might be outplayed by the coming of the Shining Host of the Sons of Light in the armadas of their omnipotent space craft, is the reason for contingent government plans of awful malfeasance, to prevent the will of God, and the rescue of this planet from taking place. The present rulers of Earth fear that we the people may call upon the Sons of God who come in love and peace to assist the Earth, if we will allow, into its age of perfection.

Our call compels a Cosmic answer, and the forces of Light will come in accordance with the laws of the Creator, if they see fit, and if we allow them to do so peacefully. The Conspirators want to engender human fear, terror and hostility towards all beings in outer space, when in reality, they are our friends. They would have us believe the stories of the "Greys" as extraterrestrials who have come to colonize the Earth, in service of their masters the "Reptilians" who are on their way from a remote sector of space, and who are reputed to have a distinct partiality for human flesh and blood, and look upon us in much the same way as we would look upon a can of sardines. Misinformation of this kind can be expected to present a lessthan-promising future. It could be relied upon to cause us to become a very nasty and hostile bunch, even betraying us into rejecting the coming of the Christ and of His Host. It is for this reason, the Conspirators have unspeakable contingency plans for tragic slaughter, on a large scale, of people in America, to divert our attention in a military takeover, or alternatively, to create in us an unfortunate panic from the deception of a simulated attack of a supposed invasion from outer space. The destruction would be all too real and convincing, but the real enemy, as in everything else, would be our own false government with a formidable armed power behind it to enforce its will, and vile deception. Satanic wickedness can be expected to stop short of nothing. Holographic three-dimensional projections in space to produce the figure of Christ in the heavens, or over St. Peter's in Rome, would deceive many into believing the Master had come again, when in actuality, the event would be timed to coincide with the arrival of the anti-Christ on the world scene.

It is only fair to state, however, that "Greys, and some Reptilians" and other very ugly specimens do apparently exist, originally from other galactic regions, but who have become Earthbound and have been entrapped here for thousands of years. They cannot come and go, and their preference is to live within the vast caverns of the inner-Earth. In is only that our Government in its perversity and greed for world power, has chosen to work with these subterranean entities, from the time of President Eisenhower onwards, in secret scientific collaboration. In exchange for advanced technology, we have built for these sinister alien beings as well as for our own scientific community, a vast, intricate parallel network of interconnected underground cities all over the United States, with connections to every other continent. It is this unwise collaboration that has enabled our scientists to advance so rapidly in genetic and biological experimentation in the fields of cloning humanlike robotoids, computerization and new and diabolic secret weaponry. Had the Gulf War not ended peremptorily, these dread weapons would have been used and the American military force would have been annihilated. It is very important our entire military force be returned to America, that we fight for the right to keep guns for self-defence, and we demand our Constitution be made once more the ultimate law of the land, and all laws not consistent with the Constitution be removed. That the Federal Bank, now in the private hands of the Khazar-Jewish Zionist Bankers, be returned to the people of America in control of Congress, which alone shall have the right to coin and print money. That all usury and unlawful exaction of income-tax in violation of the Constitution, be summarily abolished.

All forces of darkness and evil work in utmost secret. Entities of the shadow cannot stand the light of

exposure. The importance of knowing the truth is that it renders evil impotent to act. And that is why everyone assists simply by knowing "what is" for then, evil is known, likewise, for what it is also. It is an extraordinary thing that the Conspirators should number so small a percentage of the total population. It is cause for wonder, that the so-called ultimate Committee of "Three-hundred" and less then three percent of those who constitute the subversive alien Dark Force upon this planet, should have managed to have us by the throat, and forced us to support and pay for our own extermination when, with a little knowledge of the enemy, we could very well throw out the infidels overnight. In actual fact, it will now not be easy, for the adversary will fight to the death, and force the Earth down with him if he can. The problem is that the people have been poisoned, programmed and brainwashed into a state of ignorance and apathy, as to what has happened in the past, what is actually happening now, and is intended to happen to our humanity in the immediate future. Unless we awaken very rapidly indeed, and reverse the present fatal stupor of ignorance, we shall be doomed to self-destruct in an extinction that is virtually certain by the end of this decade. We have free will to allow theft, and because of fear, we have allowed it all the way, without saying so much as "boo" to a pussy-cat. The terrible reality is that continued physical existence in accordance with the Radiant Light of the Creator's intent may no longer be possible on this Earth, if we choose to hand over our Divine Inheritance to the forces of Satanic Evil.

The truth, furthermore, is that we are not going to be miraculously saved, by anyone other than ourselves—and then only by invoking the immortal power of the God-essence within ourselves. There is, in the individual, an inner light to be found in impenetrable stillness. It is pure bliss in a pervasive peace at the center of being. There is a voice in the Silence of the Mind, that gives knowledge of the Real, to be found only in the "Self". It is a path to the direct experience of Absolute Reality. There is nothing equal to this "Knowing Self", for then one knows the way home; and one can know also the inspiration of one's part in God's will for the reclamation of His Creation. This is the greatest choice by election, given to all, to choose to be an active part of the ongoing stream of evolution, towards infinite realms of unutterable perfection. So there you have it. Just do it.

The entire intent of the Khazar's Satanic commitment to massive World Revolution and the ruin and disorder of all peoples without exception, has not wavered in the course of three thousand years. Their attack has been subversively directed upon society to destroy the family, disrupt the economy and control government by seizure of the money system, with systematic distortion in the use of language and the meaning of words, while falsifying religion, history and spiritual belief. In consequence of this infernal alien influence, the whole educational process, at all levels, has become an abomination. The Practice of Law has proliferated a system of poisonous injustice, and Medicine in its unholy alliance with the pharmaceutical interests of the drug overlords, has become a profession the truth of which is far too terrible ever to be told. The attack upon the private ownership of property is intended to undermine individual freedom upon which it depends, and the depreciation in the value of our money and currency removes any reasonable hope of meaningful lives, until the subversive influence of the perpetrators of absolute evil, is recognized and forever removed. The nature of the enemy must be known and brought into the light of day. Failure to remove the parasitic alien, so corruptive of everything it touches, means simply the death and extinction of our species. The problem is not one that will simply pass away. It will take formidable resolution, courage and knowledge of the truth to overcome this struggle to the death, for that is what it means. The danger is that we have become a nation of unwitting liars, as we feast on perpetual lies, we can no longer discern the truth. The greater the lie, the more it is believed, until truth becomes, itself, unbelievable. The greatest of all the lies, have been those to strike at the heart of the Christian ethic, upon which the values

and security of our lives have always rested.

Contrary to what the Zionist Khazars would have us believe, Christ was not a Jew, neither was he one of them in any known sense of the word. Mary, indeed, was a Scythian from the city of Scythopolis, one of the ten Greek-cultured cities of the Decomeron. And Jesus, graphically described by the Jewish historian Josephus upon the master's appearance in Jerusalem, who spoke in wonder of his radiant golden hair and bearded fair countenance and blue eyes, and the nobility of his stature and bearing among the darkcomplexioned and swarthy Judeans, in utter contrast to themselves. To speak of Judeo-Christianity, as though Christianity, the very antithesis of Judaism and of the satanic Talmud, could ever owe anything to that source, is a grave reflection upon the intelligence and discrimination of Christians and their misguided teachers. The "Chosen-race" myth is simply another of these prodigious lies, appropriated by the Khazar Jews unto themselves, to make ignorant Christians believe they should owe allegiance to them when, in reality, nothing was owed to Judaism other than the crucifixion of Christ, and of all his peoples ever since. The Khazar Zionists, who stole Palestine from the Arabs, never had even the remotest claim upon that land, and to have assigned to themselves the name of "Israel" which rightly, in its biblical reference belongs to the races of Ephraim and Manasseh, England and America, has led our Western race into the fatal misconception of believing the so-called "Israeli" to be the people of God, when they actually represent the greatest enemy the United States and the people of this world have ever known.

The treacherous betrayal of Christian ministers in support of these horrendous lies is highly indicative of the political nature of organized religion. The reality of Self is within every entity whose name is to be found written in the Creator's Book of Life.

The most insidious of all attacks are those made upon human relationships and the misdirection of the supposed liberation of women, and emasculation in confusing the role of men. The enlightenment of real knowledge and truth liberates, and that is for all. The deliberate creation of turmoil and division between the sexes makes for separation, and proliferates misery. This leads to division, and claims of rights without end, so that the obligations of harmonious unity are no longer perceived. The conflict so subtly induced, finally focuses on the "right to life", or the "right to destroy it". If life exists at conception, and when does life not exist, then abortion must be seen as murder. America celebrates the "right to choice" with, at the very least, two-and-one-half-million abortions a year, which means the murder of twenty-five million or more souls in a single decade, within the confines of one country alone. The world figure is shattering, and all the wars put together cannot even touch this record. Choice, it may have to be admitted, is made at the moment of conception, and choice cannot be claimed after the fact, without denial of responsibility. While the truth of this matter may be awkward, the conclusion is inescapable. There are women who have discovered the secret of mastery in the function of conception, and are consequently unconcerned about the right of choice, because they already possess it naturally, and need no recourse to the unnatural resort of murder. Our society, in any case, has obviously failed to establish proper civilized conditions of security, safety, honor and respect for the single most important vocation that can be performed in nurturing magnificently, the renewal of the race from inception to its ascension.

We are living in an age of such self-imposed ignorance when knowledge is available and can be found, although much suppressed at a time when there have never been so many who know so little. All over the world, including America, statues of the Virgin Mary are flowing in inexplicable floods of tears, real and human tears at that, for which there has been no scientific explanation. "Beloved Mary, why dost thou

weep?" Are these tears for those who choose not to wake up, whose preference is in capitulation to evil? There does seem to be an unresolved problem here in the lack of regard for life, connected with women's unacknowledged power in the role of destroyer, which is every bit as formidable as that of the errant male.

It is a curious thing to note how the numeral "6", representing the aspect of compromise and the imperfection attributed to Man, when tripled, gives the number "666" the number of Man and of the Beast, in configuration of the antichrist of *Revelation*. That triple-six is to be found secretly encoded in all operations, corporation structures and activities of the Ruling Elite among the satanic and subversive elements of the Secret World Government. It is the signature of their unwelcome and villainous control over the lives of all men. It is also the only numeral, when traced out, which will form an anti-clockwise spiral, and a motion imparting a negative spin in its action. The life-force spins positive in rotation in the healthy organs and body of man. The negative spin is indicative of the downward vortex of death. In this case, it is surely the death spiral of physical materiality seeking to destroy the soul, in suppression of the spirit. There is a school of thought that holds *Revelation* to be an original projection of the dark force of the Biblical Watchers, and therefore, not to be accorded prophetic inevitability. Others hold the scenario is scheduled to occur if the wilder inmates of the lunatic asylum of Earth (in this sector of the universe) don't sharply straighten themselves out. But the crooked, no doubt, shall be made straight, as Nature can be counted on in the last resort, even if it takes flood, fire, subsidence and unholy amounts of brimstone to do the job.

Another symbolic, but significant message is being discerned in the perfect geometrical patterns of immense size, appearing in the open fields of England and elsewhere, isolated out in the middle of untouched fields of ripening grain. Wheat stems are found flattened out spirally, with a highly charged and altered molecular structure. These intricate geometries, imprinted from above, can be nothing other than visiting cards from our Brothers in Space who watch and wait, and who durst not interfere, under the law of free will applying to this planet, as long as our people in the name of our present government, prefer to work with the forces of darkness. The good guys are around, and we are not to forget we are not alone, when the good ship "Lollipop" goes down, as it very well may. In the interval, it is appropriate to make adequate sanctuary for such times, before the Earth reels and shakes itself loose of its wanton transgressors.

Just as in those days past when a great master, with incomparable courage, confronted all the hosts of evil and the illusion of death on this plane, singly and alone—we find ourselves collectively, in this hour, required to confront that same evil, to banish it once and for all from the world for which we are accountable. As the days of this cycle close, the final battle is for the minds, the hearts and the souls of men. It is a deadly struggle to preserve the freedom of the individual before God, against the soulless counterfeit of the encroaching tyrannical power of the Absolute State. Tragically, a Godless universe is what the sinister New World Order of George Bush implies. It is, therefore, a struggle for the life of the Planet. There can be no spectators. For, to stand on the sidelines, is to have already chosen oneself as lost. Our actions are recorded for all time, upon the imperishable screen of the great computerised Mind of the Life-force. There are no secrets, and nothing that is not known. The choice is to be free within the Creation or, be enslaved in the lesser disintegrating worlds of man-made illusion in cycles of suffering and darkness.

One thing is certain. America could so easily shine like a blazing star, were it not for the legions of the traitor thick about, that the freedom of this land now hangs by a thread. The perfidy of so many perpetrators in betrayal, has to be fought with knowledge, with truth, in understanding of the mortal enemy, without violence. In this final hour, the question truly is: what is it we have left in such utter complacency, so

completely and hopelessly undone? Within Immortal Living Essence of totality in Radiance from whence we come, is it not appropriate genius to call forth the Power and the Glory of that superlative level of Consciousness and Energy that knows only life in the weary face of death? Indeed, if only one mouse could roar, the dust of the ground will have been shaken.

BIBLIOGRAPHIC LISTING

Pawns in the Game—Commander William Guy Carr

The Controversy of Zion—Douglas Reed

Deadlier Than the Hydrogen Bomb—Wing Commander Leonard Young

Who Brought the Slaves to America—Walter White

The Thirteenth Tribe—Arthur Koestler

The Hoax of the Twentieth Century—Dr. Arthur Butz

The Myth of the Six-Million-Anonymous

Christ was not a Jew—Joseph Connor

The Secret World Government—Major General Count Cherep-Spiridovich

Assault on the Liberty—James M. Ennes

The Great Income-Tax Hoax—Irwin Schiff

Is the Diary of Anne Frank Genuine—Professor Robert Faurisson

The Six-Million Swindle—Dr. Austin J. App

How the Order Creates War and Revolution (Skull and Bones Society of Yale)

How the Order Controls Education—Secret Cult of the Order—Anthony Sutton

Other Losses—Jacques Bacque (General Eisenhower and Prisoners of War)

The International Jew—Henry Ford, Senior

The Auschwitz Myth—Judge Wilhelm Staglich

The Protocols of the Elders of Zion—Blueprint of the Illuminati subversion of the world.

The Concentration Camp at Dachou—Bishop Neuhausler

Murder by Injection; The World Order; The Curse of Canaan—Eustace Mullins

The Zionist Connection—Alfred Lilienthal

Churchill's War—David Irving

The Hidden Tyranny—Benjamin Freedman

NEA—Trojan Horse in American Education—Blumenfield

Usury, Destroyer of Nations—S.C. Mooney

The Truth about Aids; Club of Rome; Kissinger, Agent of Doom; Armand Hammer and USSR; Jesuit

World Subversion—John Coleman

The French Revolution—Nesta Webster

Behold a Pale Horse—William Cooper

Hope's Husband; Star-Wars; Desert Shield—Nord Davis

- (1) The Sons of Liberty, P.O. Box 214, Metairie, LA 70004 (Booklist)
- (2) CPA Book Publisher, 33838 SE Kelso Road, Suite 6, P.O. Box 596, Boring, Oregon 97009
- (3) Concord Books, P.O. Box 3380, Kailuo, Kona, Hawaii, 96745 (Booklist)
- (4) CONTACT Newspaper and Phoenix Source Distributors. CONTACT: P.O. Box 27800, Las Vegas,

NV 89126; Phoenix Source: P.O. Box 27353, Last Vegas, NV 89126.

(5) Institute of Historical Review, P.O. Box 1306, Torrance, CA 90505

- (6) Nord Davis, The Northpoint Tactical Teams, P.O. Box 129, Topton, North Carolina 28781
- (7) Cosmic Awareness Communications, P.O. Box 115, Olympia, Washington 98507, "Revelations of Awareness"
- (8) The McAlvany Intelligence Advisor, P.O. Box 84904 Phoenix, AZ 85071

CHAPTER 12

GERMAIN: IS IT TRANSMUTATION OR TRIBULATION FOR YOU?

Editor's note: The following message is by the Ascended Master known as Violinio St. Germain, Master of the Seventh Ray (or Aspect) of Creator's spectrum, the Violet Ray of Transmutation, among the seven great "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us get through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing.

In Journal #7, called THE RAINBOW MASTERS, Germain says: "I head up the program for the thrust of the Seventh Ray, for it is the Transmuting Ray. I am passionate about it, unbending regarding its use for Purity, Truth AND FREEDOM—FREEDOM OF THY GOD SELF, IN THE SERVICE OF THE CHRISTOS, WHICH IS GOD—PURE AND SIMPLE: GOD FREEDOM EXPRESSED IN MANIFEST FORM IN THEE AND IN ME....

"If ye wish to sum the measure of my existence in all prior times, please let it be said, 'He lived to make men free'....

"In all my times upon thy place, I have sought to stand squarely on a platform of basic human rights for a responsible, reasoning public education in the principles of liberty and equal opportunity for all. I have efforted to teach thee ones to espouse your inalienable DIVINE RIGHT to live life according to your highest conception of GOD. No right, however simple or basic, can long be secure without the underpinning of the Spiritual Graces and the Divine Law that instills a compassionate righteousness in the exercise thereof. Always I have efforted to make thy country a fortress against ignorance and superstition, where Christ achievement could blossom, and devotion to THE ONE could prosper in the quest for the Holy Truth (Grail)....

"I have always efforted at being an immortal spokesman for your scientific, religious and political liberties. I believe that humanity shall accept as an axiom for its conduct the principle for which I have laid down my life: the right to investigate. It is the credo of free men—this opportunity to try, this privilege to err, this courage to experiment anew.

"We scientists of the human spirit shall experiment, experiment, experiment, ever experiment. Through centuries of trial and error, through agonies of research, let us experiment with laws and customs, with money systems and governments, until we chart the one true course."

For more background on this important group of teachers, the "Rainbow Masters", plus earlier writings by them, refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

9/6/97 VIOLINIO ST. GERMAIN

Good evening. Violinio St. Germain present as the Violet Ray—the Seventh Ray, the Ray of Transmutation. All is unfolding as it should, and though many days appear as if they are heading

down the slippery slope, I assure you that all is occurring within its proper sequence of events. These are the times which have long been spoken of, and these are the times which shall try the tenacity of all souls present upon the Earth.

This is the time of the Great Transmutation; others call it the time of the Great Tribulation.

However, it is all in the perception of things, is it not? For those who are focusing upon the Light of God, the times shall be considered transmuting. For those focusing instead upon the great darkness, their days shall be numbered as tribulation.

There is no doubt that these times are difficult, even for those in the Light. Yet, how much greater would be the pain if ye were walking in total darkness? In the hours of apparent darkness, you ones will need to focus upon the Light and stand in the Strength of your convictions.

Great are the temptations to strike out at, and to be seduced by, the darkness. And these temptations will only grow stronger in the coming days, for you have but seen the mere beginnings of the transmutation process upon your planet.

As all things continue to exhibit signs of change—from your weather to your politics—know that change is what transmutation is all about. You cannot achieve higher-frequency existence without this condition of change. And because ALL are involved upon your planet, including the planet itself, all things, therefore, are changing—the planet and its inhabitants. Even the four-legged creatures, the winged ones, and those that swim in the waters, seem to you to be confused. You two-legged ones are certainly in a most confused state and this is all due to the massive and unprecedented changes that are occurring at the present time.

You have been forewarned, over and over again, that this time was approaching. Well, my friends, the time HAS ARRIVED!

Prepare yourselves NOW for a most notable Winter, as the El Nino throttles up for an explosive display. The ocean waters, particularly in the Pacific, are up to 30 degrees warmer than has ever been seen in recent times past! You have tropical fish appearing in the waters off Northern California and British Columbia. In San Francisco, the waters are at least 25 degrees above the "normal" range, and this is but a sampling of what is occurring all up and down the seacoast of the Americas. Even your weather forecasters are warning you ones to "batten down the hatches", so to speak, as the rainfall (and possibly snowfall) amounts are expected to be three times what would typically be expected for the upcoming Winter months.

If you could view your planet down at the very core, you would see that there are many fluctuations taking place there, causing the magnetic field of your planet to fluctuate as well. Since the systems of all living creatures upon your planet are attuned to the natural magnetic pulses and frequencies of the planet itself, all living creatures are also experiencing the same "roller-coaster ride".

These fluctuations of biological frequencies are causing all sorts of odd behavior, discomforting

aches and pains (especially in areas of the back, base of the skull, and shoulders, where there are denser complexes of nerve-muscle function), mental confusion and simple inability to focus mentally, plus a myriad of other odd maladies. So, do not despair in thinking you are "falling apart". Rather, these are "only" your physical body's reactions to Mother Earth's tremendous "growing pains" of sorts.

These magnetic fluctuations will eventually cause a reversal of the magnetic poles of planet Earth. THIS IS NOT THE SAME AS A *PHYSICAL* POLE SHIFT (of the Earth's rotational axis, which is in its own condition of instability at present). This simply means that the planet's magnetic forces will switch order of flow. Yes, this will have an effect upon compasses and all other magnetic instruments. But that, believe it or not, is the very least of your worries at present!

What you DO need to be focusing upon at present are the effects upon your third-dimensional existence resulting from the fluctuations in these subtle, basic life-force energies. You ARE being affected, only some are more sensitive to the changes than others. Those who are naturally sensitive are experiencing even more difficulty than they have in the past, and it is important for these ones to have understanding of what is occurring to them.

It is important that you not "fight" these changes, but learn to switch your own frequency to match that of your planet. You ones are often quite resistant to change, and this, my dear friends, is a MOST MAJOR change you are going to have to deal with. You have the option of refusing to accept and go with the changes, but you will only be hurting yourself, for the planet is not going to sit back and wait until you are ready. Many are fighting the changes, and therein are actually choosing to depart the planet. This pattern will continue and will but increase in the coming days.

However, there are also many who are going to choose to leave of their own accord—not because they refuse to accept the changes, but because they have effected the changes they came here to accomplish and their work is finished. These ones are so "tuned-in" to the progression of the planetary transmutation that they KNOW exactly what is occurring and are choosing to cross over to be of greater assistance from the non-physical realm. They will simply pick up "new bodies" on the other side to continue their service.

How will you know who these ones are? Most likely you will not. And if the truth is to be known, it is really none of your business! YOUR business is to concern yourself with YOUR own challenges of living—and that will keep all of you more than busy. Believe me!

The distractions are many these days for all of you, and besides having to deal with the planetary changes, you are being bombarded by the news of one Earth-shaking event after another. It is well that you attempt to be informed, but be careful as to just how much of the drama and emotion you get suckered into. That is how the adversary will keep you from focusing your energies in the proper direction. And, oh yes, the adversary is working powerfully, and is in "overdrive" right now, for the time of darkness is very shortened, and there is a great push underway by the forces of darkness as they work to keep both the Light and the Lightworkers at bay. They know their demise is imminent, and are wishing to prolong their reign of terror as long as possible.

Be very careful these days with whom you associate, for the dark powers have set their sights upon the workers of Light. They will come to you presenting as "angels of the light". But it is your responsibility to test each and every one, for they can be very seductive and very desirable to your lower energies. Take great caution, and do not be taken-in by every one who comes your way, seemingly as a "friend", in the coming days.

Many of you are finding yourselves in trying and changing personal situations, and you are the ones being severely tested by the dark forces. Shield yourselves well, and do not allow yourselves to be overwhelmed in self-doubt and fear as you move forward on the new paths your lives are taking.

You created the changes because you were following the guidance of the Lighted Ones. Thus, many of you removed yourselves from dangerous situations and places. Many more of you are, at present, making these changes. Stand firm in the strength of your convictions in the days ahead. Be certain you are making your OWN decisions, based upon careful evaluation of your inner knowledge, and not on doubt or fear. Be certain that you are NOT basing your decisions upon the expectations of, or assumed obligations to, another. You and ONLY you can know the truth that lies within self.

You may find that previous friends, family, and acquaintances will be no more. Fret not, for each one is changing, and that which was may be no more a necessity. Each one of you must look within and make decisions based upon your own chosen path, and that path may be separating from ones you have had associations with in the past. This is all part of the changes taking place.

Appreciate when any separation is for the benefit of all involved, and is but part of the larger transitionary period you are experiencing. Paths may, at some point in the future, cross again; but you may not know that at present.

Walk forward upon YOUR Lighted path, placing one foot surely and firmly in front of the other, and take one step at a time. You may sometimes find yourself running, but you'll still be placing one foot in front of the other. Only the pace will have quickened!

Be diligent in the coming hours and days, but do not allow yourselves to be overwhelmed with all the changes taking place. As I stated earlier, all is occurring in its proper sequence of events, and all things really are in their proper season, even though, from your perspective, everything seems out of control and out of balance. Well, chelas, the balance has been missing for such a great long time, that you ones are confusing the process of re-balancing with chaos.

Take it as it comes, for there is order in this time of change. Lift your frequency to that of your planet and you will find yourselves less at the mercy of the changes. We have, in past lessons, given you many practical suggestions for achieving this raising of frequency. For now, let us simply suggest that you monitor that which gives you a feeling of positive upliftment—such as comes with the cultivation of humor and joy and purpose—and make such a part of your daily spiritual "diet", in conjunction with calling upon we of God's Hosts for guidance and protection.

We are with you—know that always. You are not alone and you are being watched over and guided continually—only most of you are not aware of the Guides who stand ready to take your hand and assist you.

I am Violinio St. Germain, of the Seventh, the Violet, Ray of Transmutation. I stand with all the other Masters of transition and Hosts of God of Light, at the ready station to serve in these days of your Great Transition. I say to you: shall it be a time of transmutation and growth into Radiance for you, or shall it be a time of tribulation, pain, and chaos? Mother Earth knows her destiny, and so shall you be master of yours—one way or the other!

Salu.

CHAPTER 13

NATIVE AMERICAN GAMING: CALIFORNIA'S TRIBES THRIVING STATE SEEKS CONTROL VIA COMPACT by Rick Martin 9/22/97

Well, as usual, the issue of Native American gaming in California (or any other state for that matter) is far more complex than one would at first suspect. So, too, is the issue of "sovereignty" among the native tribes and Native American reservations. Sovereignty is an illusive concept. Intellectually, it is easy to grasp; in practice, it has become all but impossible. The achievement of sovereignty in our current culture makes forging a home out of the 1800s American wilderness seem like child's play. And sovereignty for the Native Americans in their treaty-bound trail of tears becomes yet further entrenched through modern legislation which promises abundance via gambling (commonly referred to as gaming), but in reality further chains-down the concept of freedom and sovereignty.

It seems that Uncle Sam will, much like the camel in the tent, first stick his nose onto the reservation through governmental supports via the food-stamp program and Medi-Cal, and then, once in, has a virtual lock on freedom on alleged sovereign property. What do I mean? Well, let's take a closer look to gain some insight while attempting not to stray too far from the original topic of Native American gaming.

Let there be no mistake, gaming on the reservations has provided financial abundance and "means" where before there was none. Of the some one-hundred-odd Native American tribes/bands in California alone, it is estimated that over 40 are currently practicing some form of gaming, thus making it the highest number in the nation. This is followed by the state of Oklahoma with 38 tribes practicing gaming. At a national total of some \$4.5 billion annually, Native American gaming has certainly become a financial force in its own right. Is it any wonder that Uncle Sam has suddenly reared his head at attention? Gaming has strengthened tribes through prosperity. But Native American gaming, in California as elsewhere, certainly has not gone unfettered or without attacks by state and national governmental agencies.

In Our Brother's Keeper: The Indian In White America, we read: [quoting]

The Indian is never alone. The life he leads is not his to control. That is not permitted. Every aspect of his being is affected and defined by his relationship to the Federal Government—and primarily to one agency of the Federal Government: the Bureau of Indian Affairs.

From birth to death his home, his land, his reservation, his schools, his jobs, the stores where he shops, the tribal council that governs him, the opportunities available to him, the way in which he spends his money, disposes of his property, and even the way in which he provides for his heirs after death—are all determined by the Bureau of Indian Affairs acting as the agent of the United States Government. [End quoting]

From the introduction of another book supplied to *CONTACT*, title unknown, we read: [quoting]

Law dominates Indian life in a way not duplicated in other segments of American society. The federal

Congress, which early in the Nation's history was found to possess extensive power over Indians, has enacted over four thousand treaties and statutes dealing with Native Americans. Regulations and guidelines implementing these laws are even more numerous. The tribes' own laws, and some state statutes dealing with Indians, add to the complexity. There are thousands of reported judicial decisions in Indian law. Litigation has dealt extensively with Indian rights to valuable resources such as land, minerals, wildlife, and water. Self-government in Indian country, a right that has always been central to Indian people, has continuously been challenged in court by state officials, private interests, and others who argue that separate Indian governments should not persevere.

The doctrinal foundations for federal Indian law are in many respects anomalous in our jurisprudence. The Supreme Court has drawn upon principles of international law dealing with aboriginal peoples. The United States has recognized Indian tribes as sovereigns with powers of self-government. Further, the *Constitution* was drafted in such a manner that tribal governments are not bound by constitutional limitations such as the *Bill of Rights* and the *Fourteenth Amendment*. Thus, among other things, Indian law includes unique property interests, distinctive jurisdictional principles, and a special trust relationship between Indians and the United States. [End quoting]

Sovereign immunity is currently under attack in the Congress through legislation being put forth by long-time Native American foe Senator Slade Gorton (R-WA), Chairman of the Senate Appropriations Sub-committee on Interior and Related Agencies. Section 120, as part of the fiscal year 1998 Interior appropriations bill, contains a provision which would require Indian tribal governments to waive their sovereign immunity against suit as a condition of receiving federal funds and, further, would authorize actions against tribes to be heard in federal court, thus undermining tribal self-governance. Under Senator Gorton's proposal, tribal court authority would be diminished and a tribal council elected to lead a tribe and govern its people would face the risk that, whether it acted or failed to act, the tribe's land and other assets, and thus the tribe itself, would be exposed to loss through the federal courts.

<u>INDIAN GAMING</u> REGULATORY ACT (IGRA)

As if all of these factors weren't enough, in 1988 Congress passed a law legislation which has had a tremendous impact on Native Americans throughout the land. That legislation is known as the **Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA).** The Indian Gaming Regulatory Act is currently codified under federal law as **25 U.S.C.**, **Sec. 2701-2721**, as was theoretically promulgated with the goal of "promoting tribal economic development, self-sufficiency, and strong tribal governments". IGRA was enacted in response to a 1987 Supreme Court decision *California v. Cabazon Band of Mission Indians*, 480 U.S. 202, 107 S.Ct. 1083, 44 L.Ed.2d 244 (1987). The Act creates three classes of "gaming":

Class I: Social games for minimal prizes and traditional Indian games.

Class II: Bingo and similar games of chance such as pull-tabs and lotto. Card games that are explicitly authorized by the State or not explicitly prohibited by the State, but not including banking card games including baccarat, chemin de fer, or blackjack. (Class II gaming, by definition, specifically excludes any "electronic or electromechanical facsimiles of any game of chance or slot machines of any kind." 25 U.S.C., Sec. 2703 (7)(B)(ii).)

Class III: All games not included in classes I or II.

Tribes throughout California are currently under judicial attack by each of the four federal districts of the U.S. Attorney's Office. In a recent suit (still pending) filed in the Central District by U.S. Attorney Nora Manella in U.S. District Court for the Central District of California, Western Division, Case No. CV-97-1716-JSL against 9 Central District Native American tribes, we read: [quoting]

Two principle federal statutory schemes—the Johnson Act and the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act—govern gaming on Indian lands. The California Penal Code also contains an extensive statutory scheme addressing gaming, and is incorporated into federal law by the terms of IGRA. The gaming devices and any blackjack, played at the casinos discussed (herein this lawsuit), violate these statutes.

1. The Johnson Act: The Johnson Act, as amended by the Gambling Devices Act of 1962, is codified at 15 U.S.C., Sec. 1171-1178. The Johnson Act applies to "gambling devices", which generally are defined as: (1) any so-called "slot machine" or any other machine or mechanical device an essential part of which is a drum or reel with insignia thereon, and (A) which when operated may deliver, as the result of the application of an element of chance, any money or property, or (B) by the operation of which a person may become entitled to receive, as the result of the application of an element of chance, any money or property; or (2) any other machine or mechanical device (including, but not limited to, roulette wheels and similar devices) designed and manufactured primarily for use in connection with gambling, and (A) which when operated may deliver, as the result of the application of an element of chance, any money or property, or (B) by the operation of which a person may become entitled to receive, as the result of the application of an element of chance, any money or property; or (3) any subassembly or essential part intended to be used in connection with any such machine or mechanical device, but which is not attached to any such machine or mechanical device as a constituent part.

15 U.S.C., Sec. 1171(a)(1): By definition, slot machines are gambling devices. Electronic video gambling machines are also gambling devices. *United States v. Two-Hundred-Ninety-Four Various Gambling Devices*, 731 F. Supp. 1246, 1247 (W.D. Pa. 1990) (video poker machines gambling devices); *United States v. One-Hundred-Thirty-Seven (137) Draw Poker-Type Machines and Six (6) Slot Machines*, 606 F.Supp. 747, 754 (N.D. Ohio 1984), aff'd, 765 F.2d 147 (6th Cir. 1985) (electronic video draw poker machines held to be gambling devices within the meaning of 15 U.S.C., Sec. 1171(a)(2); *United States v. Sixteen Electronic Gambling Devices*, 603 F. Supp. 32, 34 (D. Haw. 1984) (electronic video games duplicating casino games such as draw poker, blackjack and keno held to be gambling devices.)

[Still quoting, later on, the U.S. Attorney's lawsuit:]

As a preliminary requirement, a Class III gaming activity is permitted on Indian lands only if the state in which the Indian tribe is located "permits such gaming for any purpose by a person, organization, or entity..." 25 U.S.C., Sec. 2710(d)(1)(B).

IGRA then sets forth the statutory and administrative procedures a tribe or band must follow in order to secure authorization to conduct Class III gaming on Indian land. Included among these procedures is a process by which it can be conclusively determined whether the gaming proposed by an Indian tribe is of a type permitted by the state for "any purpose by any person, organization, or entity" as required by

Section 2710(d)(1)(B).

In order to conduct Class III gaming on Indian lands, the interested tribe must enter into a tribal-state compact governing the Class III gaming with the state in which the Indian lands are located. The reason for this compact is not arbitrary. Congress imposed the requirement because: there is no adequate Federal regulatory system in place of the regulation of Class III gaming, nor do tribes have such systems for the regulations of Class III gaming currently in place. Thus the logical choice is to make use of the existing state regulatory systems.

[Still quoting:] Congress unquestionably intended to prohibit all Class III gaming activity by Indian tribes unless conducted pursuant to a compact:

Under this act, Indian tribes will be required to give up any legal right they may now have to engage in Class III if: (1) they choose to forgo gaming rather than to opt for a compact that may involve State jurisdiction; (2) they opt for a compact and, for whatever reason, a compact is not successfully negotiated.

A tribe can begin the negotiating process for a compact by asking the state in which the tribe is located to enter into negotiations for a compact. Under the Act, the state "shall negotiate with the Indian tribe in good faith to enter into such a compact." If the parties reach agreement, they sign a tribal-state compact.

The qualification to this good faith negotiation requirement is that proposed gaming activities must be negotiated by the state "only if such activities are...located in a State that permits such gaming for any purpose by any person, organization, or entity. "Consequently, where a state does not 'permit' gaming activities sought by a tribe, the tribe has no right to engage in these activities, and the state thus has no duty to negotiate with respect to them." <u>Rumsey</u> 64 F.3d at 1256. "In other words, a state need only allow Indian tribes to operate games that others can operate, but need not give tribes what others cannot have."

Therefore, as set forth above, an Indian tribe may engage in Class III gaming <u>only</u> if: (1) located in a state that permits such gaming and, (2) conducted in conformance with a tribal-state compact entered into between the tribe and the State. [End quoting]

In an effort to clarify the state of California's position on this issue, I telephoned Attorney General Dan Lungren's office. His press spokesman responded in the following manner when asked to articulate the state's posture: "The state's position, as it always has been, is that Native Americans are allowed to have any gaming which is allowed under state law. What is currently allowed under state law is: Bingo; horse racing or paramutual wagering; non-house bank card games; and the state lottery. That is it."

Governor Wilson's press office responded to my query concerning the establishment of a "compact" with various tribes in the following manner: "Well, in the past there have been. Those negotiations had always come to an impasse because of the tribe's insistence to negotiate over games that were not legal in the state of California, most notably, slot machines. The courts have ruled that the state is under no obligation to negotiate over games that are not legal in the state. We are currently negotiating with the Palas, with the goal of negotiating a compact that can serve as a model for other compacts." The court case referred to was identified as "originally *Rumsey vs. Wilson*, but when it got through the Ninth Circuit, it was called *Sycuan Band of Mission Indians vs. Wilson*. The Supreme Court left the Ninth Circuit ruling stand (*this*

year, specifically on June 27.)"

When asked to further state the Governor's position on gaming, the reply was: "Our position has always been that the Governor is willing to negotiate with any tribes that are law abiding tribes. But any tribes that are running games that are not legal in the state of California have to shut them down." When asked how that would be done, the response was that it is the responsibility of the U.S. Attorney's Office.

At the heart of the Native American gaming controversy are slot machines vs. "paramutual" betting. When asked to clarify the definition of paramutual betting, the Governor's spokeswoman said, "A bank game is where the house has a stake in the outcome of the game. A non-bank format, or a paramutual format, is the house just takes a standard cut but it has no interest in the outcome of the game. Bank games are illegal in California."

Governor Pete Wilson issued a statement back in June of this year concerning the amicus curiae brief filed with the Supreme Court concerning *Sycuan Band of Mission Indians v. Wilson*. His statement says, in part: "No tribe has the right to conduct gaming that is illegal under State law, and the State is under no obligation to negotiate a compact which permits such illegal gaming."

Upon asking the Governor's spokeswoman for further details on the issue of "compacts", she stated: "There is no information available on the compact. Now, what I could do is talk to you about some of the areas that could be discussed or would need to be covered in some way because of the fact that the tribes are sovereign. When they're setting up some kind of a business operation, anybody else in California has all these permitting and regulatory processes to deal with—environmental quality, health and safety codes, and all these other things—and there is no requirement then for the tribes to go through it. So a lot of the things that would normally be handled under typical regulatory processes in the state of California have to be accounted for somehow to make sure that things like insurance, public safety, environmental quality issues, and environmental protection issues and all these other things are dealt with. So, I've summarized some of the issues that would be involved. Obviously, as well as the type and style of games that can be conducted. Now, the one form of Class III gaming that would be allowed to be negotiated over by the tribe is a lottery-style game. The reason for that is, the lottery is also, actually, the only entity that is allowed to run a lottery is the state of California. And because it is legal for at least one entity in the state (coincidentally, the state) to run the lottery, it would also be legal for the tribe to negotiate over running lottery games."

Pala tribal chairman Robert Smith had no comment except to acknowledge on-going negotiations concerning a compact for the Pala band.

It is very clear that the issue of Native American gaming is one which will be passionately debated in the halls of justice for months and years to come.

Interestingly enough, the government's "official" position concerning Indian sovereignty is very clear in a statement which even appears on the Department of Justice's web-site.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE POLICY ON INDIAN SOVEREIGNTY AND GOVERNMENT-TO-

GOVERNMENT RELATIONS WITH INDIAN TRIBES

[*Please stay with me, this is a long quote:* (quoting)]

Purpose: To reaffirm the Department's recognition of the sovereign status of federally recognized Indian tribes as domestic dependent nations and to reaffirm adherence to the principles of government-to-government relations; to inform Department personnel, other federal agencies, federally recognized Indian tribes, and the public of the Department's working relationships with federally recognized Indian tribes; and to guide the Department in its work in the field of Indian affairs.

I. INTRODUCTION

From its earliest days, the United States has recognized the sovereign status of Indian tribes as "domestic dependent nations". *Cherokee Nation v. Georgia*, 30 U.S. (5 Pet.) 1, 17 (1831). Our *Constitution* recognizes Indian sovereignty by classing Indian treaties among the "Supreme Law of the land", and establishes Indian affairs as a unique area of federal concern. In early Indian treaties, the United States pledged to "protect" Indian tribes, thereby establishing one of the bases for the federal trust responsibility in our government-to-government relations with Indian tribes. These principles continue to guide our national policy towards Indian tribes.

THE EXECUTIVE MEMORANDUM ON GOVERNMENT-TO-GOVERNMENT RELATIONS BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND INDIAN TRIBES

On April 29, 1994, at a historic meeting with the heads of tribal governments, President Clinton reaffirmed the United States' "unique legal relationship with Native American tribal governments" and issued a directive to all executive departments and agencies of the Federal Government that:

As executive departments and agencies undertake activities affecting Native American tribal rights or trust resources, such activities should be implemented in a knowledgeable, sensitive manner respectful of tribal sovereignty.

President Clinton's directive requires that in all activities relating to or affecting the government or treaty rights of Indian tribes, the executive branch shall:

- 1. Operate within a government-to-government relationship with federally recognized Indian tribes;
- 2. consult, to the greatest extent practicable and permitted by law, with Indian tribal governments before taking actions that affect federally recognized Indian tribes;
- 3. assess the impact of agency activities on tribal trust resources and assure that tribal interests are considered before the activities are undertaken;
 - 4. remove procedural impediments to working directly with tribal governments on activities that affect

trust property or governmental rights of the tribes; and

5. work cooperatively with other agencies to accomplish these goals established by the President.

The Department of Justice is reviewing programs and procedures to ensure that we adhere to principles of respect for Indian tribal governments and honor our Nation's trust responsibility to Indian tribes. Within the Department, the Office of Tribal Justice has been formed to coordinate policy towards Indian tribes both within the Department and with other agencies of the Federal Government, and to assist Indian tribes as domestic dependent nations within the federal system.

<u>FEDERAL INDIAN</u> SELF-DETERMINATION POLICY

President Clinton's executive memorandum builds on the firmly established federal policy of self-determination for Indian tribes. Working together with Congress, previous Presidents affirmed the fundamental policy of federal respect for tribal self-government. President Johnson recognized "the right of the first Americans...to freedom of choice and self-determination." President Nixon strongly encouraged "self-determination" among the Indian people. President Reagan pledged "to pursue the policy of self-government" for Indian tribes and reaffirmed "the government-to-government basis" for dealing with Indian tribes. President Bush recognized that the Federal Government's "efforts to increase tribal self-governance have brought a renewed sense of pride and empowerment to this country's native peoples."

II. PRINCIPLES OF INDIAN SOVEREIGNTY AND THE TRUST RESPONSIBILITY

Though generalizations are difficult, a few basic principles provide important guidance in the field of Indian affairs: (1) the *Constitution* vests Congress with plenary power over Indian affairs; (2) Indian tribes retain important sovereign powers over "their members and their territory", subject to the plenary power of Congress; and (3) the United States has a trust responsibility to Indian tribes, which guides and limits the Federal Government in dealings with Indian tribes. Thus, federal and tribal law generally have primacy over Indian affairs in Indian country, except where Congress has provided otherwise.

III. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE RECOGNITION OF INDIAN SOVEREIGNTY AND THE FEDERAL TRUST RESPONSIBILITY

The Department resolves that the following principles will guide its interactions with the Indian tribes.

A. THE SOVEREIGNTY OF INDIAN TRIBES

The Department recognizes that Indian tribes as domestic dependent nations retain sovereign powers, except as divested by the United States, and further recognizes that the United States has the authority to restore federal recognition of Indian sovereignty in order to strengthen tribal self-governance.

The Department shall be guided by principles of respect for Indian tribes and their sovereign authority and the United States' trust responsibility in the many ways in which the Department takes action on matters

affecting Indian tribes. For example, the Department reviews proposed legislation, administers funds that are available to tribes to build their capacity to address crime and crime-related problems in Indian country, and in conjunction with the Bureau of Indian Affairs and tribal police, provides essential law enforcement in Indian country. The Department represents the United States, in coordination with other federal agencies, in litigation brought for the benefit of Indian tribes and individuals, as well as in litigation by Indian tribes or individuals against the United States or its agencies. In litigation as in other matters, the Department may take actions and positions affecting Indian tribes with which one or more tribes may disagree. In all situations, the Department will carry out its responsibilities consistent with the law and this policy statement.

<u>B. GOVERNMENT-TO-GOVERNMENT</u> RELATIONSHIPS WITH INDIAN TRIBES

In accord with the status of Indian tribes as domestic dependent nations, the Department is committed to operating on the basis of government-to-government relations with Indian tribes.

Consistent with federal law and other Departmental duties, the Department will consult with tribal leaders in its decisions that relate to or affect the sovereignty, rights, resources or lands of Indian tribes. Each component will conduct such consultation in light of its mission. In addition, the Department has initiated national and regional listening conferences and has created the Office of Tribal Justice to improve communications with Indian tribes. In the Offices of the United States Attorneys with substantial areas of Indian country within their purview, the Department encourages designation of Assistant U.S. Attorneys to serve as tribal liaisons.

In order to fulfill its mission, the Department of Justice endeavors to forge strong partnerships between the Indian tribal governments and the Department. These partnerships will enable the Department to better serve the needs of Indian tribes, Indian people, and the public at large.

C. SELF-DETERMINATION AND SELF-GOVERNANCE

The Department is committed to strengthening and assisting Indian tribal governments in their development and to promoting Indian self-governance. Consistent with federal law and Departmental responsibilities, the Department will consult with tribal governments concerning law enforcement priorities in Indian country, support duly recognized tribal governments, defend the lawful exercise of tribal governmental powers in coordination with the Department of the Interior and other federal agencies, investigate government corruption when necessary, and support and assist Indian tribes in the development of their law enforcement systems, tribal courts, and traditional justice systems.

D. TRUST RESPONSIBILITY

The Department acknowledges the federal trust responsibility arising from Indian treaties, statutes, execu-

tive orders, and the historical relations between the United States and Indian tribes. In a broad sense, the trust responsibility relates to the United States' unique legal and political relationship with Indian tribes. Congress, with plenary power over Indian affairs, plays a primary role in defining the trust responsibility, and Congress recently declared that the trust responsibility "includes the protection of the sovereignty of each tribal government". 25 U.S.C. § 3601.

The term "trust responsibility" is also used in a narrower sense to define the precise legal duties of the United States in managing property and resources of Indian tribes and, at times, of individual Indians.

The trust responsibility, in both senses, will guide the Department in litigation, enforcement, policy making and proposals for legislation affecting Indian country, when appropriate to the circumstances. As used in its narrower sense, the federal trust responsibility may be justiciable in some circumstances, while in its broader sense the definition and implementation of the trust responsibility is committed to Congress and the Executive Branch.

E. PROTECTION OF CIVIL RIGHTS

Federal law prohibits discrimination based on race or national origin by the federal, state and local governments, or individuals against American Indians in such areas as voting, education, housing, credit, public accommodations and facilities, employment, and in certain federally funded programs and facilities. Various federal criminal civil rights statutes also preserve personal liberties and safety. The existence of the federal trust responsibility towards Indian tribes does not diminish the obligation of state and local governments to respect the civil rights of Indian people.

Through the Indian Civil Rights Act, Congress selectively has derived essential civil rights protections from the *Bill of Rights* and applied them to Indian tribes. 25 U.S.C. § 1301. The Indian Civil Rights Act is to be interpreted with respect for Indian sovereignty. The primary responsibility for enforcement of the Act is invested in the tribal courts and other tribal fora. In the criminal law context, federal courts have authority to decide habeas corpus petitions after tribal remedies are exhausted.

The Department of Justice is fully committed to safeguarding the constitutional and statutory rights of American Indians, as well as all other Americans.

F. PROTECTION OF TRIBAL RELIGION AND CULTURE

The mandate to protect religious liberty is deeply rooted in this Nation's constitutional heritage. The Department seeks to ensure that American Indians are protected in the observance of their faiths. Decisions regarding the activities of the Department that have the potential to substantially interfere with the exercise of Indian religions will be guided by the *First Amendment* of the *United States Constitution*, as well as by statutes which protect the exercise of religion such as the Religious Freedom Restoration Act, the American Indian Religious Freedom Act, the Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act, and the National Historic Preservation Act.

The Department also recognizes the significant federal interest in aiding tribes in the preservation of their

tribal customs and traditions. In performing its duties in Indian country, the Department will respect and seek to preserve tribal cultures.

IV. DIRECTIVE TO ALL COMPONENTS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

The principles set out here must be interpreted by each component of the Department of Justice in light of its respective mission. Therefore, each component head shall make all reasonable efforts to ensure that the component's activities are consistent with the above sovereignty and trust principles. The component heads shall circulate this policy to all attorneys in the Department to inform them of their responsibilities. Where the activities and internal procedures of the components can be reformed to ensure greater consistency with this Policy, the component head shall undertake to do so. If tensions arise between these principles and other principles which guide the component in carrying out its mission, components will develop, as necessary, a mechanism for resolving such tensions to ensure that tribal interests are given due consideration. Finally, component heads will appoint a contact person to work with the Office of Tribal Justice in addressing Indian issues within the component. [End quoting]

CLOSING THOUGHTS

Since the enactment of the IGRA, revenues from Indian gaming operations have grown exponentially. Nationwide, total revenues from Indian gaming are projected to top \$4 billion, some say more. Tribes are using their profits for the betterment of the reservation and its people. They are building schools/colleges (there are currently 26 tribal colleges nationwide) and community centers, setting up education trust funds/scholarships, investing in alcohol- and drug-treatment programs, financing new business enterprises (entrepreneurships), and putting in water and sewer systems on the reservations.

On the flip side of the equation, many experience gambling as an addiction, a compulsive behavior. Also, it seems, those who can afford it least are the ones usually the most affected. Among natives, individual bands have been divided over the gambling issue. Elders fear losing traditional values to corruption and organized crime: "...the proliferation of gaming is a spiritual cancer eating away at what is left of the soul of Native American Communities." One involved person put it this way: "Casinos are one of the first real tools natives have gotten to become self-sufficient."

Of course outsiders have no justification for imposing their will upon any given band or native tribe. It might be helpful if gaming were viewed as a stepping-stone rather than an end. There always will be controversy surrounding an issue such as gaming. Perhaps it would be also useful to see gaming as a funding source for true alternative **healing** centers, for **actual** sovereign banking, for a whole host of potentially beneficial activity which would serve the greater good of the tribe. In short, gaming could be viewed with greater vision rather than, as with some, a limited and potentially destructive influence to an ancient culture.

Editor's note: Coincidentally, EIR (Executive Intelligence Review, P.O. Box 17390, Washington, D.C. 20041) has just come out with an incredibly well researched article titled: "Legalized Gambling:

Britain's Dope, Inc. Subverts The U.S."—in the September 5, 1997 issue. So that you have an understanding of the MUCH LARGER picture behind this ever-growing phoenomenon in America today, we are going to present this article in four parts and we begin this week with Part I of the series on gambling. Read and weep.

LEGALIZED GAMBLING: BRITAIN'S DOPE, INC. SUBVERTS THE U.S. PART I by John Hoefle

Poor governments are, as we everywhere see, driven to encourage gambling, drunkenness, and other immoralities, as a means of extracting revenue from their unfortunate taxpayers; and the greater the revenue thus obtained, the poorer become the people and the weaker the government. —Henry Carey, *The Slave Trade, Domestic and Foreign*

The Lottery, with its weekly pay-out of enormous prizes, was the one public event to which [they] paid serious attention.... It was their delight, their folly, their anodyne, their intellectual stimulant. —George Orwell, 1984

<u>A MONEY-LAUNDERING DIVISION</u> <u>OF THE EMPIRE</u>

With \$550 billion in wagers reportedly placed in legal gambling facilities in 1995, gambling has become big business in the United States. Some form of gambling is now legal in 48 of the 50 U.S. states, with over 500 legal casinos, and 38 states are themselves participants in gambling, through lotteries. More money is spent in casinos than is spent on tickets to spectator sports and movie tickets combined.

The myth has been spread that organized crime has been run out of the gambling business, replaced by honest corporations. What this report will show is that gambling remains the province of organized crime, and more importantly, it will provide the reader with a look at the true nature of organized crime, and who actually runs it.

In 1978, EIR released its ground-breaking best-seller, Dope, Inc., which detailed how the international narcotics trade was run, [from the] top down, by the British Empire. The book also showed how entire sections of the world's financial system, from the then-British colony of Hongkong to the British territories in the Caribbean, were organized explicitly to launder the hundreds of billions of dollars of annual proceeds of the international drug trade, to keep the drug business from choking on its own cash. As the drug trade has grown, the demands upon its money-laundering arm have rapidly expanded. One major component of this money-laundering apparatus is the gambling business; casinos, with their heavy and substantially anonymous cash flows, have long been used by organized crime to launder the proceeds from criminal operations.

The gambling business has indeed changed over the last three decades, but those changes reflect a decision by Dope, Inc. to upgrade the status of its gambling division, to make it more acceptable to the public, and thereby make its expansion easier. Gone, for the most part, is the violence which characterized the

early years (the violence still exists, but much of that function has been transferred to Dope, Inc.'s street-gang arm). It has been replaced by modern corporate management techniques, shielded by armies of lawyers, accountants, and public relations flacks. But gambling remains the province of organized crime: The gambling business would not exist, on the scale it does today, were it not for its status as a money-laundering arm of Dope, Inc.

The modern gambling business, termed "U.S. Gambling, Inc." by *International Gaming and Wagering Business* magazine, was created by dirty money. The seed money came from Prohibition, out of which grew a network of violent whiskey-running gangs, behind which stood the Bronfman family of Canada and the British liquor lords. With the end of Prohibition in 1931, the British began the transformation of these violent gangs, using their enormous criminal profits, both to create the Hollywood movie business and turn Las Vegas into a gambling center. The inside-the-mob case officer for this transformation into so-called legitimate business, was Meyer Lansky, the mob's financial officer and gambling tsar.

Enormous amounts of money and propaganda have been deployed to put a happy face on the gambling beast. Las Vegas has turned itself into a giant theme park, which some now call the "Orlando of the West", with pyramids, sphinxes, and Hollywood-style extravaganzas, luring in not just the gamblers, but their families as well, raking in the cash while addicting new generations of gamblers.

Behind this entertainment facade, however, lies a machine designed to ruthlessly separate people from their money, and destroy them and their country in the process.

Behind Gambling, Inc. stands Dope, Inc., and the international financial oligarchy, whose main power base is the British Empire, the largest criminal enterprise in the world. The real godfather is the Queen, and she's after you.

THE BRITISH EMPIRE TODAY

The presence of The Rt. Hon. Lord Moore of Lower Marsh, PC, a member of the Queen's Privy Council, on the board of GTECH, the leading operator of U.S. state lotteries, is no coincidence, given the way lotteries function as institutions of cultural warfare against the United States. The other major U.S. lottery operator, Automated Wagering International, has its own British connections, in the person of former U.S. State Department official Richard Burt, who sits on the board of the Hollinger Corp., a British intelligence front which owns several media outlets. Behind them, stand the empire's dirty-money specialists, the Rothschilds.

In the 1970s, Lord Victor Rothschild, one of the British Empire's top spooks and dirty-money operatives, chaired a Royal Commission on gambling, which set up the British National Lottery, the proceeds of which were to be used to preserve Britain's imperial heritage. Lord Victor's son, Lord Jacob Rothschild, would later become a director of the British lottery.

"As the industrial base of this country has declined, so our past and the presentation of our past has become more important," Lord Jacob pontificated some years ago. "We are not like Venice, because we still have a producing economy.... We are aware of the risk that we could tilt too much in the direction of being a country whose past predominates."

The comparison with Venice is telling, since the British Empire represents the continuation of the Venetian Empire, which in turn was a continuation of the Roman and earlier empires, Britain being merely the latest in a series of capitals of the ancient oligarchical system. Britain's heritage is that of the Whore of Babylon, an ancient system of looting by powerful families, which sees the world and its population as a plantation to be managed for the benefit of a few.

This British Empire was, and remains, committed to destroying its deadly enemy, the nation-builders, who created the United States and led a worldwide fight to destroy the power of the oligarchy, and to usher the world into a future of global economic development and prosperity for all men.

The explosion of gambling within the United States was not imposed entirely from the outside, however, because the oligarchy has tentacles deep within the cultural, political, and economic institutions of the United States. Among the foremost agents of the oligarchy in the United States are the families known as the Boston Brahmins, and the families and institutions that dominate Wall Street, led by the House of Morgan, the Mellons, and others. Among the pushers of gambling in the United States, one will find Morgan, Credit Suisse and its allied Weld family, the family of Sir George Bush, and others, all of whom hate and are committed to destroying, the United States of Benjamin Franklin, Alexander Hamilton, Henry Carey, Abraham Lincoln, and Lyndon LaRouche.

POLITICAL COVER AND FINANCIAL OWNERSHIP

"It is time that the organized crime issue is put to rest. The myth that organized crime owns, operates or even influences casinos is a canard spread by political opponents without regard to facts," the American Gaming Association (AGA) claims, in a document entitled "Myths & Facts" about what it calls "gaming".

The AGA, one of the major lobbying fronts for the gambling business, pushes the line that gambling is good for the economy. Gambling, the AGA claims, creates jobs, pumps money into local economies, and pays taxes; its employees buy houses, cars, and refrigerators, spreading the wealth.

This argument is a fraud. By focusing on what it puts into the economy while hiding what it extracts, the gambling sector presents the illusion of prosperity. After all, drug dealers and pimps also provide jobs, and buy houses, cars, and refrigerators, but few would consider them assets to society.

One study, by Prof. John Warren Kindt of the University of Illinois at Urbana, estimates that, for every \$1 a state receives in gambling revenues, it spends \$3 for social services and criminal justice agencies to cover the damage done by gambling. Gambling, Kindt says, acts as "a regressive tax on the poor", and "makes poor people poorer".

What counts is how much of a bite Dope, Inc. takes out of the country and its people, not how many crumbs are left on the table after it has eaten its fill.

A look at the composition of the American Gaming Association provides a glimpse into how the protection racket for gambling is run.

The president of the AGA is a political insider, former Republican National Committee Chairman Frank Fahrenkopf.

The AGA board includes, in addition to gambling company representatives and a liquor distributor, representatives of two of the biggest investment banks in the United States, Goldman Sachs and Merrill Lynch.

The membership roster of the AGA likewise includes a rash of investment bankers and accountants, in addition to gambling companies and their suppliers. The bankers include Bear Stearns, Deutsche Morgan Grenfell, Donaldson Lufkin & Jenrette, Goldman Sachs, Merrill Lynch, Montgomery Securities, Oppenheimer & Co., Salomon Brothers, and Schroeder Wertheim & Co., several of which own big chunks of gambling companies and which are integral to the money-laundering process.

Bear Steams officials, for example, sit on the boards of Mirage Resorts and Carnival Corp. The company sold bonds to fund Donald Trump's move into Atlantic City, and represented the notorious Resorts International, Meyer Lansky's flagship.

There's more. AGA board member Merrill Lynch owns 10% of Scientific Games, while AGA member Oppenheimer owns 8.5% of Harrah's Entertainment. Other financial institutions, including Bankers Trust, Lazard Freres, Morgan Stanley, Chase Manhattan's Texas Commerce Bank, First Union, Wells Fargo, Credit Suisse First Boston, Riggs National Bank, First Tennessee National, Prudential Insurance, Mutual of New York, and the Bank of Montreal, also show up, either as owners, with representatives on the boards, or both.

The accountants, whose job it is to keep the books sparkling clean, include Arthur Andersen & Co. and Coopers & Lybrand LLP. Andersen has authored several studies for the AGA, on the alleged benefits of gambling.

The political class is also well represented, proving the ease with which political influence can be bought:

- · Two top Republican operatives are consultants for GTECH: Charles Black, who ran national campaigns for Sir George Bush, Ronald Reagan, Jack Kemp, and Phil Gramm; and Paul Manafort, who ran the 1988 and 1996 Republican conventions.
- · The chairman of Video Lottery Technologies, parent of Automated Wagering International, is former Reagan-Bush State Department official Richard Burt. Burt is also a director of the Hollinger Corp., the British intelligence front (and successor to Permindex) whose board also includes former Secretary of State Sir Henry Kissinger; a director of the food cartel firm Archer Daniels Midland; and a member of the international advisory board of the Bank of Montreal.
- · Former Secretary of State Alexander Haig sits on the board of Kirk Kerkorian's MGM Grand.
- · Former Democratic National Committee Chairman Paul Kirk (1985-89) sits on the board of ITT Corp., whose Sheraton subsidiary owns the Caesar's World casinos.
- · Former Undersecretary of the Treasury Bette Anderson (1977-81) also sits on the board of ITT.

POPULAR CULTURE

Harrah's, in its 1997 Survey of Casino Entertainment, claims that polls show that 92% of Americans see casino gambling as acceptable for themselves and others, including 62% who see it as acceptable for anyone, and 30% who see it as acceptable for others but not for themselves. Only 8% of Americans say casino gambling is "not acceptable for anyone".

While these numbers are open to question, given the ability of modem pollsters to shape their questions to produce the desired answers, many Americans do indeed either support, or accept, gambling.

Moral arguments, as Tom Grey's National Coalition Against Legalized Gambling and others have found, are no longer sufficient to defeat gambling referenda, but the antigambling forces have had significant success over the last few years by debunking the alleged economic benefits of the gambling business.

During the research for this report, the author visited several casinos in Atlantic City, where the casinos go to great lengths to entice people into their gambling dens, and to keep them there once they do. The casinos are designed in a style that has been called "gangster glitz", lots of flashing lights, bells, and whistles; the noise level is high, thanks to acres of slot machines, each designed to hold a player in rapt attention.

The overwhelming impression is that of lambs being led to the slaughter. The casinos are designed to separate people from their money, and they are quite efficient at doing so. Casinos routinely "rate" regular players, according to the frequency of their visits, and the amount they gamble, and offer an escalating series of bonuses (termed compensations, or "comps") to keep the suckers coming back. While the gamblers, and even the casino operators, may believe in luck, the edge the casino has is mathematical: The odds vary according to the game being played, but in all cases they favor the house, and over the long run, the house always wins. There have also been claims, from regulatory agents and slot machine manufacturers, that the slot machines are rigged to show an artificially high percentage of "near wins", to entice players to keep feeding the one-armed bandit.

The atmosphere is not one of fun, but rather one of desperation, of people looking for the big score. Faced with a collapsed economy, more and more people are turning to gambling, pouring their money into casinos and lotteries, in the vain hope of hitting the jackpot.

Finally, although the term "gambling industry" is widely used, we will not use that term in this report. Gambling is not an industry: Steel is an industry, aerospace is an industry; gambling is a parasite.

[To be continued.]

CHAPTER 14

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 9/20/97

BAHT BAILOUT BILKS YOU

The Rich Get Richer and You (the Taxpayer) Get The Shaft as Another Third World Economy is Propped Up by U.S. Coffers.

From the INTERNET, 9/6/97: [quoting]

To sink the baht, Thailand's national currency, took only three months of money market raids by currency speculators. But to refloat it will take over two years and at least \$16 billion in bailout funds—with the lion's share of the cost charged to U.S. taxpayers.

"If it all goes as planned the American public will never even realize its wallet has been lifted," said Dr. Banharn Chirithivat, a Thai-born economist now with the Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation Forum in Washington. "International finance is getting as secretive and devious as spy operations."

Even a factual account of the Thai baht's breakdown—from early June to late July it plunged more than 30 percent, an economic earthquake felt all over Southeast Asia—is hard to come by.

Southeast Asian leaders assert that international traders, led by billionaire speculator George Soros, waged relentless raids on this vulnerable currency until it collapsed.

Western observers, however, cite Thailand's large foreign debt and a regional economic slowdown as crucial factors in the crisis.

"That may be true, but it's not the problem," Chirithivat explained. "Global speculators like Soros always wait until a currency becomes vulnerable, then they pounce on it for the kill. Without that speculative pressure, the baht would have easily withstood all other economic setbacks."

As for the inevitable bailout, "That will be handled by the International Monetary Fund [IMF] and a group of Asian nations", the *New York Times* reassured its readers on August 12. "The United States... will not take part in the rescue directly."

But while the *Times* noted that the largest contributor, with some \$6 billion, will be the IMF, it failed to explain where the IMF's money will come from.

The answer was found on Capitol Hill, where last month Congress suddenly tacked \$4.2 billion on the annual foreign aid appropriations bill and earmarked it as a "special quota" for the IMF.

Moreover, Federal Reserve Chairman Alan Greenspan has made a reported \$1.7 billion available to the IMF as "currency stabilization" support—a notorious Fed slush fund.

"Behind all this technical verbiage and bureaucratic jargon, the fact is that whenever Soros and his followers knock over the payments system of a smaller nation, the American taxpayer ends up with the bill," explained Dr. Aldo Milinkovich, a former Treasury analyst who is now a Wall Street consultant.

Perhaps the most misleading—and galling—pretense of these deceptive disbursements is that the bailout billions are used to "rescue" the shattered economy of victimized nations.

Instead, most of the bailout cash provided by generous—if uncomprehending—taxpayers end up enriching Soros and his allies.

The speculators drive down the targeted currency by trading in huge amounts of it at ever-lower exchange rates. After the IMF takes over and restores the original exchange rate, the traders can redeem their cheaply amassed bank note holdings at huge profits.

"It's outright fraud—and a disgrace that no one in Congress has the guts to stand up against it," concluded Milinkovich. [End quoting]

Guess why we support this scam. The key beneficiaries always turn out to be the kings of the Elite, but their time is growing very, very short. **Don't give up hope!**

THAILAND'S PRIME MINISTER BOWS TO REFORM PRESSURE

From *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 9/6/97: [quoting]

Thailand's prime minister, Chavalit Yongchaiyudh, reluctantly agreed Friday to support passage of a new, reformist constitution, giving way to pressure from the military and his own party. He said he would propose amendments later. The constitution—if approved, Thailand's 16th—would make changes that backers consider essential to cleaning up Thailand's widespread political corruption. [End quoting]

More accurately: turn power over to the New World Order (NWO).

EUROPEAN INSIDER ISSUES ALERT

From *EIR*, 9/11/97: [quoting]

"I have put clients on alert today that the Asia turmoil may be spreading to Latin America," a well-placed European fund manager told *EIR Alert* Sept. 9. "Right now it is the Colombian Peso which is hard hit, having lost 3% or so in the past 2 days despite central bank intervention, some claiming the recent political murders as trigger; but, in my estimation Mexico is also vulnerable as it just recorded its first balance of payments deficit in July since 1995, raising new fears of further peso devaluation down the road." [End quoting]

These scam artists will keep moving from one country to the next until WE ALL WAKE UP. This is affecting the U.S. economy and it is **mighty shaky NOW!**

FROM PRESIDENT CLINTON TO THE NAVY TWA FLIGHT 800 RECOVERY TEAM: THINK TWICE BEFORE SPEAKING OUT

From a FAX sent by J.R., 8/29/97: [quoting]

The White House recently removed the all-too-revealing Executive Order 13039 from the White house webpage. EO 13039 removes the Naval Special Warfare Development Group (which contains the Navy units that recovered the debris of TWA 800) from federal-labor protections that include protections for whistle blowers. The rights of the Navy crew were revoked to protect "national security". [End quoting]

I'll let your imagination tell you who Clinton was protecting.

TWA FLIGHT 800: TARGET PRACTICE GONE WRONG

Excerpted from *NEXUS* magazine, Aug.-Sep./97: [quoting]

"It was like turning a 747 into a microwave oven."

That's how David Morehouse explained what happened to TWA Flight 800, after he delivered a remote-viewing report for *CBS News*—a report which was never used.

"We originally started at the request of a producer at CBS to work in consonance with them to investigate the downing of Flight 800," explains Morehouse.

"We used a team of six remote viewers. After having gone back in time and looked at the event, five of them did not say that a missile struck the aircraft, but said that it was an energy beam or a light beam and that the aircraft exploded. It was a light beam that could not be seen by the human eye. It was high-powered microwaves.

"We did a 32-page report for CBS on it; a lengthy investigation. We used a law enforcement liaison officer who was a retired US city cop. I was dealing with Ph.D.s who owned patents on fiber optic cables.

"It goes right back to the CBW thing in the Gulf War (the cover-up of chemical/biological warfare by the Pentagon). The first thing that came out of the Navy was, 'We had no exercise going on, none whatsoever.' I saw the message from the Department of the Navy to the FAA (Federal Aviation Administration) that said that from this time to this time—which was a time window that included the departure time of Flight 800—there was an exercise going on.

"The microwave that we think did it was built by Phillips Laboratories. It's about the size of a Ryder truck, a moving truck about that size, which produces 1.4 gigawatts, a billion watts of power in a concentrated

stream of electrons that are guided by a self-generated electromagnetic field. The footprint of this particular weapon can be anywhere. They can tweak it up or down. They can crank it down to a footprint the size of a basketball. They can expand it to a footprint the size of a football field. Of course, the more you disperse the electrons, the less effective the beam is, but it's still pretty nasty stuff."

Morehouse, of course, had to deal with the usual denial. "The executives at CBS said, 'We don't have anything that has that kind of range.' It's like the Ph.D. who installed microwave dishes around New York and New Jersey who told us that when the guys working on the Empire State Building go out on a platform to change the lights for Christmas, they wear flash bulbs in their pockets. The reason is because of the microwave energy from all the dishes and power mounted on the building. When they get closer than they're supposed to be, it pops the flash bulbs. That's how much ambient radiant energy is coming out of those dishes. If you were to stick a frozen chicken on the end of a fiberglass pole and stick it in front of a microwave dish, faster than you could blink your eye it would be charred black...

"We presented all the evidence and the facts. We had satellite imagery that was purchased from the French. We had autopsy data from the French, testimony from Suffolk County medical examiners where guys had inadvertently revealed the fact that they had seen a flight attendant who had a piece of metal fused to her back. That doesn't come from an explosion; that comes from a high-energy microwave beam that superheats metal and burns it into human tissue. It fuses it. It was cutting open cranial cavities; it was removing brains; it was dishing out eyes. It was doing all that stuff because a microwave beam on humans takes out all the ocular neural networks first. It fries the brain and fries the eyes; it hits the spinal fluid, the blood and the marrow. It boils the blood. It actually gels the blood. This sounds very gruesome, but it happens so fast that the brain doesn't even have time to register pain. You're dead instantly." [End quoting]

As I stated at the beginning of this article, this is **only an excerpt** of an excellent article.

This is the first verification I've come across of the statement that Commander Hatonn made when this first happened and that was that **TWA 800 was downed by a beam weapon.**

Why would this be a cover-up? Well, one very good reason, which is also stated in the article, is that Bill Clinton had his reelection bid coming up in 4 months and the truth of all the details of what caused this disaster (there is more to this story) would have defeated his bid for a second term.

HOUSE: STATION TROOPS ON THE MEXICAN BORDER

From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 9/6/97: [quoting]

The house reaffirmed its support Friday for deploying up to 10,000 troops to guard the border with Mexico and keep out drugs and illegal immigrants. On a 261-150 vote, the House endorsed an effort by Rep. Jim Traficant, D-Ohio, to ensure negotiators writing the final version of next year's defense bill include the troop measure, which was passed in June. The Senate defense bill contains no such provision. [End quoting]

Again, the Elite—who make most of the money off of drugs—are going to end up with more money and more control over us. It's a win-win situation for them.

MORE ITEMS ABOUT DIANA AND DODI'S MURDERS

Excerpted from *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 9/10/97: [quoting]

Bernard Dartevelle, a lawyer for the Fayed family in Paris, said that two frames from a photographer's roll of film seized at the crash site show Paul startled by a camera flash, Diana's bodyguard pulling down the Sun visor and Diana looking out the back at a motorcycle headlight.

The film is being held by police and was not made public. Darteville said he has had access to it, but could not release prints or the name of the photographer. However, its existence was also confirmed by a defense lawyer in the case, who spoke on condition of anonymity.

In an interview in his Paris office, he described photos he said were "clearly" taken from in front of the Mercedes. That would buttress some witness accounts that a car or motorcycle was in front of Diana's car before it crashed, blocking its path. [End quoting]

Is this blinding flash the laser that was used according to Commander Hatonn?

Also can you picture a motorcyclist ahead of the car doing 100-or-more miles-per-hour and also taking pictures or doing anything other than trying to stay alive through Paris streets? Furthermore, managing to not get injured or directly involved in that horrible accident right behind him.

PRINCESS DIANA: CRUSHED BETWEEN THE EAST AND THE WEST

Excerpted from the INTERNET, Conspiracy Nation, 9/97: [quoting]

Princess Diana and her soon-to-be husband, Dodi Fayed, were fatally injured in the Pont de l'Alma tunnel. The site is ancient, dating back to the time of the Merovingian kings (ca.500-751 A.D.), and before. In pre-Christian times, the Pont de l'Alma was a pagan sacrificial site. Note that in the pagan connotation, at least, sacrifice is not to be confused with murder: the sacrificial victim had to be a willing participant.

In the time of the Merovingian kings, the Pont de l'Alma was an underground chamber. Founder of the Merovingian dynasty was Merovaeus, said to be descended from the union of a sea creature and a French queen. Merovaeus followed the pagan cult of Diana. In Middle English, "soul" (Alma) has as etymology "descended from the sea". "Pont" has as a Latin root, "pontifex", meaning a Roman high priest. (See also pons, pontis—bridge; passage.) "Alma" comes from the Latin "almus", meaning nourishing. One translation of Pont de l'Alma would be "bridge of the soul". Another would be "passage of nourishment". All true European royalty are descended from the Merovingians, which are believed to be descendants of Jesus Christ.

During the Merovingian era, if two kings had a dispute over property, it was settled in combat at Pont de

l'Alma. According to legend, anyone killed there goes straight to Heaven and sits at the right hand of God, watching over all his foe was to do. The person killed in combat was actually considered to be the "winner", since he became God's eyes on Earth and even could manipulate events.

The current British royal family are imposters. The House of Windsor is a fraud. But the lineage of Lady Diana Spencer goes back to Charles II of the House of Stewart. The House of Stewart is of "true" royal blood. Diana's sons, William and Harry, have 3-quarters true nobility in their blood.

Princess Diana was in a powerful position. Two main factions vied for control over her: (1) the New World Order faction, founded on an alliance between King William III (Bank of England, modern system of finance, and "national debt" all beginning during his reign) and later, the Rothschilds; and (2) the true nobility of Europe.

"Within" the New World Order faction, there are smaller, warring factions, exemplified by Rothschilds vs. Rockefellers. The plan of the New World Order faction was to marry Lady Diana to an American. Even though Bill Clinton has bastard roots in the Rockefeller clan, he is rejected by them and is aligned with the Rothschilds. Bill Clinton was the designated future husband for Lady Diana, with Hillary Clinton to be eliminated through divorce or even murder. The Rockefellers were furious; in no way would they allow a marriage between Bill Clinton and Lady Diana. In Great Britain, Prince William would be on the throne by age 25; if Prince Charles did not abdicate, he would be assassinated. Then, Prince Harry and the living Lady Diana would have moved to the U.S. Harry would become a U.S. citizen and go into politics, becoming perhaps a U.S. Senator. By then, whoever controlled the two boys—Prince William and Prince Harry—would control the world.

But in her last visit to the White House, circa January 1997, Lady Diana informed Mr. Bill Clinton that in no way, shape, or form would she "ever" marry him. (While in America, lady Diana also met with John Kennedy, Jr.) Diana chose, instead, to marry for love. (Jackie Kennedy married Aristotle Onassis for power; he could protect her.)

Dodi Fayed, beloved of Lady Diana, is a cousin of Adnan Khashoggi, a CIA asset involved in sales of arms to Iran—he and Oliver North. Adnan Khashoggi is part of the Saudi royal family. Through marrying Dodi fayed, Diana would have been marrying into the Saudi royal family. She might have had to convert to Islam.

British intelligence (MI-6) arranged the deaths of Lady Diana and Dodi Fayed. It was imperative that the Saudi royal family not have control over Diana. The driver of the ill-fated Mercedes was a *Manchurian Candidate* (brainwashed tool), with connections to the French military. How did so much alcohol get into his system? Amounts suggested in mass media reports are truly staggering—so much alcohol that the driver would have had to have been carried to the car. The way it happened was, the driver was made to swallow special slowly-digestible balloons containing high-potentcy alcohol. While he drove, the balloons were slowly digested and he became dangerous behind the wheel.

But even within British intelligence there are factions. A rogue faction in MI-6, powerless to prevent the assassination, arranged for the deaths of Lady Diana and Dodi Fayed to happen at Pont de l'Alma. Cleverly, it was known that a death at that historic location would not only send a "signal"; it would

eventually lead to the creation of a "Saint Diana". In Roman paganism, Diana is "Queen of heaven", a triple-goddess. "Al-mah", in Mideast language, means "moon goddess". One aspect to the Roman triple-goddess is the "lunar virgin". The "al-mahs" served as maidens of Diana, the lunar virgin. In France, the Cult of Diana was so powerful that it wasn't until the Middle Ages until the French gave up worship of the pagan goddess. The "true" Knights Templar (not to be confused with imposters) are sworn to protect the Merovingian blood—i.e., that of the "true" royals, such as Lady Diana. Before too long, Project Bluebeam holographic imaging will be used to create "miraculous appearances" of Lady Diana. Children at various locations will be randomly selected to witness "saintly apparitions". These children will receive a "message" from "Diana". Some of the children will claim that "Diana" has given them healing powers—and what is more, these children "will" be able to "heal". Locations of these "miraculous appearances" will become known as places of healing and sacred shrines. "Saint Diana's two children, William and Harry, will become akin to two living Jesus Christs, walking the Earth. It will be the start of "the new religion". Who controls the new religion controls the world. [End quoting]

Interesting!! HOW MUCH TRUTH???

CYBER-SPACE IS THE NEW BATTLEGROUND

From a FAX, ?/97: [quoting]

Call him the intruder.

Sitting at a computer terminal hooked up to a telephone line, he (or she) quietly penetrates the software programs that now run much of North America's basic infrastructure.

Air conditioners and lights in major cities shut down.

Telephone switching systems up and down the East Coast begin to crash, cutting off millions of conversations.

Computer-controlled routing systems for freight and passenger trains go haywire. Airport traffic controllers lose track of flights, leading to collisions across the continent.

Electronic banking operations become hopelessly snared. ATM cash machines randomly credit or debit account-holders, causing panic on the streets, and stocks plunge in New York, Toronto and London.

The stuff of a Hollywood plot? Or a real-life possibility?

Call it cyber-war.

"I think we have maybe two, perhaps 5-to-10 years, before cyber-warfare begins to look like a very attractive alternative to conventional forms of warfare," says Peter Wilson of the Rand Corporation, a leading U.S. think tank.

The scenario described was in fact part of a simulated "technological attack" on North America developed by Wilson and other RAND researchers in 1995.

One of the first exercises of its kind, it assumed the attack was launched by an unidentified Middle Eastern country hoping to distract U.S. authorities while it planned an invasion of a neighbor.

The cyber-wargamers found it took less than three hours to destabilize North America's electronic grid.

"You bring me a select group of 10 (computer) hackers and within 90 days I'll bring this country to its knees." —Jim Settle, former director, FBI computer crime squad. [End quoting]

Far fetched?? Not at all if you are familiar with computer networking.

OFFICIALS WANT POWER TO DECODE MESSAGES

The White House Is Seeking Strict Controls On Technology That Can Scramble Private Data

From THE ORLANDO SENTINEL, 9/7/97: [quoting]

The Clinton administration is circulating proposed legislation on Capitol Hill that would, for the first time, impose strict controls on the manufacture and use of technology that scrambles electronic data for privacy reasons.

The proposal would prohibit the manufacture, sale, import or distribution within the United States of any such technology unless it contained a so-called trapdoor feature that would permit immediate decoding of any message by law enforcement officials. The officials would have to have a wiretap order from a court.

The proposal also would require telephone companies and Internet providers that offer data-scrambling technology, called encryption, to have that same feature.

Encryption has broad uses, including protecting information related to purchases made over the Internet, making possible private communication by telephone or computer, and certifying the identity of an individual. It also is used in the transmission of military and intelligence secrets. The government maintains that it needs access to scrambled data for national security and for law enforcement.

Currently, the only limitations on data-scrambling technology are regulations governing the export of hardware and software containing encryption features. That has allowed U.S. citizens and companies to develop and use any kind of encryption device.

Under the administration's proposal, although data-scrambling technology would have to have the trapdoor feature, the users would not be required to turn on that feature.

Critics of the proposal say the feature would simply be a first step toward making such a surveillance capability a legal requirement.

In recent testimony before the Senate subcommittee dealing with the issue, Louis Freeh, director of the FBI, said he will lobby to make the trapdoor feature a legal requirement.

The proposed legislation represents a significant reversal for the administration, which had insisted that it was opposed to domestic encryption controls. It also appears to contradict the administration's support for unregulated development of commerce on the Internet, an approach emphasized recently in a speech by Ira Magaziner, a senior presidential adviser, to a meeting of the American Electronics Association in Silicon valley.

Civil libertarians say the proposal marks a significant move toward a complete ban on products that offer unbreakable communications privacy. [End quoting]

How long did we think they would let us get by without a law like this? Furthermore, as I stated in previous New Desks, they have methods of getting the information they want now from your Internet transmissions.

Don't ever trust the Internet for something you really want to keep private—even NOW!!

SCIENTISTS CREATE HIV-FIGHTING VIRUS

From ASSOCIATED PRESS, 9/5/97: [quoting]

Boston—Scientists have created the first virus-killing viruses, cleverly crafted microscopic missiles that zero in on AIDS-infected cells and destroy them.

The idea is to fight infection with infection. The newly created viruses target only cells that have already been captured by HIV.

The approach works well in the test tube but has not been tried yet in people or animals.

"It's absolutely amazing that you can make a virus that will specifically target HIV-infected cells," said Dr. Ronald Desrosiers of the New England Regional Primate Center, who plans to begin testing one of the viruses on monkeys soon.

One version of the virus, created by Dr. John K. Rose and his research team at Yale Medical School, is a genetically altered form of vesicular stomatitis virus, or VSV, a bug that ordinarily infects livestock. Another is based on the rabies virus and was created by a team led by Dr. Karl-Klaus Conzelmann of the Federal Research Center for Virus Diseases of Animals in Tubingen, Germany.

"It's a completely new approach to limiting viral infection," Rose said. "This is the first virus that's an antivirus."

Reports on both experiments are being published in today's issue of the journal *Cell*.

If it works as its developers hope, the technique will stop the AIDS virus cold by employing a sort of mirror image of HIV's own sly tricks for worming its way into cells.

The experimental rabies virus cannot reproduce. However, Yale's bullet-shaped VSV can actually command the cell to make new versions of itself before killing it. These new bits of VSV can then spread to other HIV-infected cells, essentially becoming a self-manufacturing AIDS drug.

Dr. Edward A. Berger of the National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, called the approach "interesting and clever".

"This is a selective way of delivering something to the HIV-infected cell, in this case a virus that will kill the cell," he said.

In the test tube, the reproducing VSV was able to reduce levels of HIV to almost zero for three months. This means it's unlikely the treatment will wipe out HIV, even if it works, but it might be used with other drugs to keep HIV infections from progressing to AIDS.

The newly created viruses are designed to attack HIV-infected cells and nothing else. However, the safety of the new approach will be one of the first questions to be answered. [End quoting]

If it works don't expect to get access.

The Elite are into dispersing killer diseases and not into curing them. Their game is depopulation—NOT SAVING THE POPULATION!

CABIN OWNERS FACE FEE HIKES ANOTHER SIGN OF THE TIMES

From CHICAGO SUN TIMES, 9/5/97: [quoting]

Owners of prime cabin sites in the national forests will be forced to pay drastically higher rents as the government reappraises the land. Many oceanside or lakefront sites will cost five to 20 times more. [End quoting]

This is another tactic for the Elite to confiscate your rights and property.

ORTHODOX RABBIS SUING OVER HOLOCAUST MUSEUM

From *THE ORLANDO SENTINEL*, 9/6/97: [quoting]

A group of Orthodox Jewish rabbis sued New York City's Holocaust Museum Friday for using public funds to reflect non-Orthodox views, including memorializing homosexuals. Defendants in the suit, which was filed in federal court, are the soon-to-be opened Museum of Jewish Heritage and the New York Holocaust Memorial Commission, appointed by former New York City Mayor Ed Koch. The plaintiffs, more than a dozen rabbis from Brooklyn and two Roman Catholics from the borough of Queens, alleged the use of public funds to commemorate only one religious group of Holocaust victims was unconstitutional. [End quoting]

It's about time for honest people to stop this Khazarian propaganda and scam!

TV IS GOOD

From TV GUIDE, 8/15/97: [quoting]

For years the pundits, moralists and self-righteous, self-appointed preservers of our culture have told us that television is bad. They've stood high on their soapbox and looked condescendingly on our innocuous pleasure. They've sought to wean us from our harmless habit by derisively referring to television as the Boob Tube or the Idiot Box.

Well, television is not the evil destroyer of all that is right in this world. In fact, and we say this with all the disdain we can muster for the elitists who purport otherwise—TV is good.

TV binds us together. It makes us laugh. Makes us cry. Why, in the span of ten years, TV brought us the downfall of an American president, one giant step for mankind and the introduction of Farrah Fawcett as one of "Charlie's Angels". Can any other medium match TV for its immediacy, its impact, its capacity to entertain? Who among us hasn't spent an entire weekend on the couch, bathed in the cool glow of a Sony Trinitron, only to return to work recuperated and completely refreshed? And who would dispute that the greatest advancement in aviation over the last ten years was the decision to air sitcoms during the in-flight service?

Why then should we cower behind our remote controls? Let us rejoice in our fully adjustable, leather-upholstered recliners. Let us celebrate our cerebral-free non-activity. Let us climb the highest figurative mountain top and proclaim, with all the vigor and shrillness that made Roseanne a household name, that TV is good. [End quoting]

What kind of an entity—notice I didn't say human—would put out this type of muck??

HIDDEN CAFFEINE

A Consumer Group Wants Product Labels
To List Caffeine Content.

From a FAX sent by N. McLaughlin, 9/11/97: [quoting]

We all know that coffee, tea and Coke contain caffeine, but Mountain Dew? Sunkist Orange Soda? Dr. Pepper?

The advocacy group, The Center for Science in the Public Interest has asked the Food and Drug Administration to require that foods be labeled with their caffeine content.

"Consumers have a right to know how much caffeine various foods contain," said Michael Jacobson, executive director of the advocacy group. "Knowing the caffeine content is important to many people—especially women who are or might become pregnant, who might want to limit or avoid caffeine."

Consumers can find out how much caffeine a particular product contains by calling the manufacturer's 800 number listed on the product, according to the National Food Processors Association.

But in the meantime, the Center for Science in the Public Interest released a partial list of foods and their caffeine content, which can vary a lot within food categories.

As a point of reference, keep in mind that an average cup of brewed coffee contains 135 milligrams of caffeine; an average cup of tea, 50 milligrams. [End quoting]

3 pg on caffeine

HIDDEN MESSAGE

From ANGELS ON EARTH, May/June 1997, Guideposts, 39 Seminary Hill Rd., Carmel, NY 10512: [quoting]

All week I had a sinking feeling in the pit of my stomach. Monday we put my wife's car in the shop, not sure how we'd juggle our family's hectic schedule with only one car running. Tuesday I had a disagreement with a client that left me wondering whether our business relationship was ruined. And on Wednesday morning when my accountant scanned my tax records, his expression spelled trouble.

Now my 18-year-old son was waiting for me to pick him up from work. My bad mood would have to wait.

My daughter offered to keep me company. "We can pass the taco place, right, Dad?" she asked. Two bean burritos, no red sauce, no onions: a small price to pay for her dimpled smile and one-on-one conversation. I backed the car down the driveway and honked. Auburn hair swaying, Allison pressed the automatic garage door button on her way out of the house, ducked under the door and hopped in the car.

She was 14, which meant I never knew which Allison I was going to get on any given day. That day I lucked out. I got the chatty, animated one. The Allison who had just aced a geometry test and got asked out by "him". At least one of us was having a good week.

Wrapped up in my own concerns, I heard her words and glimpsed her dramatic hand gestures, but I wasn't completely with her. I was trying to come to grips with the mechanic, the client and the accountant. Allison yammered on about this and that. Then, out of the blue, she just said it.

"I mean literature class was soooo boring. And I'm sitting there wishing it would hurry up and end, but Mrs. Staley just kept going on and on about this dead writer and I'm going, 'Not again,' you know? Oh, man. And all of a sudden I thought, 'I have a really neat dad.'"

"Huh?"

Allison began to repeat the whole sentence, verbatim.

"You mean me?" I asked suspiciously. For the past several years I had been convinced I was her greatest source of embarrassment.

"Yeah," she said.

"What made you think that?" I asked, still wary this might be a trick.

Allison shrugged. "It just came to me." Then she was off on another avenue of personal narrative, leaving me alone with her message. The furrow in my brow softened and my fingers, which had been curled tightly around the steering wheel, relaxed. I even managed a real smile. Maybe the first since Monday.

As I pondered what Allison had said, I began to get the message. The message hidden within the message. Some days the world crowds in on me, but as long as God sends me encouragement every now and then, helping me to see beyond the difficult clients and the car repairs, letting me know that love is also out there, then I can live with the rest.

Thank you, God, for your messages, and for all your messengers. —Phil Truman, Oklahoma. [End quoting]

How often do we catch these little messages from God?

Different varieties of teas have wide variations in caffeine content.

CHAPTER 15

LITTLE CROW SPEAKS AT AUGUST GATHERING PART III IN A SERIES

Editor's note: The following is a further transcription (Part II was in last week's CONTACT) of Little Crow addressing those gathered for several days in Tehachapi during this year's Mountain Festival (tapes available from The Word: 8/16/97 to 8/19/97, New Year Celebration meeting tapes). Little Crow's words offer insight and often humorous respite in these difficult times of challenges and changes all around.

Little Crow: Okay, what would you like to hear?

Way in the back?

Audience: The last time you were here you said after your rebirthing—I still don't know whether you call that rebirthing or not—you went through quite an ordeal; you had a lot of things to resolve and to put in perspective. One of those, I thought, was sex—I wonder if you ever came to a conclusion.

Little Crow: No, no; it is that I was not as inspired by sex as I used to be as a younger man. (laughter)

I look towards that in many ways. The primary one that I was getting at is that I do not look at women as objects of sexual pleasure, nor men as objects of sexual pleasure, whatever my gender preference might be—animal shapes, whatever. (laughter) I don't look to that as an important aspect of my life as it had been because the problem is that sex, as it was explained to me, is about power and manipulation. It's about dominance; it's about power and dominance and manipulation of another human being to satisfy one's own needs. That the one can have that control over someone and not have any other control in their life can be an ultimate failure in everything and anything. Not be recognized for anything other than what they believe their sexual prowess to be, and their sexual dominance of another human being, and a manipulation of that human being's time, service and resources and to abuse them physically, mentally and spiritually. So I must look at feminine energy or masculine energy. Were I bisexual or homosexual, I must look at that in a responsible way and saying it is not necessary to have sex in order to live.

I have gone 24 years with no alcohol, no drugs in my body and I am alive and functioning and I am doing quite well without it. And I can do the same without sex. I don't need it in my life to the point any longer that it is something that is going to make me feel better—feel good, feel dominant, feel strong, feel powerful. Because I already am those things. And there is no such thing as a sexual encounter that is going to make me feel any better, and if it is not about love and only about sex—and the two, there are vast differences, as you know—then it is a futile exercise, an exercise in futility. Then you take the physical and the realities of impotence and aging. They say the urge never goes away or the desire never goes away, but the mechanics and the facilities of the mechanics seem to suffer. (laughter)

Audience: How about "wither".

Little Crow: Wither is one of the words I was looking for. (laughter) Of course you remember the old windows where the weights were on the side, the counter-weights; I wear several of those over my shoulder. "What are those, Little Crow?" "Oh, those are just to remind me of what used to be." (laughter)

I had realized how much I had abused sex in my life, as a person, as an individual. And how important it was for me to have sex, per se, because it was the only thing that I saw as being comforting for me in a world of very little comfort; disappointment. Disappoint my life, my condition and all the other things—a very dissatisfying disorder. It was a disorder if you wish to call it that. Because it was not a thing like food—food does not resolve anything. Food simply puts the carbohydrates and the proteins in the wrong place and we store it and we create sugar—kaboom, we go out of shape, we go out of sight. But it is just to fulfill a need and a hole. I found that in the God-self, in the creation of the energy of the spiritual energy that is within and the recognition and acceptance of that responsibility, the hole is filled. You fill that hole. You fill that hole by being here for me. Allowing me to interact with you and your energy interacting with mine—you fill that hole for me.

So part of what I was talking about was that, and another part of that was manipulation. How everything and everyone manipulates. How we use sex to manipulate, how we use beauty to manipulate, how we use weight to manipulate, how we use power to manipulate.

And we all manipulate. How we use illness and sickness to manipulate. How we use wellness and fitness to manipulate. How we use money and power to manipulate. We all are manipulators. The Creator itself manipulates. You see? Realizing that and not being embittered by it and not being captive to it, allows me to get on and do a lot more. To recognize that and to see how I have done that and to keep check on it, and to question myself and saying, "Why am I doing this? Why am I saying that? What was the purpose of that?" To question myself rather than go blindly off and say things and bark at the moon. It is a responsibility. Even more so now with my new grandchildren and things that I mentioned also. It is an immense realization for me. It was a spiritual death; six of them, and a spiritual rebirth. I made the choice to come back; I made the choice to remain; I made the choice to stay; it wasn't made for me. The voice I heard was my own voice, because I can't picture the Creator sounding like me. I had to take accountability for making the decision; I couldn't say, "God told me to stay; it wasn't my time." What did God's words sound like? A lot like mine. (laughter)

So I take accountability for it and I said to myself, "Well, do you want to go or do you want to stay?" And I said to myself, "Self, I think I'll stay, because I have too much to do yet, and I am not done. I can't die now because there is too much stuff in this place where I am staying that I don't want people to find. (laughter) I haven't gone through my written works, or my unwritten works. I haven't gone through stuff I have in my office, in drawers, behind books, things that are buried and under shelves. I have to go clean all that up, Lord, before I leave; so please don't take me yet." Uh huh! To take accountability for that—it was kind of a different experience.

I didn't see my grandparents or my great-grandparents and there was nobody at the end of the tunnel. There was no tunnel; there was this vast, lit universe of pain and anguish and sorrow and laughter and joy and music and silence and rumbling and lightning and thunder and amazing, blasting stars were all there, all around. Then they would open to the sea and the bottom of the sea, and then it would open somewhere

else, and every time I would come back to this pillow between my legs and the two little flags that were waving there, and they would turn in and this blue light which was God, the breath, eternal breath, immortality, the infinite breath traveling, and me hanging right with it. You know, in *Close Encounters of The Third Kind*, when that thing went zoom, then the little one came and hung out there and went zoom and went after it, you know. "Hey fellow, stay up with it," you know, that's just how it was. And so now I believe that's what it is for me, and that's what I am about; so I am just doing, based on my faith. I can't prove it. How are you going to prove this? I say I don't have to prove it. Do you realize, I don't have to prove it. All that's necessary is for me to believe it. And if I believe it then that's good, because that's what it is all about.

All God wants us to do is to believe something, you know. Wakan Tanka wants us to believe something, and that is to believe in ourselves. And if you believe in yourself, then you believe in what created you, and what created you is God, and if God created you and you believe in God then you have the faith, and the faith is all that is necessary because the faith will set you free. Truth or whatever. Each truth is truth. That's the process and that is what it was about—so I made it abundantly clear that my concepts and ideas and my respect for feminine energy has taken a new perspective. It isn't a sexual symbol, it isn't a "perhaps", it isn't a "I wonder what" or "why" or "how". I see feminine energy as a wonderful, loving human being to be respected because it is a life-giver and it is resonate and cognizant to the Mother Earth fertility. And to respect it for that, and to give it equity, and to give it parity in my life. It isn't a second thought or a subthought or a subservient thought. It is on line and has parity with everything else that I honor. It isn't a second-class or an after-thought that I must respect in such a way that I have maybe never respected before. That's what I was talking about. I was taking my own inventory. I was doing self-inventory. And I had to share that, I had to share it openly with the congregation, I had to share it openly with the gatherers, as I share with you. I didn't have to tell you. I didn't have to answer that question. I could have said that is personal and private and wait for the video (laughter); wait for the series, it will be along. It will be part of the series that we will produce but that is down the road, right now. We are doing something else.

Another question?

Audience: I remember when I was with another Indian teacher as great as the one I am with now—Hindu Indian in that case—and I asked Baba, "How do I get free of this gnawing feeling for sex, etc. The issue was women; I just want to be a saint, I want to be a Sadhu, and I'll be a Swami—and how do I get rid of this issue of women?" Baba just waved his feathers and said, "Just see them as men." (laughter) That worked for a while and that took care of that. Then, after that while was gone, I went back to Baba again, "Baba how do I get rid of this thing about desire for women, etc.?" He said, "Look at their feet." (laughter) So now we are back to the respect, and to the love and compassion for the Divine Mother. Because somehow whenever we look at Mother there is no sexual desire—no matter how beautiful or sexy Mother might have, could have, or would have been. Mother is different. So just before I left down there, I'm in the office taking care of some business and I look on the wall and there is one of the pictures of Divine Mother, and the quote on the calendar is: "The purpose of life is to merge in the divinity of your inner self and when you do that there is nothing there but love and when you do it completely you lose all consciousness of the physical body. There is nothing left but love." So my question after all this blabbing, Little Crow, is, was your experience—how do you describe it; are you more loving? What is this; you describe six deaths, could you elaborate on what that means, what that is?

Little Crow: For me as Little Crow it is a process of compassion, a process of experiencing the things that I did and have and continue to experience. Am I more loving? More or less is hard for me—it's like good or bad, plus or minus. No, I am just more accountable for the love that I feel.

When I say to people, on Sundays or whatever, "I love you. I don't even know you and I love you. I don't care where you have been, what you have done or where you are going or what you do." That is not my place. My place is to have someone say to them they love them, without knowing a thing about them. Not wanting anything from them. So for me it has been my accountability about loving, whether it is more or less. I believe the result of all of our experiences is to eventually reach a place of compassion. If we believe God or the Creator or whatever Source, we confirm to be compassionate. We seem to have that need for it to be forgiving because we ask for forgiveness and deathbed ritual, and last minute, and soulsaving ritual and things are all about forgiveness. It is all about being forgiven.

What I got from this and what helped me also, what I felt and saw was I had to be able to forgive myself. When I was able to do that and being embodied with whatever I am embodied with, it was the same. So now what I do, and when I do, and how I do it is done with more conscious effort, more accountability. Hopefully it is not something I would have to ask forgiveness for; I would not have to ask apology for, that I would not have to preface with, "First I want to apologize to anybody that I might offend." My effort is to not offend you, not to offend you, and that can be done, really. If you give me long enough up here, I can talk long enough that whoever is offended now will not be offended—you will be asleep, but you will not be offended (laughter) by the time that I leave. It is just a matter of time—given enough time I can get your forgiveness. Yeah, because you will go to sleep and forget about everything and I will get up and leave, so that is how it is. Compassion, and [the fact that] I have more accountability for the love and the ways in which I express it. That is how it affects me. Thank you for the question.

Audience: What were the six deaths?

Little Crow: Yes, they were the six times that I died and came back and each one of them was kind of affiliated with different areas or questions that I had and things that were shown to me in six twenty-four-hour periods. Basically they were things that dealt with sex, death—you know, living, manipulation, loving, accountability, disease. A lot about disease: how it works, how it operates. And then some marginal periferal things that I also talked about. More in depth about that when I make the tapes. We can sit and talk about it in depth. Anything else?

Audience: This is not a question, this is just a statement. I would like to express appreciation that I have experienced having you be so simple as to talk of the importance of each breath. I am in that realm of appreciation and understanding of knowing that is a very special and direct gift that each of us share. And with our consciousness of each experience, which is the only thing that actually does happen in the moment of "now", is that the inhale and then the return to that still, silent beginning with endless presence in which we dwell and overlook looking for it. That I think we find that confluence of that which has no beginning and just in that simple act, letting that one breath in and the one breath out, and I feel that it is my goal and desire in this life to be as conscious of that in the moment as I can possibly be, because of the joyous feelings that come about. I have, also, just nothing to express but supreme divine gratitude for Commander, this gathering, the speakers, and the participants here and everywhere in the universe as far as I can see. And that with the beginning of the eleventh year that we begin doing divinely what has been done

in the absence of that in all history that I can see on this Earth. Thank you all.

Little Crow: Thank you for that, and the way in which you stated it. That is all we have; and if I were to give you a dollar for every breath and the next fifty breaths, no one would be willing to sell your breath. You see, if I could say give me your next fifty breaths, I want to buy them, you would say "No; get out of my face." But you see, when you exhale, I inhale; so you give me life. When I exhale, you inhale; and the plants work that way; and the Earth works that way; and the air works that way; and the water works that way; and rocks work that way; and trees work that way; and leaves work that way; and insects work that way. When an ant exhales, we inhale; when a spider exhales the Mother Earth breathes, and when the Mother Earth exhales all the plants breathe. And on and on, connected brothers and sisters, we are connected; we are related; we are one and the same, only in a different form.

It is inescapable, we are not different. We are just diverse. Each of us is right, but we are also accountable. Accountable: that seems to be the stickler sometimes. That we don't want that kind of accountability that comes with the knowledge that God dwells within us. All it takes to recognize it is to act in that way. It is an awesome responsibility, but it is not held for the special of the few, it is there for all of you, it is there for everyone. You already have it; it is already there.

[*To be continued.*]